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County of
Board of Commissioners

(24 W. Dinmand Streat, 1O Box 1208, Butler, PA 16003-1208
Phone 724-284-5100 Fax 724-284-5400  TOD 724-284.5473

Sedieitor B
H, William While, I

Contmissloners
Leslic A, Qsche, Chairman
Kimberly D, Geyer, Fiee Chalrman
Kevin E, Boazel, M.S,, Secretary

. Lori Allman

Ann M. Brown

March g, 2020

U.S. President Donaid J. Trump
The White House

1600 Pennsylvania Avenue
Washington, DC 20500

Dear President Trump:

, As County Commissioners for Butler County, Pennsylvania, we write to respactfully implore you
to take action on the request by Cleveland-Cliffs [nc, CEO Lourenco Goncalves to close the foephole in
the "Section 232" steel tariffs to protect electrical steel laminations and cores, We join voices with Mr,
Goncalves, AK Steel management and the members of UAW Local 3303 in making this request. The
plant, formerly known es Armco Steel, was founded In Butler County in 1933 and has long been the
economic force for our County. The AK Steel Butler Works, along with the AK Steel plant in Zanesville,
Ohio, are the fast two producers of grain-orlented electrical steel laminations and cores in the United
States —actually, the last in all of Noarth America.

Further challenging the scenario 1s the request by neighboring Allegheny Technologies Inc. for
exemptions from the tariffs. AK Steel could supply ATl with the specialty slabs it needs, s0 we would
encourage the administration and our local Congressional <lelegation to broker a deal that would help
hoth AK Steel and ATI prosper for our entire Southwest PA region,

We would like to put the potential loss into perspective,  The AK Steel plant in Butler County

penerates nearly $130 million in payroll annually, the highest employee payroll of any company in

Butler County, including Westinghouse Electrlc Company when it was at full operation generating $70
million, The third fargest annual payroll comes from the federal government at OPM in the lron
Mauntain installation at approximaltely $37 million,

Clearly, the loss of this glant would he devastalmg to the Butler County economy. Wage lasses
will immediately affect countless car dealers, retailers, and other service providers, Butler Health
~ System, one of the last successful locally based health systems providing both standard and specialty
healthcare services to the employees and their families weuld be severely impacted.

Divecior of Human Resonrees/Clief Clevk

Budget & Human Services Finance Director
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In addition to affecting 1,500 employeas and their families, the loss to AK Steet suppliers -
including multiple trucking companles, scrap and alloy suppllers, refractories and companies like Alr
Products, located next to the plant, that supply argon, oxygen, nitrogen and more - would be significant,
The plant is served daily by the B&LE and BP short line railroads, making connections to the CSXT,
Norfollt Southern and CN main lines. The international markets are served via truck shipments to the
east coast with vessels lodded al the ports of Chesapeake and Eddystona, The plant uses $750,000 per
. month in electricity when operating at capacity. Countless building trade contractors and union workers
are in the plant daily, including the Electrical Workers, fronworkers, Pipefitters, Carpenters, Bricklayers
and more. The plant's weeldy stock of safety supplies comes from a Philadelphia-based company.

Finally, the plant generates $236,195 In property tax that sustains the local school district and
additional tens of thousands that support local municlpalities in an already constrained revenue
environment. AK Steel Foundation has made generous contribuitions to the Commonwealth’s Numbar
One Community College for the last five years, Butler County Comumunity Coliege, along with
contributions to many other local charitable and civic organizations.

We have celebrated so many economic wins in business growth, infrastructure investments, our
regional alrport, education, health care and more in our County in the last several years, Butler County is
one of the fastest growing counties in Pennsilvania, and the one with most new housing starts in the
Commonwealth, but much of that would be lost with the closure of the AK Stee! Butler Works.
We stand ready te assist AK Stee), Cleveland Cliffs, your Administration and our Congressional
delegation in whatever manner you need us. Thank you for your service and. your attentlon to this
-~ critical issue for our County and its citizens.

Sincerely,

BUTLER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

j (_,(MJ / ((7 < (r :,W(J.JAAJ,:, % (Q K{mﬁ /
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Leglt/eﬁ( Dsche C iimBerly 0. Geydr !(e‘v.ln E. Boozel, M. l’
Chairman Vice Chalrman Secretary
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LS. Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross

L5, Senator-Pat Toomey

U.5, Senator Robert P. Casey, Ir,

- U5 Rapreséntative Mike Kelly

U.S. Representative Glenn Thompson

t).8. Representative Conor Lamb

PA Gavernar Thomas Wolf

A DCED Secretary Dennis Davin

Mr, Lourenco Goncalves, Cleveland-Cliffs CEO
Mr, Roger Newpart, AK Stzel CEQ

Mr, Aaron Steinhelser, AK Steel General Manager
Mr, Jim Panei, UAW Local 3303 President
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H, Res. 895 of the 110™ Congress as Amended

Transcript of Interview of Witness One

Review No, 21-9221
May 20, 2021
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OFFICE OF CONGRESSIONAL ETHICS

AUDIO TRANSCRIPTION OF RECORDED INTERVIEW
or |
WITNESS 1
.Conduéted Virtually
Washington, DC
‘May 20, 2021

3:08 p.m, (Eastern Standard Time)

Job No. 375423
Pages: 1-70
Transcribed by: Annette M. Montalvo, RDR, CRR

Court Reporter{ Martin Onuegbu
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Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One

Conducted on May 20, 2021

APPEARANCES:

ON BEHALF OF THE CFFICE OF CONGRESSIONAL ETHICS:

Jeff Brown, Esq.
Cmar Ashmawy, Esqg.

Annie Cho

'(appeared via video teleconference)

ALSO PRESENT :

Saul Gan, Planet Depo zZoom Technician
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Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One

Conducted on May 20, 2021 4

{Proceedings commenced at 3:08 p.m., via
Zoom videoconference;'and the following was
transcriked from an audio recording, to wits:)
MR. BROWN: Let's go on fhe record.

WITNESS 1,

~called as a witness herein by the Office of

Congressional Ethics, was questioned and testified

as follows:
QUESTICNING BY MR. BROWN:
Q All right. This is Jeff Brown with the

Office of Congressional Ethics. With me are my

cclleagues Omar Ashmawy and Annie Cho. Before us is

Witness 1, director of communications with
Representative Kelly's office.

| We ére doing a remote video interview. Tt
is May 20, 2021; just éfter 3:00 p.m. Witness 1'5
been given a copy of the false'statements warning.
And, with that, we'll get started.

Witness 1, thank you again for taking some

time to sit down with us today and chat._ What I
primarily want to do here teoday i1s walk through a
timeline of events. First part of that timeline T

A ST RN A e e M e e A s o
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Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One

Conducted on May 20, 2021 5

want to talk about is events leading up to the

May 4, 2021 announcement by the Department of
Commerce of the Section 232 investigation.

But before we get.there, I'1l1l back up a
little bit and just ask you, so when are you and
folks in_Representative Kelly’é'office first alerted

to the fact that the Butler works plant, the 2K

- Steel plant in Butler, Pennsylvania, may be shutting

down, maybe laying off employees?

A When T found out about that is what you see
in the text message here from April 28, when Troy
Balderson's office reached cut to me. That's when I
found oﬁﬁ about that.

Q Okay.

A Sc I don't know if that -- about anybody
else, but that's when I'was made aware of it.

Q And you're made aware of it through
Balderson's communications director?

A As far as I recall, that's cérrect, ves.

Q Okay. So it's not something you are

communicating with to Witness 2 or to Matt or

anybody else in your office before the --

; ! ..ﬁ£A§EﬁQDEPBSMWMH:ﬂM%TW cr
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One
Conducted on May 20, 2021 6

A To the best of my knowledge, no. I mean, I
went through all my stuff and looked, and soc to the
best of my knowledge, that's correct.

Q Yeah, I should just -- I should have said
this earlier. “You know, again, I am just asking you
these questions to the best of your recollection. I
know sometimes it can be a little hazy and stuff.

So to the best -- |

A It's beeh a year, so.

Q I understand. And I do appreciate it looks
like you pretty carefully went back through four
matérials. And so that really definitely helped us
piece together a timeline, which was helpfﬁl.

Okay. So then with respect to the

initiation of a Section 232 review and the potential

closure of the AK Steel plant, how big of an issue

is this for Representative Kelly for the office?
A TIt's a huge issue. I mean, this company is

an incredibly important part of the Butler

community. As you know from looking at the

documents, it's got 1,400 jobs. There's —- you

know, Butler's not a very big town, and it is

888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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Conducted on May 20, 2021 7

T

something that cur office has been engaged in for
quite some time. And so that plant shutting down
would have massive implications not just for the

community but also for our country's national

security. I mean, AK Steel is the last producer of
electrical steel in the country and so, you know,
from a policy perspective, it's critical that we:
keep it because the electrical steel 1is a key
component of the electric grid. And if that plant
- shuts down and we rely on other countries for thaﬁ
compenent of the grid,_is my underétanding of the
issue.
Q How big of a deal is this to Representative
Kelly himself?
A I mean --
Q@ Let me ask that a different way.
| A  Okay.
0 How involwved is Représehtative'Kelly? Is
- this sort of one of the most pressing issues of the
day for the congressional office and for the

Cengressman?

A Yeah. It's a -— T mean, it was certainly

T T e e o ey s
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Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One
Conducted on May 20, 2021 8

then and was throughout last year. And I don't know

‘mmean, it's a pretty big issue for us, yeah.

how much has been done on it this year, but, yveah, T

Q@ And so to the extent that theré are, you
know, updates'or, you know, you guys are getting
information about -- from Commerce or from'other
offices, like this is something that Representative
Relly knows about or wants to know about? It is one
of thé more important thihgs going on in the cffice
at the time?

A Yeah. Yeah.

¢ How about fér Cleveland Cliffs and AK Steel,

how big of ‘an issue is, you know, the potential

closure cf these plants and the ability to secure
232 tariff reliefs for the electrical steel?
A So I'm a little less familiar with that. T

know that Cleveland Cliffs is a large company, I

think. And they bought, I believe, bought AK Steel

~a year or longer ago.

I don't know exactlj how important AK Steel

is to Cleveland Cliff's business model. . Cbviously, 3
it's a part of their businéss, but I don't know §
. S , : PLANETrﬁrosl = TR : = :
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Conducted on May 20, 2021 . 9

exactly how it would affect them if it was shut
down, |

.Q;-It locks to me like you had some
interactions with Witness 5 and Witness 4, who I
understand are two lobbyists with Cleveland Cliffs
and AK Steel. |

Did you get a sense from your interactions
with them how important this issue was to them?

A T am trying to think back to -- I mean, I'm
sure I was on a call or two with them and the other
staffers. I mean, obviously, they were engaged in
it and it was important to them. But, you know, T
can't say.for sure exactly how important;

Q Okay.

A Yeah.

Q Well, when you find out that the plant may
close, sounds like April 28 is when you kind of get
pulled into this, and that Cleveland Cliffs is,:you
know, looking for the government te intervene in
ordér to prevent the layoffs and prevent the plant
from being closed, what's the plan of attack?

What's the game plan in Representative Kelily's

T T e B I e S

DEPOS
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Conducted on May 20, 2021 10

‘ | 3
office for trying to address these issues for, wyou _k
know, to assist Cleveland Cliffs and also to, vyou
know, present any potential layoffs? : E

A Sc as far as the office's plan and what we

wduld do in that situation, that would be something
that cur chief of Staff and Witness 2 would work
with Commerce and the company on. Generally
speaking, I'm usually pulled in when we are about to
announce something publicly. |

O Okay.

A And 80, you know, Witness 2 was the‘one, T
believe, that was dealing mostly Qith Cleveland
Cliffs, I don't -- and probably Commerce. I don't
know to what extent Matt was involved with those
things, our chief of stéff. |

Bﬁt, yeah, T mean, I don't think I evér had
any direct communication with Commerce, and then I
just had some direct communication with Cleveland

Cliffs, usually on technical stuff for public-

statements.
Q Okay.
A So.

SRR P
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Q When are you first alerted that the
Department of Commerce is intending to initiate the
Section 232 review?

A So; I mean, i guess it depends on what you
méan is intending to do it. In those text messages
there's some back and forth about, you know, that

they're potentially going to do it. And so,

obviously, I learned about it during those messages.

I think that was on -- whnen was that. Sorry. I'm
going to loock baék at the dates here. Have the
documents‘pulled up in front here, |
I guess it'would have been the 28th as well,
right? Let me see here. T want tec make sure that
I'm correct in answering you. |
Yeah. I believe that's the 28th, and, you

kncw, you can see we go back and forth about, okay,

we're hearing they're going to do it, but, you know,

until they rélease it publicly, like, we're not, you

know, certain they're going to do it. So it would
have been around that time, you know.

Q Okay. Well, let's -— T think it might be

hel?ful -— again, I really appreciate it, all the

T e S TR A e e p e T
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Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One
Conducted on May 20, 2021 12

did kind of want to get your impressions of things

generally before I showed you all the documents.

documents ycu sent and how you labeled them. It was |

very easy to follow. There are some documents I z

want.to put up, ésk you a.couple questicns on.
A Sure.

MR. BROWN: So, with that, Saul, can you do E

me a favor and can you put up Document 1.

(Document 1, text message, marked for
identificaticn and retained by Attorney Brown.)
Q It's always a little easier to look at and

talk about them with reference to documents. But I

All right.. So this is the first document,
Witness 1. 1It's a document that you sent to us.
It's a text message that —-

A  Yeah.

' Q -- you have at 2:40 p.m. on April 28, 2020,

with Matt. T take it that's chief of staff, Matt
Stroia?

A Yes, correct. Yes. i

Q And he says, on the phone, can I call you .

back.

R T g S e oy T e o e

T DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

21-9221_0017



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Transeript of Virtual Interview - Witness One |
Conducted on May 20, 2021 : 13

Just curioué, what proceeds that, this text?
Did you call'him?.

A I think I tfied to call him, yeah:

Q. Okay. |

A. I must have tried torcall him, yeah.

Q Okay. Aﬁd you say, yéah} just got an e+mail-
from Balderson's CD. I take.it that's the
commﬁnications director?

A Yes. 1t is, correct.

Q About a statement on AK Steel plant closure
_announcement tomorrow. I thought that wasn't
happening yet. |

Why -- walk me through that. Why didn't you

think that was happening yet?

A You kncw, thét's funny. I don't -- so I
don't really recall why I said that. I mean, it is .
possible that there was talk about it before, but I
didn't find anything about that -- about the issue’
before April 28 in nmy texts. - |

So I'm net a hundred percent'sure, I know
that there had been talk at -- I think.there had

been various points where there was talk about the

B e e T 3 M e o B T A e R PP Em e O R R K P e S TR s
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plant poténtially shutting down because, I mean,
that's why we were working on the issue.
S0 I don't -~ I don't know exactly why I

said that. I don't know.

Q Okay. Did he end up calling you back?

A I dbn‘t know. I don't recall. I just
den't.

Q Let me -- let's go to Document 2.

MR. BROWN: Saul, if you can go to Document

(Document -2, e-mail, marked for
identification and retained by Attorney Brown.)

Q0 So just to remind you, Document 1 there that.
we were locking at, fhat was a 2:40 p.m. text
message with Matt?

A  Right.

Q This is a 2:52 p.m. e-mail, on April 28,
from Witness.Z to both you and Matt?

A ‘Right. _

Q0 call back in on this number.

MR. BROWN: And, Saul, if you could scrollr

down a little bit.

S S T B A T R T ST R T T e T
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C She seems to be referring to --

MR. BROWN: Sorry, go up, Saul. Yes. Stop

right there.

Q She seems to be referring to a dial-in that
Witness 5 had provided to her and Witness 4.

A  Right.

Q What can you tell me about this do¢ument,

of this document?

A Well --

MR. BROWN: Actually, Saul, can you give me

coentrol of this document.

A Would you like me to answer or are you -

Q Yes. LSure.

A Okay.
¢ Go ahead, Witness 1.
A.

50, yeah, I was racking my brain when T saw

conversaticns, so I don't really know exactly, and

T T T et e

PLANET DEPOS
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and, yoﬁ know, any phone call you joined as a result

this one. I am assuming that that call was probably
apout the potential closure. I don't know for sure,

again, because I don't have recordings of any phone
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wWe were talking about. But it's just been

speculation.

Q Let me just read for you reaquuick. I've
gpt.a call summary provided to me by Cleveland
Cliffs.

A Okay.

Q And see if it helps jog your memory a little

bit.

A 'Sure.

Q It says, this is a phone call batween
Witness 4, Witness 5, and Witness 2, in which
Witness.5 anc Witness.4 provided notification of the
Department of Commerce's intent to initiate a

Section 232 investigation covering transformer,

" laminations and cores.

A  Uh-huh.
Q Does that sound like what would have been

discussed on this call?

A Well, T mean, if that's what the readout is,
then that's what I would imagine. I don't recall
being on it, but that's possible, yeah.

Q So what this call summary suggests is that

T e e o A R M e e L e T e e e A e st
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Witness 2, Witness 4, and Witness 5 are on a call
together?

A Qkay.. .

Q Do you remember being on.a call with the
three oflthem?

A No. I do not.

Q GCkay. How do you first learn then on this
day, vyou think, that the Commerce departmeht intends
to initiate a Section 232 review? Do you remember
ever hearing that from Witness 5 and Witness 47

A I do not remember hearing it directly from
them, but when I look back through my messages, I'm
guessing that the text message from Balderson's
communications director sayihg,th, they're going to
work it out, might be the first that I learned about
it. | 7

Q Okay. And so I think you are probably
referring tc --

MR. BROWN: Saul, can we go to Document 3.

A And, again, this is just to the best of my

recolleétion. I am not sure exactly.

(Document 3, text message, marked for

R S e R o R e T T T S et
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Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One
Conducted on May 20, 2021 18

identification and retained by Attorney Brown.)

Q I think Document 3 shculd be the text

message that you're referring to.
A Documeﬁt 37
¢ Yeah. Give Saul a second here.
MR. BROWN: Saul, can you pull up Document
3. There we go.
A Yeah.
MR. BROWN: And i1f you can zoom out a little

bit, Saul, or if you want to give me control, I can

take over.
¢ All right. Document 3 here is a text
messagé frem Erin, EC. I believe, is that Erin

Cellins?

A Correct._ Yes. : g
Q Okay. And that's ét 3:51 p.m. on April 28,
2020.
First part of the text message says, hey,
Witness 1, Erin Ccllins again., My LA called me
right after we spoke. Apparently, Wilbur Ross is
going to make the necessary fix.

The "LA" that she's referring to, do you

RN LR D A

PNW‘ ]ﬁDEPOS R
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

21-9221_0023 -



10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

Transeript of Virtual Interview - Witness One
Conducted on May 20, 2021

19

know whe that is?

A I do not.

Q Does Nate Zimpher, does that sound like that

is who. it could be?

A I do not‘recall that name.
Q Okay.
A I don't know if I've ever interacted with

that person.

Q Okay. You said, I think a couple, you know,

minutes agce, that you don't have a lot of

recollection about that, like 2:45 or 2:50
conference call, Document 3‘that we looked at --
A  Yeah.

¢ ~-- and, you know, your first understanding

of what was going on may have happened in maybe

response to — is this the text that you were
referring to?r

A Yes. Yeah.

Q Walk me through this text. What do you --
what do you see-in that first text message? |

A So Etin e-mailed me, from what I remember,

earlier in the day, asking to do maybe a Jjoint

888.433.3767 { WWW PLANETDEPOS.COM"
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statement, right. Because I have that e-mail in
here. 8o she wants to talk aboutiit. So she and I
may have talked on the phone after that to kind of

go through like, oh, this is what's happening, like

they might be talking about shutting down the plant,

letting workers know that they are laying people off

the next day.

And then I don't know exactly where we left

~that, but then she texts me this and says, oh, right

after we spoke, my LA says that Commerce is going to
fix it or —-- maybe fix it. Yeah.
¢ What do undérstand that to mean? The text
says, apparently Wilbur Ross is going to make the
necessary fix. |
What do you understand her to be saying
there when she says makes the necessary fix?

A I mean, I would imagine the investigation or

the -- yeah, the 232 investigation or something

along those lines that convinces the company not to
go ahead with layoffs.
Q Qkay.

A 5o,
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Q So, in other words, Wilbur Ross is -~ he's
going to initiate the Section 232 review?

A Potentially. I don't know if he means that

or something else, but come up with a'deal, I don't

know‘exactly what that meant, but I know that we
were pushing for a 232 investigation, sc I assume
that's what --

Q Okay.

A  Yezh.

Q So given your understanding of what the
efforts were from the Kelly office, and I know
several other offices, the make the necessary fix
and come up with a deal, probably relates to
initiation of a Section 232 review?

A I would imagine so, yeah.

Q Ckay. Do you recall after you get this

message, what do you do with it? Do you call Erin?

A Honestly, I -- honestly, I do not recall

what I did after that. No. I was looking through

these texts, and it looks like I had texted Witness

2 and -- I text Witness 2 and Matt about the

ekchange with Zrin, I think. I'm trying to find

" PLANET DEPO
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that document here.

¢ Yeah, yoﬁ're talking about the text messages
that span like April 28 through the 29th?

A Yes. I'm sorry. Let me just make sure that
I'm correct here. I want to find it. Why is not --
well, I'm not finding it, but I believe you‘rgA
correct theré.

Q That's okay because I actually think that's

‘the next document I want to show you. But before I

get there, I want td ask you one other question
about this.

S0 the date —~.the timing of this message is
around — it's just shy of 4{00 p.m. on April 28.

You know,-if we go back and logk --

MR. BROWN: Saul, if you can go_back to
Document 2, which I think you have saved up there.
Yes.

Q That's at 2:52, this e-mail frdm Witness 2

~is at 2:52. So we're kind of like an hour later in

time,
It does seem tc me that a conversation was

had with Cleveland Cliffs about the section —--
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initiation of a Section 232 iﬂvestigation. SO0 my
thought is‘if we go back to Document 2, Saul, that
the -- you know, you probably had or the office had
some idea of Wilbur Ross and what he had agreed to
do with AK Steel before Eiin Colliné texted all
this? ,

A Okay. Yeah. That must -- yeah, that sounds

like that could be right then.

Q Okay.

A Yeah.

Q T realize it's been a year.
A Yeah, Forgivé me. Yeah.

MR. BROWN: Let's go to Document 4, if you
could, Saul. Thank you. |

And then do I still have control? Great. I
can contrel it here.

(Document 4, text message, marked for

| identification_and retained by Attorney Brown.)

Q I think these are the text messages that YOu
were just referring to a second ageo? -

A Yes, that's right: That's what this is.

Yeah.
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Q Let me scrcll down a little here. So this

i1s a April 28, 2020, text message, 3:41 p.m. You

‘are texting Witness 2 and Matt Stroia?

A  That's right.

Q Let's just walk through this text: "And I've
combined a couple of the text that you have sent so
they are in order. But you say, Baldersog team
wants Lo do a positive joint statement. They are
going to e-mail us within thé hour.

What are you saying -- what's that initial

"text in reference to?

A Geez, I think that is about, I think,
that -- so the plant shutting down, I think
originally Erin and I were talking about a statement
that was like maybe ——'wé were talking about -
statement and not to do that. Gosh. I don‘t -=
Balderson's team want to do —- I mean, I'm gueséing
that's -- I'm guessing that's what it is. It feels
like we have two different things going on at one
time here while we're talking about two issues and
so I'm just like kind of confused Myself just
looking back at the messages.

PLANET DEPOS
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Q It almost looks to me like Erin and your
texts are.lagging a little behind, maybe the
knowledge that has happened in the office --

A Which would make sénse because Commerce
reople are usually the last'people torknow thihgs,
SO .

Q All right. Well, then that makes sense.

Let me walk you down this text a little bit
further then. You said, I get annoyed when
unnecessary headaches are created, and it feels like
buréaucracy and politics are getting in the way.
Shouldn't be this hard tQ fix.

Does that-help jog your ﬁemory at all?

A Yeah, I think that's probably me -- and,
again, I'm speculating, but I'm pretty sure that I'm
referring to like the plant doesn't have to shut -
down, it shouldn't be bureaucracy or politics
getting in the way of the plant staying open. And
if IT'm like referring to, yoﬁ know, why hasn't the
Administration like done a 232 yet. Tike th are
they not doing it, kind of thing. I'm assuming

that's what I'm talking about. Yeah.
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Q Well, I think things will get a little
clearer here because at == if vou look down at this
text message, we're on April 28, 2020, 8:05 p.m. So
that's the evening. |

A  Yeah.

Q@ You have had conversations, it sounds like,
with Matt and Witness 2 about the Section 232
investigations, and you have had conversations with
Balderson's com folks. So now -- those are in'the

afternoon, now we're in the evening. You say, never

heard from Witness 5 about whether they want a quote

from us or not.
Witness 5, I take it, means -~

Witness 5.

A

Q0 ~-- Witness 5?
A Yeah., From AK,
Q From AK,

A  Yeah,.

Q

And then you say, is everything confirmed?
A Yeah. I think I'm asking if they're
confirming that.they're do the 232._
Q Okay.

SR R A T B S 8 S R
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A I believe that's What I am asking there.

And I think that the quote wasg -—- request, I think,
was it Witness 2 -~ | |

Q Yeéh, I think that Witness 2 mentions, and
that's another document I'll show you.

A  Yeah. Witness 2 sent an e-mail to Witness 5
offering me for a potential quoﬁe.if they do any |
releases or anything like.that.

Q To AK Steel_and/or Cleveland Cliffs?

A  Yeah, yeah. '

Q Okay. So you say, is everything confirmed.
And then I'm scrolling down here a little. And Matt
Stroia, as chief of staff, responds and says,
Commerce has not sent out their press release yet.

When he's referring to a press release,

| what's he referring to, as you understand it?

A Let's see. Oh, so he'd be talking about
fhe -~ because righﬁ after that he says, Cleveland
Cliffs is waiting for Commerce to put their telease
out.
So I would imagine that they're talking --

he's talking about the 232 investigation.

R e e e e
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Q Okay. 8o, in other.words, what Matt is
saying here is Commerce hasn't yet publicly
announced the 232 investigation?

A I believe that's correct, yeah. ‘ | L

Q Okay. And Cleveland Cliffs is wailting to | E-
put out a press release until Commerce publicly ‘

announces it?

A Yes. I believe that's correct. Yes.

e R T T

Q Okay. A little bit further down the text
message, Matt says, 1 spoke to Commerce in the White
House after oﬁr call.,

Do you know who he's referring to, who's the

individual at Commerce?

T R o e

A T do not, no.

Q He says, they were hoping to have their
‘release out toﬁight,

| Again, I assume that releaée,means a release
on the initiation of the Section 232 review?

A That's a reasonable assumption, I think.

Q Is that youf understanding of it, though?

A _Yeah, I mean,'i think so. |

Q I just want to make sure I'm not missing
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anything.

A Yeah. I think so. _

Q Okay. So if you scroll down a little
further, you know, Matt says, it's not confirmed
until they put it in the press.

Then it looks like we get to the next
morning, April 29, 2020, 9:04 a.m, You text and
say, I still don't see it.

| Aré you referring to the press release.by

Department of Commerce?

A Yes,
Q Okay.
A  Yeah,

Q You're expecting to see a press release that

says, Department of Commerce has announced -- has

initiated the Section 232 review?

A Yeah. That's right, yeah.
Q Witness 2 then responds, and Witness 2 says,
just talked to Witness 5, |
Again; that's Witness 5 at AK Steel?
A Uh-huh.

Q Okay.
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A I think, yeah. Yeah, I wouldjimagine S0,
veah,

Q The announcement is likely to come later in
the week. Again, announéement, as I understand it,
and I want to make sure it's your understanding,
too, is plan -~ you know, initiation of the Section
232 review?

A Yeah, Yeah, I would think so.

Q Okay. Hopefully by Friday, based upon a
late night conversation Witness 4 had with Ross'
chief of staff. |

"Witness 4" there is Witness 4 at Cleveland
Cliffs?
A Yes. 1 believe so,

Q And so Ross' chief of staff is Secretary of

Commerce, Wilbur Rosgs?

A Yes. I mean -- yeah. Yeah. And I don't
know who the chief of staff was,
Q0 Do you know what -- or did you_have'any
follow up with her about, she said, they need to get
their legal ducks in a row, what that meant? .

A No. Not that I recall.
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Q OkayQ So then Witness 2 goes on to say, it
ain't over until Congress makes that announcement .
You say, foot on the gas untii'we croés the finish
line.

A  Yeah.

Q Is there anything that I'm missing here that
suggests that the Department of Commerce, you know,
may change its mind, or is this Just you guys saying
like, keep our foot on the'gas and keep doing what
we are d01ng until it's OfflClal out of an |
abundance of caution.

In other words, has something, you know,
changed from what Wilbur Ross and the Departmént of
Commerce has communicated about their plans to
initiate a Section 232 review, or is fhis you and
the rest of the staff sayiﬁg sbtt of like, out of an
abundance of caution, let's keep moving forward and
keep pushing the issue?

A I think it is just us saying let's push and

keep going until it is publicly announced because,

you know, we are operating under the assumption that

until Commerce says this} does this, says it
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publicly, that it still could change. ;

Q Qkay.

A I don't_know that there's any like evidence
or anything that suggests that it had or was going
change, but we weren't -- I wasn't opefating undex
the assumption that it was going to be -- that it
was goeing to happen until it-actually was announced.

So I can't speak for other people, but, yeah. |

Q0 Let me just get it straight and make sure.

The assumption is, or the understanding is, on the
part of Representative Kelly's office, you and other
folks, is that Wilbur Ross -- the Department of

Commerce has indicated that they plan to initiate a

R A By N e R AR R P R P T g

Section 232 review, it is just a matter of when that
announcement's going to occour? |

A Yes., I think so. Yeah.

Q Okay. I just want to make sure nothing had
changed, there wasn;t any, you know, there ﬁasn't
anything that happenéd that made you guys feel like,
okay, now maybe it's a little less likely than it
was, you know, a day ago?

A I was going to say, I just think that the

R e o e T T PP P e
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longer -- like when they say they're going to do
-something, and then the longer it doesn't happen,
you start to wonder if'it's going to happen.

Q Right.

A  So, but,

Q. All right., I think that's -- so these text
nessages occur between April 28.and-the morning of
April 29.

A  Uh-huh,

Q We talked about this earlier on. You know,
my understanding is this is an issue that's
important to the office, it's important to I

Representative Kelly. Is Representative Kelly, is

he in the loop on these issues?

‘A I can't say what he knows when because it's

Abrm—
£ e OB B

not me who would be talking to him about these
things. It would be Matt and/or Withess 2. Because

they're the ones communicating with the company and

A b
T T e

Commerce.,

So, I mean, it's reasonable to assume that

e
R R A R

he might have been, but I don't know for sure. I

can't speculate.
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- Q Okay. So Matt and Witness 2 are the two who
are most likely going to be communicating with
Reprasémtative Kelly about these issues.

A Yeah. Yeah.

Q@ Okay. It is -- you said it's probably fair
to assume that he is in the loop, and that’s because
- this is an important issue for the district, this is
an important issue for Butler, Pennsylvania, and,

therefore, he's -~ Matt and/or Witness 2 are

Y AR,

probably keeping him in the loop on these things?
A Can't say for sure, but probably. I -don't
know. -

MR. BROWN: Can we go to, Saul, can we go to

Document 5, please.
(Document 5, eQmail, mafked for
identification and retained by Attorney Brown.)
- MR. BROWN: All right. Thank you.

Q Witness 1, I think this is an emmail that
you were referring to earlier?

A  Yeah. |

Q Okay. Just for the record, here, this is an

e-mail from Witness 2 on Tuesday, April 20 at 4:05
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p.m. It is to Witness 4 at Cleveland Cliffs,
Witness 5 at AK Steel, Matt Stroia, and yourself.
Witness 2 says, assuming everythihg stays on
track with Ross' offer to help AK Steel, please let
Witness 1 know if you need a quote frém Mike.

'Again, I juSt want to make sure I'm

understanding things. When Witness 2 says, Ross'

offer to help with AK Steel, she is referring to his
offer to initiate a Section 232 review, would.that‘
be your understanding of that? |

A I‘mean, yeah. i.w~ yes, I don't -- I don't
think there ﬁas anything else going on, but I would
imagine that's probably right.
| Q That's the reading I take away. I just want
to make sure you don't have some other reading of
this that I'm missing?
| Yeah, no, I don't think so.

Okay.

FoOoO

Yeah.

Q And then she prefaces this with, assuming

everything stays on track.

I think this just goes back to the point you

a R T S e T e
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and I were discussing a couple minutes ago, until
it's public, you know ~-

A  Yeah.

Q We're not a hundred percent certain so

assuming everything stays on track. But you don't

s

have any reason to believe that, you know, things
are looking like they're going to get off track?

A Nothing specific, but, yeah, I mean, until

it is publicly énnounced, we had no idea if it was
golng to happen or not.

¢ Okay.

AN R R U F A AP 5P P BT,

A Really. That's the way I felt about it,.
MR, BROWN: Okay. Saul, can you go to

Document 6, please.

(Document 6, text message, marked for .

identification and retained by Attorney Brown.)

0 Thié ié a text message from May 1, 2020 at
3:49 p.m, |

A  Uh-huh,

Q The text message‘between.yourself, Witness
2, and Mike Kelly, and Matt Stroia. T will jog your

memory here a little bit and remind you that at 3:30

o b O e . A T
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p.m., the Congressman had a conversation with Wilbur
Ross. Were you on that call?

A Yes; T believe,~~‘Yeah, I must have been
because it says, so that was a great call.

Q Tell me, why was that a great call?

A Well, I think the messages speak for
themselves, that I believe that the Secretéry told
us that they were going to move forward on May 1.
That's the day he told us they were.going to move
forward., | | |

Q With the Section 232 review?

A Yes. Yes.

Q Let's go back to that phone call. You're on
it. Just, how does it go, how does it start, who
says what?

A That, I don't know, I can't go back and
speculate about'that# It's been a year. But,

obviously, they said that they were going to move

- forward, and we were excited about that as an

office,
Q Okay. When you say king history of

advocacy, whatfare you talking about there?

b B e AR
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A T think that that's a typo, and I don't know
exactly what T meant to say. But I think the spirit
of it sounds like we have to have a victory lap
statement ready to go with what we've done on the
issue and what's about to happen for -- because I
think the call May 1 was Friday, and then sounded
like they must have told us tﬁey were going io;do it
the next week or sémething( and I said, okay, we
have to have something ready'for Monday or Tuesday.

Q  Okay.

A I'm pretty sure that's what this means.

Q Okay. So the announcement does -~ this is a

Friday. The announcement does come out late in the

-afternoon on Monday,

What's the hope post annodncement? And sort
of what are the office's plans after the Section 232
investigation announcement's occurred?
| A Well, I mean, you're talking about like
right afterrthe announcement, like are we going to
announce it ourselves? Is that what you;re asking?

Q No. Let me clarify a little bit.

A Sure.

SEERT R D
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Q So I know you're the coms guy, you're not
the policy guy, but I --

A Yeah.

Q . —- suspect you have some insight into, vou
know, what's the game plan, what's the plan of‘
attack moving forward for the Kelly office. A
Section 232 investigation has been initiated. But,
you kﬁow, that doesn't mean the tariff issue is
resolved. 8o what is the Kelly office doing after
May 4 to continue to address AKX Steel, Cleveland
Cliffs issues and conéerns?

A I think once the 232 investigation was
annqunced, it was about waiting to see what the
investigation would yieid. So I don't know what our
office would have been doing during that time
period. I don't recall us doing a lot during that
time -~ or at least me doing a lot during that
'period. - 

Q And I don't want td put words in your mouth
here, but I assume that's not like your wheelhouse?

A Correct, yeah. I mean, I'm looped into

things when we're_ready to publicly announce them.
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Q@ Do you have any awareness of what the :
current status is of the Section 232 investigation?

A It is my understanding that the
inVestigation like happened, but I don't know that
the administration ever did.anything with it.

Q Okay.

A I don't think they ever put -- if they héd
put tariffs on something, we would have announced

-that for sure, so I don't think they ever did that.

Q And what is -- to the extent you are aware,
what is the status of the Butler works, you know, AK
Steel plants?‘ Any threat of layoffs? Is evérybody
still employed? |

A I haven't heard of any issues for a while.

Okay;

Q
A  Yeah, vyeah.
Q

B e o e R P B A S W S PN N i, A AR A St R T D B LR

All right. Let me switch gears a little
bit.

When.did,you first become aware of Victoria
RKelly's stock purchase in Cleveland Cliffs?

A That would have been when the Pittsburgh

it R AR

Post Gazette reached out to us about it in
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‘document$ from the 1l4th forward, but I gather from

“had communication with both the Pittsburgh Post

Conducted on May 20, 2021 41
September. g
Q Okay. %
A  Yeah. §

Q Do you remember when in September they
reached out to you on it?
A Yes. It was early in September because I

remember that we waited several -- a few weeks

before the story dropped. So it was early
September.

T A e AR

Q Okay. Because I think we requested

the materials that you had some communications about

this early in September. And is it fair to say you

Gazette and internal communication?

A A AR G A A A R

A Yes, |
Q@ And you have -- do you have those documents
saved as well?
| A T do not, no,.
Q Well, I have some questions about it. I may
ask you for some of those materials,'but let mé ask

you some questions about this stuff. We can come

|
& .
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back to that.
| What happens after the Plttsburgh Post
Gazette approaches you about this potential story?

A So without looking back at everything, I'm
not a hundred percent sure, but normaliy what would
happen wiﬁh a press inquiry is I would receive it
from, you know, the reporter, and then I would rﬁn
it up the chain, depending on where it naeded to go.
So if it was just a simple policy issue, I would go
to the policy person, work on a short statement, and
then work and get it approved by Matt, and we would
send that out. And in this case, since the inquiry
was about the Congressman, we ended up, you know, we

would run it up to him, give him an inquiry, like

what do you want to say to this, and then he would

kind of give an overview of what he wants to say,
and I would kind of just condense it and we'd shoot
it off to the reporter, so.

Q All right. Well, talk to me about that.
What does he say when you approach him about this
inquiry?

A These were -- this was a conversation from
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eight and a half monﬁhs ago. So I'm not exactly
sure, but like I can't recount the exact
conversation, but I —- whatever we sent to the Post
Gazette is going to be a microcosm of that.

So he was, from what I recall, you know,
pretty passionate about the fact that like we're
trying to save the Butler community, or save the AK
Steel plant, the Butler community is like rallying
around to save it.

And, you know, whatever, I took whatever he

said and just kind of condensed it down into this.

So if you want me to read you the statement we sent

the Post Gazette, I can do that.
Q No, that's okay.
What did he tell'you about the conversations
he had with his wife-about making the purchase?

A Nothing that I recall. When T wouid - T
donft have any reason -- I don't know what they
talked about, so.

Q Qkay.
A If anything,

Q I think you said you first learned about the
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stock purchase in September?

A Uh~huh.

Q Okay. So then as I -- as T surmised, you
didn't assist the Kellys with any sort of
anhouncement back in April about the purchase of
this stock?

A No.

Q Do you know that they ~; did they make any
sort of public announcement about the purchase of
the stock?

A Are you referring to a disclosure?

Q No, not a PTR, I'm talking about, you knéw,
a public comment, like, you know, we bought this
stock in order to support the local -~ _

A No, I don't think they made that -- any
public statements. They certainly didn't do one
through me. |

Q Would you have been aware of that if -- if
they were gqing to make some sort of public
statement on this?

A If they were going to make a pubic -- if

Congressman Kelly was going to make a public

ot o
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statement through his congreésional office, yes, I
would have known about it unless he was talking to
somé_reporter off the cuff somewhere and I wasn't
there or it was impromptu.

O Okay. |

A 'So, yeah.

Q So I guess what I'm trying to get out of
here is the quote, the response you provided to the
Pittsburgh Post Gazette and the Butler Fagle and

maybe some others, was, Representative Kelly's wife

in their hometown.

I guess I'm just trying to find out or
trying to figure out how that purchase showed
support.

A I ﬁean, that's not something I can answer.
I don't know, you know, exactly how they look at
these things. Tﬁat's just what he wanted to éay in
response to the inquiry. So I don't - I mean,
obviously, I think if I'm just spit balling, an

investment in the company is a small cash infusion.

AT P ks ey N B R e NIRRT TR SRy
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I don't know if that is what you're asking me. But

I can't speak to their state of mind or whether they

had conversations about it, or, you know. I don't

know. I don't know what they -- exactly what. was in

his mind with that. I just know this is what he

- wanted to say.
Q When you asked him about -- when you brought

this press inquiry to him in the first instance, did

he respond to you right away on it?

A S0 I think so. I mean, I think ~- because
typically what would happen is'like I would
probably -- I am trying-to remémber back., I may
have called Matt first, and then I think we might
have -- this is typically how this wéuld go, if we
got an inquiry. Like I would call Matt about it,

and then we might patch Mike in to kind of read

what's going on, and, you know, read to him and

whatnot.

So, égain, I'm dealing with a hazy memory
about the exact sequence, so I am hesitant to just
kind of say this is what happened. Because I
don't --
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Q I understand and I appreciate that.
I think the one thing I would ask, if you
could go back to wherever it was in early September

and look at your materials and see 1f those, you

" know, jog your memory a little bit, and if you could

forward those along to us, to the extent there are
texts or e-mails, those would be helpful.

As a bit of a non sequitur hére, the
Congressman, he doesn't e-mail, doeé he?

A No. I don't believe he uses e-mail at all.

0 Okay. So if it's a —= if you are going to
coﬁmunicate with him, it sounds like it is text or
phone call?

A Yéah‘ And he doesn't text very often,
either, generally speaking. So, yeah,

Q Well, back to this quote, I guess really
what I'm trying to grapple with is, the way the
quote is written it says, like, you know, small
investment to show her support. To me, that
suggests a show df public support, you know, by the
Congressman and his wife. But I don't get the

impression that any -- you know, there was anything

R A o
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public about this stock buy.

A I mean, other than the disclosure, I don't
think so, no.

Q 'Okay. Give me one second here,

MR. BROWN: Saul, can you pull up Document

(Document 7, text message, marked for

identification and retained by Attorney Brown.)

Q Witness 1, while he's pulling that up, let
me ask you, I know that ybur ~—.I said that you said
normally yoﬁ sort of run things up through Matt. So
Matt was likely involved in any response or the
crafting of any response to this article or this
request for information in the Pittsburgh Post
Gazette?

A Yes., I meah, typically if I'm drafting
something based on somethihg we've all talked about,
we'll éither —=~ like I'll text with Matt about it,
or Matt and Mike, and we'll just kind of gb back and
forth aboﬁt iﬁ. 50, yeah. I mean, I don't éend
anything out without the approval of both Matt and

Mike usually,
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Q Okay. Well, if there are some text messages

with respect to the crafting of this response from,

it sounds like, maybe early September, and you have
those and you can forward those along, that would be
great,

A Okay.

O It looks like this is Exhibit 7, another
text message you sent.to us, This is from Septémber
14, 2020. |

| You say, Mike's not in today. It's a text
to Witnhess 2. Sorry. You sayg Mike's not in today.
She requnds, since Vicky's driving-down

with him -- is Vicky the Congressman's wife,
Victoria Kelly? |

A Yes,

Q Okay. Witness 2 says, I bet he doesn't come
in until tomorrow.

You say, oh, perfect. She gets to be here

- when our favorite story drops.

A Yes,
Q Tell me what you're referring to there.

A Yeah. So I'm making the assumption that the
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Pittsburgh Post Gazette is going to drop sometime

that week, but I don't have confirmation of that at

that point because the confirmation comes later, so.
0 And why is this your favorite story?

A That's tongue and cheek. Obviously, as
communications director, I'm worried about, you
know, stories and how they portray the Cbngressman
in the public. And so Ilwaén’t sure what this story
was golng to look like ana I was nervous abéut it.

Q Tell me more about that. Why -- what was
the anxiety associated with?

A Well, I think, I méan, anytime you have
something that like suggests there might be an
ethics issue or whatever, then it could get piéked
up and become a much larger story. And I think you
saw my concern for that in the other text messages
as well. | o

Q What's your understanding of the potential
ethics issue that the Congressman faces?

A . I think what's in the story is, you know,

the -~ is the debate, the timing, I mean, that's the

question that's posed in here, you know, whether or

DEPOS
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not there's an issue with them having stock in the
company, you know, ﬁhat we're working on behalf of
in the office. I mean, that's -- I was worried that
people would take that as wrongdoing. I mean,
that's -~

Q Was that discussed among staff?

A Yeah. I mean, you saw that in some of the

other -- well, you saw that in some of like my

- concern about that in some of the other text

messagés, we were worried about it being used
against us politicaily and, you know, trying to
paint Mike as something that we don't believe is
true, you know, so. |
- Q Obviously, I am guessing from the inquiry

from the Pittsburgh Post Gazette, you know, they're
framing this as a potential ethics issue,

‘A Uh-huh.

| Q How does the Congressman respond to you, you
know, and to the implication that the timing of this
purchase is suspect? What are his initial reactions
to you? |

A Trying to think back to the calls, but I

T T P Ny
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don't -~ I mean, you know, just knowing him, I mean,
obviously, I think he would be frustrated that that
would be the implication or the insinuaﬁion.— But,
again, because this was so long ago, I can't go back
and like actually give you a detailed thing about
his response. I wish that I could, but T just
can't. And I don't want to do thaty you know, and
be wrong.

Q 1Is there an office, you know, is there an

office policy about staff members and the purchase

0f stock or securities?

A An office policy about it? I'm not aware of
one, if there is. |

Q I guess what I;m -= maybe I can ask it this
Way: Do folks in the office, you know, buy and
trade securities? |

A I don't know of anyone -~ I don't know of
anyone else's financial situation. I don't buy
individual stocks. |

- Q I guess the question I'm getting at, or_the

issue that I'm struggling with here is just, ybu

know, given the timing and what you knew at the time
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about the potential layoffs coming off the table and
there being a deal with the Department of Commerce
initiating the Section 232 review, you know, would
you have felt comfoftable, based upon that
khowledge, purchasing securities at that time?

A Me, personally?

Q Right, because ~-

A No. |

Q Sorry.

A No. T mean, I don't buy individual stocks
anymore, or I used to do thét in college, but then I
stopped doing that. Sd I don't -- I wouldn't have
done that, but I don't know what that means for
their state of mind or why they did it or anything
like that. | |

Q Well, and tell me why wouldn't you héve done
that?

A T don't know. I wouldn't want -- I just --
I wouldn't waﬁt'the appearance of any wrongdoing,
even if there was nothing wrong with it,

MR. BROWN: Omar, did you want to jump in?

MR. ASHMAWY: Actually, no. You just asked
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‘the question I was going to ask. I'm good.

- MR, BROWN: Okay.

Q_ And I ask that, Witness 1, not to =-- you
know, I know it's a hypothetical for you, but you're
in the position of having -~ you're in the position
of knowing.sort of what was going on in the office
and what the coffice was awaie of at the time. And
so I'm -~ I'm trying to get a sense Of_whether or
not there was a sense in the office that, you know,
the timing of these trades was suspect, given the
information that was known to £olks in the office,
given their positions, given'their official
positions?

A I mean, I don't recall eve? like talking
specifically about that with anyone. But you're
asking me what I thought, and I just -- what I
think, if it were me, I probably wouldn't have done
it. But that doesn't mean, in my mind, that what
they did was wrong or she did was wrong. Again, I

don't know what, if anything, they talked about or

what anything other than what's in the statement, I

don't know anything about a motivation other than

™ -
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what's here, so.
Q And I appreciate all that, like I said. I'm

just trying to get at, you know, you've got ~-- you

'have a better sense than I do, certainly,'what was

known at what time, but I completely understand what
you're saying. | |
MR. BROWN: Let me pull up, Saul, if we can,
can you pull up Document 12. That's thé PTR.
(Document 12, Periodic Transaction
Report, marked for-identifibation and retained by
Attorney Brown.)

Q You know what that is, Witness 1, the
periodic transaction report? ‘Have you seen this?

A Take a look at it, see if I've seen it.

Q Witness 1, I don't know if you have seen
this report. Have you seen this report before?

A It.looks familiar. I'm wondering if the
reporter senﬁ it to me. That might be where I've
seen 1it, 7

Q Well, take your time and look at it for a

second here. I'll just highlight a couple things

for you.

e O PR e A R R A M i

" PLANET DEPO
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

21-8221_0060

A AR e

T T

e R A A O A S O R L P (R O RS T i P R R o G e e VLR e ST



W N =

s

v oo -3 oy n

11

12

13
14

15

16

17
18

19

20
21
22

Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One
Conducted on May 20, 2021 - : 56

So this is a periodic transaction report
from Representative Kelly. If you look at the
bottom there, the full asset name; it says Cleveland
Ciiffs, Inc, You can see the checkmark there, it
says, purchase, and it says between $15 and $50,000.

Now, if you look at the date there, it says

‘date of transaction, 4-29-20. April 29, 2020. And

then next to that it says date notified of
transaction, 5-27-20.
Do you know why those dates are different?
A The date? No, I don't. I have no idea why
those are different. 7
0 Have you ever talked to Matt or the

Congressman about those dates?

A No.
Q Okay, .
A No.

MR. BROWN: .Saul, can you pull up Document 8
real quick.

(Document 8, text message, marked for

identification and retained by Attorney Brown.)

Q This is a text message you provided. It's
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from Daniel, on Friday, September 18, at 1:44 p.m,
‘Daniel says, hey, there. I've been told the story
will run Sunday. | |

I take it this is Daniel Moore at the
Pittsburgh Post Gazette?

A Yes. -Thaﬁ's right, yes,

Q And he's saying, the story that you have
been going back and forth on will be published in
Sunday's paper? |

A Yes.

o Okay.

A I am trying to wrap it up, Witness 1. I
have just a couple more questions for you.

@ Do you guys work through -- do you guys in
the Kelly office, work through a -~ like a platform
like Teams or anything like that?

A No. i mean, we have it, but we have -- we
don't really use it.

Q0 Okay.

A At least I don't.

Q So if communications about any of thé stuff

that I request from you were going to have occurréd,
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it would have been text or e-mail or phone call?

A Yes. Yes, that's right.

Q And it 1odks like you went through both your
text and your emméils then and produced that?

A Yes.

@ Okay. In advance of this, in advance of
this interview, have you spoken to anybody else
about our office initiating an investigation or
producing documents or having to sit for an
interview?

A So-at one point my chief, Matt, asked for
some documents a while back. I don't remember
exactly when'it-was. And so then we -~ I think I
went through my e-mails for a certain period and
gave them to.him‘ And then I don't know what they
did with that stuff or what he did with that stuff.
And then when I got the e-mails from you that said
you had a communication for me, I was not ~~ I
wasn't sure what it was about. So he knows that I
got that. But yeah. Is that what you're aéking? |

Q Yes., It is. And have you guys discussed

request for information or this interview?
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A No., He has not -- basically, I expressed to
him that I was nervous about the situétion because I
didn't know what to expect from the process. He's
my boss,

Q Yep.

A- And, basically, all he said to me was, hey,
you need to just do ~~ you. know, do what you need.to
do, do what you think is right. | |

Q Okay.

A And that's all we've done. So we did not
discuss what I would be submitting, we did not
discus what I would say or -- and he did not
pressure me one'way or the other, whether to
participate or not.

Q Okay. |

MR. BROWN: Omar or Annie, do you guys have
any follow~up that you'd like to ask Witness 1?9
MR, ASHMAWY: Yes. Thank you, Jeff, |
QUESTIONING BY MR. ASHMAWY:
Q And, Witness 1, thank you very much for your

time as well. I appreciate it.

A Sure.

IR e

* PLANET DEPOS| |
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

21.9221_Do64

e B R TR e e e s e

L il

f s

E s T

D B e P o S S R e i




(Lol oo ~T oy n o 1oy e =

O N N T N e T T
N T N S t- T - T S N P U NCOIFR N

Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness One

Conducted on May 20, 2021 60

Q And, honestly, just pretty generically,

just -~

MR. BROWN: Omar, I don't think you're on
video. Are you? | _

ZOOM TECHNICIAN: His video is not showing,

MR. BROWN: There you go.

MR. ASHMAWY: There we are. Look at that.
Sorry about that. .

Q So, pretty generically, I wanted to ask you,

the statement about the Congressman's spouse's stock

purchase to the Pittsburgh Gazette, was that the
only public statement that you're aware of?

A No. So we sent -~ I believe we sent this

-one, and then I think a couple days later, from what

I recall, Daniel might have followed up. And then

we sent him like a brief statement about like when

‘we were certain that the investigation was moving

forward. And then I think I might be -- that might

be it.

Q Actually, I apologize. I don't think I
asked a specific enough question.

A Okay.
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Q Which is, the statement to the Pittsburgh
Gazette about why Ms. Kelly made the stock purchase,
to support the local buSLness, is that the only time
that explanatlon was made, as far as you know, in a
publlc manner?

A As far as f know, that's the only time I've
given it out to anyone except to the Butler Eagle,
who asked for our statement that we gave to the
Gazette. So yes. Other than the two times that I
gave the statement out, I'm not aware of it being
used elsewhere. Does that answer your question?

Q Yes, that answers it directly.

- And then even more generically, you said

that you used to trade stocks when you were in

‘college, it's not something you do anymore. I was

just wondering why? Like why don't you == you know,
is it becéuse you work in Congress now and you're
worried about the optics, you just don't like the
idea of trading stock anymore? Just curious.

A No, I stopped probably just shortly after

college because I no longer had time to delve into

what stocks were good td pick and whatnot. And, of
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course, now working for Congress, I just, you know,
I just do like random investing, So it's like the,

you know, the bot investing, it kind of just picks

where it —- you know what I'm saying, like you just

given money to like an auto investor, and then it
just picks for you and, yeah., So that's what I do.
Q And, again, just speaking for yourself and

no one else, do you think that trading specific

- stocks while being an employee of Congress or

working for a member or like us working for an

ethics organization, is potentially problematic, at

least from an optics perspective? ~Again, speaking
for yourself.

A Just speaking for me, yeah, I mean, I've
already said I probably wouldn't, but -

Q Okay. |

A ~- that doesn't mean that it's wrong or
anything like that, so.

.Q No. I understand --

A I probably wouldn't, but, yeah.

MR. ASHMAWY: ~Jeff, that's all I have., I

don't know if Annie has any questions.

e
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This is probably the last time you're going
to hear from me,‘Witness 1. So, again, thank you
very much for your time, and we really do appreciate
your cooperatioh. | |

MR. BROWN: Saul, can you take down the
document. |
FURTHER QUESTIONING BY MR. BROWN:

Q Witness 1, I did just have one more question
as I was flipping back through my notes here.

In the statement you provided to the
Pittsburgh Post Gazette and the Butler Eane that
Omar was just referencing, there were kiﬁd of two
parts. The second part, you said, whether a trade
investigation will be launched, quote, was ﬁncertain
until Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross confirmed
the plan in é private phone conversation with the
Congressman on May 1,

I take it that that's a reference to the
May 1 phone conversation that yoq were on with
Representativé Kelly and some others?

A That's correct, yeah,

Q Qkay. When you say it was uncertain, the
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§_ﬁ
o

initiation of the Section 232 investigation was
uncertain, 1t was uncertain in the sense that it had
not yet been publicly announced?

A That's right, and that's what a lot of us
thought was the -- was going to be the -- be what
meant that it was happening, that it was publicly
announced.

Q Okay.

A But, of course, the conversation with
Secretary Ross was a very close second to that.

Q Okay. | 7

A  So, yeah,

Q Given everything that we talked abdut.sort
of earlier on in this interview and all the
documents and such that we went through, is it fair
to say that, you know, it's, you know, uncertain in

the sense that it hasn't been announced, but you and

the office have gottén very good indications that it

is going to be announced, it is just a matter of

when, not 1if?
A I think that's a probably fair

characterization, but I would also say that, you
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know, we had been dealing with the issue for a long
time, and so until it actually was publicly
announced and until the Commerce Secretéry told Mike
directly, I don't know that we -~ any of us were
actually certain that it was -- it might occﬁr.

Q Okay; |

A  So does that make sense?

Q Yeah, no. That does. That absolutely makes

A Okay,

Q I think the poiht, maybe the clearer way to
ask this question is, there wés'nothing -- let me
rephrase.

Cleveland Cliffs, it sounds like, advised
Witness 2 that they had a conversation with
Coﬁm@rce, and. Secretary Ross indicated they were
going to initiate a Section 232 review, and then
Matt has a conversation later that day with somebody
at Commerce, who says, you know, the announcement,
it's coming, it's just a matter of when.

You know} I juSt want to make sure that‘

those clear -- those are -- what seem to be fairly
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clear indications that the announcement is coming.
I just want to make sure that there's nothing that
happened at any point in time to suggest that what
Secretary Ross had said or what this gentlemen from
thé White House had shared with Matt-had somehow
changed, and that the uncértainty stéms more from
wanting to see it in writing than it does from any
commﬁnication that wouid suggest that -

A Yes. I think that that's fair. Yeah, I
mean, I don't know exactiy what they were talking
about or if anything made theém uncertain about'it.
But, veah, it'é angeneﬁal feeling that until
something is publiciy announced, we aren't certain
that it is happening.

Q Okavy.

A 0Of course, but once the Secretary said, this

is happening, we are obviously much happier about

- it, much more certain, so.

Q Okay.

MR, BROWN: ALl right. Annie, did you have

anything for Witness 1°?

QUESTIONING BY MS. CHO:
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© I just had one follow up, and I'm sorry if I
missed it, if you answered this before. But
regarding Ms. Kelly, does she come down to the

office often and, you know, how involved is she with

the gtaff?

A She doesn't come to DC often, and usually
when she's here, I .don't think I've ever seen her
come into the office. So there are weeks where
she's driven down with Mike and spent the week here
doing whatever she does while she's here. But as
far as direct involvement with me, personally, I've
probably spoken to her only twice in two and a-hélf
years, and it wasn't about any of this,

Q@ ©Okay. And you're -- gorry. You can finish‘

A Couple of times,. _

Q Okay. And with regards to this -- her stock
purchase, was thatrever discussed in the office at
éll with hef, personally, with the ~-

A  Not with me,

Q Or you. Okay.

A No. .I'mean, if it did, which I don't think

it did, but I wasn't there. But I have never seen
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her in the DC officé that I can recall.
Q Okay. That's all I had.

MR, BROWN: All right. Well, with that,
Witness 1, thank yoﬁIVery much , -

I think we can go off the record. So,
Martin, if you want to stop the record at this
point, -that would be great.

(Off the.record discussion regarding
witness signature and the transcript order.)

(Audio recording ends; proceedings

concluded at 4:20 p.m., Eastern Standard Time.)

RN Py P T R T S I e S s e e

* PLANET DEP
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

Pt v

21-9221_0073

7 R R A

AR R o L2 PSR O e 2 T2 S o R T SR A SR e T

T P T X A ot



B o DN

w0 -3 &y

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Transeript of Virtual Interview - Witness One
Conducted on May 20, 2021

69

CERTIFICATE OF COURT REPORTER - NOTARY PUBLIC

I, Martin Onuegbu, the officer before whom
the foregoing proceedings were taken, do Hereby
certify that Said'proceedings were electronically
recorded by me; and that I am neither counsel for,
related to, nor emplgyéd by any of the parties to
this.case and have no interest,-fihancial or

otherwise, in its outconme.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

hand and affixed my notarial seal this 25th day of

‘May, 2021.

Martin Onuegbu, Notary Public

for the State of Maryland
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I, Annette M. Montalvo, do hereby certify
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‘that the foregoing transcript is a true and correct-

record of the recorded proceedings; that said
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proceedings were transcribed to the best of my
ability from the audio recording and supporting
information; and that I am neither counsel for,

related to, nor employed by any of the parties to
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10 | this case and have no interest, financlal or
11 | otherwise, in its outcome.
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L2t M RO GO VE S CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC,

L TN N T E I T BT PO PV T P 200 Publlc Squars, Sulle 3300, Ulevalana, UH 44114
N [UTEANOTRRE P 215 64 5700 cloyolandehils corm

January 15, 2020

The Honorable Wilbur L., Ross, Jr.
Secretary of Commerce

Herbiert Clark Hoover Building

- 1401 Constitution Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20230

Dear Secretary Ross:

On December 3, 2019, Cleveland-Ciiffs publicly announced that it had entered into a defiriitive merger
agreement to acquire AK Steel. Once final, this acquisition will bring together two storied, Ohio-basad
companies, with & combined workforce of approximately 11,700 employees. AK Steel is the sole producer of
. Grain-Orlented Electrical Steel (GOES) and Non-Oriented Electrical Steal (NOES) in the United States.
Production of GOES accounts for the majority of AK Steel's electrical stesl business. Given the importance of
maintaining the security and Integrity of the electrical grid, preserving this industry within the Uniled States
must be an imperative for the federal government. Simply put, we cannot rely on forgign powers to maintaln
our electrical grid. ‘

Thanks to the Section 232 steel tariffs implemented by President Trump's Administration, impors of GOES
colls Into the L8, market are down significantly over 2017 levels. However, during the same petiod, GOES
imports into Mexico and Canada have soared to a stunning 80% over 2016 levels (see attached GOES
‘fact sheet'). In order to continue capltalizing on unfairly-traded GOES from countries including Japan, Russia,
China and Korea, transformer manufacturers within the United States have moved production of laminations
and cores (intermediate products predominantly consisting of GOES by vaiue) to Canada and Mexico or are
sourcing these Intermediate inputs from those two courifries to evade the 232 tariff on GOES, importantly,
peither Mexico nor Canada have domestic GOES production. Rather, those countries are conduits for
circumvention of the Section 232 tariffs through the production and export of laminations and cores to

the U.S.

These unfair trade practices have degraded the domestic electrical steel market to the point where the viability
of malntaining AK Steel's electrical steel business is In immediate question. If AK Steel were to Idle its
electrical steelmaking operations, it would fikely result in the élimination of approximately 1,400 jobs at Butler
Works and over 100 jobs at the Zanesville Works finishing facility in Ohia. These workforce impacts would be
devastating to the Butler and Zanesville communities and would be deeply felt throughout the Westemn
Pennsylvania and Central Ohio regions due to the high spin-off value of steel johs, :

Furthermore, the challenges facing the electrical steel market were cited by the Department of
Commerce as one of the primary justifications of the Sectlon 232 tariffs. The idling of AK's alactrical
steel business would cede control of electrical transformer manufacturing capabilities to GOES producers in
China, Russia, Japan and Korea. _

| respectfully request your support of a standalone Section 232 on the transformer supply chainora
supplemental Section 232 (under the existing steal tariff structure) covering transformer laminations and cores,
which are simply cut or shaped electrical steel, that would address GOES tariff circumvention via production of
these products in Canada and Mexico, '

Please be assured that Cleveland-Cliffs is committed to the success of the AK Steel acquisition irrespective of
what becomes of its electrical steel division. However, for the sake of U.S. national security and the fate of

21-8221_0077



roughly 1,500 direct jobs in Pen'nsylvania and Ohio, | urge your support for action to address this blatant taritf
circumvention as soon as possible. _

| Hope to meet with you very soon to discuss the future of lectrical stee production in the United States:
Thank you for your consideration of this most important matter.

Ve

truly younrs,

Lovurenco Gon'calves
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer
Clevetand-Cliffs Inc.”

Enclosure

co: Ms. Nazakhtar Nikakitar, Under Secratary for Industry and Securlty — Deslgnate
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Wongresg of the Ynited Stutes
Wushington, DE 20515

‘March 6, 2020

“The Honorable Donald J. Trump
President of the United States
The White House
1600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20500

Dear Mr. President:

We write to express our urgent concerns threatening America’s electrical steel market. We have
strong reason to believe that unfairly traded imports of minimally transformed grain-oriented
clectrical steel (GOES) are pouring into Canada and Mexico, contraty to the intent of the
administration's action pursuant to Section 232 of the Trade Expansion Act of 1962, These

imports are then being used Lo create dawnstream products that are entering the U.S. at such low

prices they are further eroding the U.S. electrical steel market, We urge you and the _
administration to address this matter immediately before the doots of the last American maker of
electrical steel cloge.

We represent the nation’s only producer of electrical steel, AK Steel, which will soon be

- acquired by Cleveland-Cliffs. This week, Lourenco Goncalves, chairman and chief executive
officer of Cleveland-Cliffs testified before the Congressional Steel Caucus in Washington, D.C.,
that unless his company receives Section 232 tariff relief, he will be forced to close the two AK
Steel plants in our districts, This would mean the loss of thousands of jobs in Butfer,
Pennsylvania, and Zanesville, Oio, Moreover, if the AK. Steef plants close, this country will no
longer produce GOES that go into transformers for the electrical grid, which poses a serious
nationat security risk. g

The United States cannot afford to lose the one remaining producer for grain-oriented electrical
steel (GOES), for economic or national security reasons, GOES, which is used to make
electrical transformers, i critical for our national power grid. Without AK Steel’s GOES, the
U.S, will be solely reliant on overseas production for material that supports America’s critical
infrastructure. If the nationat electrical grid were to be attacked or compromised by a natural
disaster, the U.S. would need a dependable source of electrical steel to altow for rapid repair,
Becoming wholly dependent on foreign producers for this vital product puts Americans at grave
and unnecegsary risk, : . .

Fornow, U.8. imports of GOES are restricted by tariffs imposed ynder Section 232 of the Trade
Expansion Act of 1962. However, there has been a dramatic increase in imparted GOES into
Canada and Mexico ~ two countries with no capacity to make GOES. GOES shipped to Canada
and Mexico does not stay there. Instead, after very limited processing, much of it enters the U.S.
market in the form of interoal components of electric transformers. These products inelude

PRINTED ON REUYOLED PAPER
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laminations, cores, and core assemblies — products that generally consist of GOES that has been
mierely stacked, slit, or wound.

We appreciate your valiant work to improve the U.8. global trade situation and national security,
especially your work to rebuild and support the American steel industry and its workers. We
implore the U,8. Trade Representative and the Department of Commerce to address this matter

immediately before our communities lose thousands of jobs and our country sees the doors of the

last American maker of electrical steel shuttered. America caninot afford to lose its last
remaining producer of electrical steel.

Sincerely,
T{fy Balderson o Mike Kelly
Member of Congress ' Merober of Congress
cet Ambassador Robert Lighthizer
Secretary Wilbur Ross
"
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Chairman Lamb:

Rep. Kelly:

Mr. Gonealves:

Thank you, happy to have another Western Pennsylvénian with us today,
Mr. Kelly recognized for three minutes.

Thank you chairman, thank you all for being here, but more than anything
else, thank you for your patience. I came here in 2011, and you put out the
same message that you’re putting out today. And we all sat up here and we
appreciated you saying we want o thank you for your service, and we
didn’t do a damn thing for you. Not until 2017 did anybody actually back
up their words with some action.

~Now, I represent Pennsylvania’s 16" congressional district, but more than

anything else, about a half a mile down over the hill where I've spent most
of my life, and my family’s business, is a company called AK Steel. And

Mr. Gonealves is with us today, and I want you to talk about this because I -

am so — I'll just stop the first half — I’m so damn mad about what it is...
actions speak a hell of a lot louder than words. We’re in a death situation
right now because we are the last producer of electrical steel in the United

States, grain oriented electrical steel. Could you please share with the rest

of the people here today, and listen I mean this —I am so glad you are
here. I can’t believe that you’ve sat there for so many years telling us what
your problem is and we keep nodding our heads and tell you we’re going
to do something about it, and we didn’t do anything about it until 2017.
The Congress had nothing to do with it; it came from the White House, so
strong leadership.

Mr. Gonealves if you could, the state we are in today, and the danger we
have of losing our ability to make grain oriented electrical steel in the
United States, and the way right now, it’s being circumvented. You know
you make steel in China and in Korea, you send it to Mexico over to
Tijuana and then they do their act on it, and then the send it back to the

States and they say no, no this isn’t foreign steel, This is from your friends

in Mexico, so friends shouldn’t treat friends that way. Would you please
talk about exactly what’s happening at AK. Steel and the danger the United
States has in losing that ability to make its own grain oriented electrical
steel?

‘Thank you Congressman Kelly, [ appreciate giving me the opportunity to

express that here. AK Steel is the last producer of grain oriented electrical
steel in the United States. What does that mean? It means we are the last
man standing between this country’s ability to produce transformers for
the clectric grid and having to import everything.

During the last few years, Section 232 action actually took care of the

dumped electrical steel from China, South Korea, and Japan. But bad

players always find a way to circumvent things, so couple clients — buyers

Page20of3
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Rep. Kelly:

of electric steel — grain oriented electric steel, found their way to put
pieces of equipment, not entire plants, pieces of equipment in Mexico, in
Canada, and they operate more or less like that. Instead of importing in the
coil directly from these three countries, they import the coil into the West
Coast of Mexico, then they slit the coils in bulks, move those coils by
truck between the West Coast of Mexico and Matamoros across the border
from Brownsville, Texas. Cut in pieces called laminations, these
laminations go on a truck. The truck goes across the border, and back into
for example, Mississippi, and build a beautiful made in USA transformer
done with dumped Chinese, South Korean, and Japanese steel with the
great help of our friends from Mexico, and our friends from Canada,

~ circumventing under our very nose, and taking advantage of our

friendship. That’s what’s happening.

But this company, I’m closing next week, I put three billion there, I put
another billion, so I understand numbers very well, And if I don’t get help
— and by the way, someone here who told that Section 232, I think it was
Vice-Chairman Bost, Section 232 was done among other things to protect
our ability to produce transforms. I'm telling you right now Chairman
Lamb, coming March 13, this thing is not corrected, I told Secretary of
Commerce, Wilbur Ross, that I'm not in this business to lose money, We
are together in the business of protecting the United States, but I can’t lose
money for that or af least not that much. I'm willing to lose a little bit, but
not that much. So, I’'m closing on the deal; I understand numbers; I know
what to do. I need help. The work is in Butler, PA and the workers in a
plant in Zanesville, Ohio also need help. I'm talking fifteen hundred jobs
in Butler, PA and 100 jobs in Zanesville, Ohio that will be gone. I promise
they will be gone if I don’t get help.

I want to thank you, but also there’s not many of our members left because
they’re off doing other things and that’s very important. We have watched
for 50 years the erosion of this business, and we’ve let it happen. There’s
an old saying, “you can’t forfeit the game and then cry because you lost.”

It’s time for us to stand up and actually defend these industries, not with
words, and not with an eye or two on the Hill ih Washington, D.C., but
actually back in the places that we represent and on the floor of the
Congress, and make sure we back this administration and encourage them
to continue to fight this the only way we can, I’m tired of losing jobs; I'm
tried of hearing about what we’re doing for people; and I’m tired of
hearing people say, “well there’s just nothing we can do about it.” Well
goddammit, find an answer and get it done. We’re losing too many jobs.
Thank you very much for being here.
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Eisenberger, Andrew — |

From: McCleaf, Anna

Sent: : Thursday, May 7, 2020 2:44 PM
To: : ' Eisenberger, Andrew

Subject: " AK Steel Letter

Attachments: AK Steel.docx

Attached is our draft for the updated AK Steel letter.
Thanks!

Anna McCleaf | Legislative Correspondent
U.S. Representative Mike Kelly (PA-16)
1707 Longworth House Office Building
(202) 225-5406 | www kelly.house.gov
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Eisenberger, Andrew

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Anna -
My changes in red.

Andrew Eisenberger
Communications Director
Rep. Mike Kelly | PA-16
(202) 225-5406

0o

Eisenberger, Andrew

Thursday, May 7, 2020 2:58 PM
Anna McCleaf

AK Steel

AK Steel.docx
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Thank you for contacting me regarding AKX Steel, I appreciate hearing from you on this
important matter for the Butler community and America as a whole.

As you may know, Lourenco Gonealves, the chairman and chief executive officer of Cleveland-
Cliffs, which owns AK Steel, testified before the Congressional Steel Caucus that wuless certain
electrical steel products receive Section 232 taviff protection, he will be forced to close the Butler
plant. Currently, U.S. imports of grain-oriented electrical steel (GOES) from China are assessed
Section 232 tariffs under the Trade Expansion Act of 1962, but several nations are exploiting a
loophole by dumping cheaper, slightly modified product info Mexico and Canada. Those
products inevitably make their way into the United States, undercutting AK Steel’s ability to
continue producing electrical steel. AK Steel is the last American electrical steelmaker, and if
these unfair frade practices continue, the United States will rely on foreign nations for key
components of its electrical grid. We cannot stand idly by and watch this happen. The loss of
this plant would be detrimental to our conununity and threaten national security.

Thankfully, On May 4, 2020, the U.S. Department of Commerce started an investigation into
whether imported GOES produets are a threat to America's national security interests. I
personally wrged President Trump and Secretary of Commeree Wilbur Ross to take this
necessary first step to save AK Steel, and I will continue working with the president, Secretary
Rosg, United States Trade Representative Robert Lighthizer, Mr. Gonealves, and labor
representatives at AK Steel to fight these unfair trade practices.

Again, thank you for expressing your thdughts on this important issue. Please do not hesitate to
contact me or my staff tff I can be of agsistance in the future.

If you would like to hear more from me on this issue and others, please subscribe to my
newsletter at www kelly. house.gov.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110" Congress as Amended

" Transcript of Interview of Witness Three

Review No, 21-9221
May 27,2021
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PROCEEDINGS
MR. BROWN: This is Jeff Brown with the

office of Congressional Ethics. With me or my

ceclleagues, Oﬁar Ashmawy and Annie Cho. Before
us today we have Witness 3. And we are
undertaking a remote video interview of Witness
3. And it is May 27, 2021 at 11:05 in the
morning.

Witness 3 has been given a copy of the
false statements warning, and signed the
acknowlédgment. And with that we will get
started.

So Witness 3, you were at the
LCepartment of Commerce previously. How long were
you there for.and what was your role?

WITNESS 3: I was at the Department of
Commerce for approximately two years, eight

months. In the final vear and a half I was in

the capacity of the acting assistant secretary
for legislative affairs.
MR. BROWN: Okay. S50 since -- from

January 2020 forward until you left, acting

888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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assistantrsecretary for legislative and
government affairs?

WITNESS 3: Yes.

MR. BROWN: Okay.. What are your duties
in that role?

WITNESS 3: I'm sorry, Jeff. I'm
sorry. Your question -- I'm no longer in that
capacity. Are We saying something differently?
I'm no longer in that capacity. My
réspohsibilities as acting assistant secretary
ended- on January 20th. Did we get that right?

MR. BROWN: We didn't cover that, but T
knew that. And thank vyou for clarifying.

WITNESS 3: Okay.

MR. BROWN: Sc from Januvary -—-

WITNESS 3: Past tense, yeah.

MR. BROWN: From January 2020 through
Januéry 2021, that was the role that you held?

WITNESS 3: Well, yeah. It was
actually November 2019 through —- actually
Octbber 2018 through January 20, 2021, ves. Jﬁst

to kind of set the parameters.
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MR. BROWN: And just walk me through,
what were your responsibilities in that fole?

WITNESS 3: My responsibilities as the
acting assistant secretary included -- well, I |
was the principal liaison between the
administration, United States Cpngress, the

Department of Commerce, tribes, state, and local

governments. 1In sort of a 30,000 foot overview I

was responsible for coordinating and overseeing
the Department's legislative initiatives and
articulating the Department's positions on

legislative initiatives and proposals to

Congress, tribes, state governments, and local

governments.
"MR. BROWN: And that's the senior-most

position in the legislative affairs shop; is that

correct?

WITNESS 3: It is. It is. I had a
staff of probably a half a dozen deputies that
worked with me and under me. But, yves, the
assistant secretary is the senior-most position
within the legislative affairs unit,.

EE TR e M e R
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MR. BROWN: And so how close did that
put you to decision-makers like Secretary Ross or
his Chief of Staff? How frequently are you

interacting with the Secretary and his peoplea?

WITNESS 3: "Quite frequently.

MR. BROWN: Okay. My real goal with
this interview is to just walk you through a
timeline of events abcut the Section 232
investigation that was ultimately publicly
announced on May 4th. And I want to do that
primarily in reference to the documents. But

before I do that, I am going to just ask you, now

- that you've —- I sent you a couple of documents

to try and jog your memory on some of these
issues and hopefully you had a chance to think
about these issues a little bit.

50 before I get to any documents, I'm
Just going to ask you to tell me when did the
Department of Commerce first decide internally

that it was going to initiate this Section 232

.review on AK Stesl?

i
:
WITNESS 3: My recollection is not , %

PLABEH?DEPOS
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strong on the specific date. 1 do recall
generally there wés a great deal of interést on
the part of ‘a 232 investigation that was
articulated from the Hill, primarily from the
Ohio and Pennsylﬁania congressicnal delegations,
both the Senate and the House of Representatives,
over a period of months before the May 4th
declaration.

When the determination was made to
proceed with the 232 investigation specifically,
on or abcut that -- on or about the May 4th -- T
don't know if I-ﬁecessarily have a specific date.
.i don't recall a specific date when the
determination was made. There was a -- it was on
cr about the time of that press release being
issued. |

MR. BROWN:,VOkay. Well, I have some
documents that I can walk you through and we will
get to those. But do you remember how the
decision, aven if'you don't remember a date, do

you remember how the decision came about

internally?

4 B e S DN B O, 0 Ao By
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WITNESS 3: I wasn't part of thé
decision-making process. So I don't have any
recollectién of how it was made. I know that
there was a great deal of -- I would say a great
deal of interest from outside stakeholders

including industry and elected officials from the

H1ll over a period of a month to my reccllection,

strongly urging the Department of Commerce and
BIS to consider self-initiating.

But ny reccllection how that decision
wag made -- that was a decisicn that would have
made -- been made directly within BIS. And I
wasn't involved in any of the day-to-day
decision¥making process in any of those
conversations. | .

MR. BROWN: Okay. The ultimate

decision likely made by BIS 1 assume in

conjunction with the secretary of commerce?’

WITNESS 3: I think that's a fair
representation. Again, I was not involved in any

of the decision-making process that would have

‘taken place between the secretary, the

PLANET DEPOS
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Secretary's Chief of Staff, or anyone within BIS
about the merits of proceediﬁg‘with such an
investigation.

MR. BROWN: But at some point it is

decided and then you are alerted to that. And

then it may make sense —— I will walk you through

some documents --—

WITNESS 2: Surae.

MR. BROWN: 2And we will see if I can't
Jjog ycur recollection on this stuff little bit.

WITNESS 3: Sure,

MR. BRCWN: So Jesse, can you.pull'upm
documents 1 and 27

PD TECHNICIAN: Just one moment.

MR. BROWN: And Witness 3, while he
pulls those up, T will mention the first document
is an email.- The second document_is the April 15
letter, which I already provided you a copy of.

WITNESS 3: 1Is the April 15 letter,
Jeff, the letter from the members of Congress?

MR. BROWN: Tt is. It is, yes.

WITNESS 3: Ckay.

A A R
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MR. BROWN: One of them, yes.
WITNESS 3: Okay. |
MR. BROWN: The one that I sent you.
WITNESS 3: Sure. That makes sense.
All right.
MR. BROWN: And actually =— I have

control here?

WITNESS 3:

Okay, sorry. Oh, my gosh.

You guys are straining my eves here.

MR. BROWN:

.Yeah, give me one second,

Witness 3, I will make this bigger for you.

MR. BROWN:

Jesse, can you -- can we

actually do it such that we just have Document 1

up and enlarged?

PD TECHNICIAN: Yeah, just one secénd.

MR. BROWN:

The joys of

WITNESS 3:
understandable. TIt's
aged eye. Less about

my cyesight not being

MR. BROWN: All right,

Thank you.’

doing this rémotely.
That's totally

more of the strain on my
the remoteness, more about
what it once was,

‘JeSSe, if you.
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could, give me control of this.
| MR. BROWN: Witness 3, I will walk you

through it.

WITNESS 3: Creat.

MR. BROWN: Jesse, you just let me know
when I -- do I have control of this'point?

PD TECHNICIAN: You should have control
new, sir.

'MR. BROWN: Okay, there we go. Thank
you, |

MR. BROWN: All right, Witness 3. I'm
going to start here at the bottom. You can see
here we've got an April 15, 2020 email from Matt
Stroia to, it appears to be, you, Witness 3, and
Garrett.

(Exhibit 1 was ihtroduced)

MR. BROWNf Just a heads up, this
letter was sent over to the White House today

regarding AK Steel/232 teariff issue. Thanks,

Matt.

Just a couple of questions on this

email. First of all, who is Garrett?

SRR A 1t PR
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WITNESS 3: I don't know who Garrett
is. Is it -- maybe it's -~ T just have no
iecollection who Garrett is. So maybe it —-
maybe if it's in the rest of the thread it will
jog my memory, but I don't know who Garrett is at
this point.

MR. BROWN: Tet's see if his last name

1s on any of this. Garrett Zigler?

WITNESS 3: Garrett Zigler, he's in
ECP. I don't -— I'm not ~- I don't ~- Ifm not
familiar with Garrett Zigler.

MR. BROWN: Okay. Who is Matt Stroia?

WITNESS 3: I believe Matt Strecia was
or i1s -- at that time was Ceongressman Kelly of
Pennsylvania*s Chief  of Staff.

MR. BROWN: Ckay. How well do you know
or how frequently do you interact; did you
interact with Matt Strdia? |

WITNESS.3: Infrequently. I mean, my
interaction with Mr. Stroia was limited to his
advocacy on béhalf of this issue for constituents

in his boss' congressional district.

i R AN S TR
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MR. BROWN: And talk to me just
generally. What do you remember about his
advocacy with respect to this issue?

WITNESS 3: Nothing stocd out more --
nothinq stood out from his advocacy any -
differently from.the reét of the Pennsylvania and
Ohio delégation. The entire delegations from
both of those states were —- my recoilection is,
were regularly -- and I don't know how you define
regularly. But on more than one ccecasion over a
pefiod of time reaching out to the offices of the
secretary on behalf of this 232 tariff issue.

S0 he was one of many chiefs of staff

cr legislative directors or members of Congress

that would have, as my reccllection serves me,

would have been in contact with us to exXpress an
opinion on this issue.

MR. BROWN: Qkay. Let's walk through
this email a little bit further. Matt's email |
ﬁas at 1:51 Lo you. You respond the same day,

3:32 p.m. and say, Matt, thanks for sharing., I

" will be sure to provide this to the Secretary.

 PLANET DEPOS
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Did this get'shared with the secretary?

WITNESS 3: My recollection is any
corfespondence that came in -- now, I don't the
attachment there. If you have the attachment —--
is thelattachment the leﬁter that you sent me?

MR. BROWN: That is right:

WITNESS 3: I'm assuming it is. Yeah,
any congressional cbrrespondence that we received
on this issue or any issue, for that matter,
would've been included in the secretary's, what
we call daily briefing book, which would have
been his schedule as well as correspondence that
came in from elected officials. So I'm confident
that this letter would have been included in
that.

MR. BROWN: So that's how he would have
got it?' It's not You personally forwarding
aleng? It's materials‘like this are put'together
and provided to the secretary each morning
(inaudible) ? |

WITNESS 3: Yeah, correct. Correct,
This letter that I mean, it's a little wonky, but

&&mmmwmmmmwmﬁiiNﬁf?ﬁ??;?mmmew
- 888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDFPOS.COM
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this letter, like all congressionai, or all
correspendence in general, would have first came
in. It would have been forwarded to the
executive secretary —-- the office of the
executive.secretary, which handles all inceming
correspondence. And then the executive secretary
would have -- who is responsible for preparing
the daily briefing, but would have included this
in the secreﬁary's daily briefing book and would

have alsc logged it électronically,'so to épeak,

80 that would be a historical record of it,

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 3: But to answer your
question, no, I would not have personally shared
i1t with the secretary, but it would have been
shared withlthe secretary via the executive
secretary internal letter processing protocol.

MR. BROWN: Understood. Let's scroll
up nere little bit. oOn April 22, so a couple
days later, Matt folloWs.up with you and says,
Just wanted to follow up on this letter. I know

there's a lot going on, but things are getting

RN A s TSN AT FIR S R
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dire at the Butler,APA plant (1,400 employees in
the last U.S. maker of electrical steel). -

Then you are asked if you were advised
on developments.: You respend on April 22, the
same day, a couple of hours later copying a few
other folks. I'll give you'a chance to read your
response before asking thelquestiqns.

WITNESS 3: That's the same day Jeff?

MR. BROWN: Yes.

WITNESS 3: Okay, gotcha.

MR. BROWN: (Inaudible).

WITNESS 3: That's okay. No, rno, I'm
SOrfy. I just wanted to make sure.

.Okay. Yeah, read it.

MR, BROWN; Is this an accurate
asseésment of the state of play Qﬁ‘the 232 issue
on the 22nd?

WITNESS 3: I believe so.

MR. BROWN: Okay. &And how do YOU -=
how are you aware of these issues? Like, how are
you crafting this‘response to Matt?

WITNESS 3: My recollection of this is

P"mqfﬁ?aﬁfdsr B
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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that there was a phone call —— and my memory is a
little vague on this. Bﬁt I believe there was a
phone call between Congressman Kelly and Nazak.
And Nazak is Nazak Nikakhtar. She would have
been the deputy secretary. I'm sorry, the

assistant secretary of ITA, which my recollection

is both BIS and ITA sort of have jurisdiction

over 232. One is the enforcement arm.énd one 1is

the -- sort of the'merit decision arm of it. And
they both work jointly. So it doesn't strike me

as anything unusual that somebody from ITA would

have been conversing. with a Congressman on an

issue that is important to his or her

- constituency.

50 I would have -~ you know, in a
perfect world, I would have been flagged that a
converéation was going to take place with a
member of Congress and one of our agencies and
bureaus. But it might not come as a surprise to
you that it's not often the case -- it's not

always the case, I should say, where -- in which

I would have been informed, but it appears in

" PLANET DEPOS |
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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this instance I was informed, which is a delight
to see. But are many instances where the
agencies or the bureaus are having one off
conversations with elected officials that T don't
learn about until after the fact.,

But it appears on this one that T was

at least part of a cenversation, which is

heartening to know.
MR. BROWN: S0 that seems to me you re
primarily referrlng to ~-1I thlnk it's the thlrd

sentence here. I know this issue is a pricrity

for the Congressman as I was on a call with him

and Nazak from ITA. And then you go on and say,
As you know, the Department is familiar with the

company's concern and has been engaged with them

‘through the course of many meetings and

discussicns.

VWere you involved with the priocr calls?
As we have seen, there's been a fair bit of
corréspondence between Cieveland~Cliffs and AK

Steel and the Secretary's office. So I'm trying .

to get a sense -~ you're -- it sounds like you're

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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looped into this to some degree, or did you have
to reach out somewhere else to try and —- to
learn all this stuff? Or were you able to put
this email together from the knowlédge that vyou
had?

WITNESS 3: My recollection is that
there were many forms of conversations, whether
it was email correspondence or phone calls or
letters from members of Congress, including Mr.
Kelly, to both ITA and BIS on this issue. My
involvement in terms of speaking directly with
company officials on this matter ——.I wouid not
have been involved in any of these conversatiens.
I think I'm confident that when the Department
and BIS and ITA consider a 232 investigation,
that there is a comment period and there is an
- ability to express opinions from all
stakeholders;.including Cleveland—Cliffs I guess
in this case, or others.

So none of this strikes me -- none of
this really strikes me as_somethiﬁg that is

unusual. It doesn't stand cut to me as being

AR A PR EEERITE
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necessarily different from anyone else. I
believe -- I would guess, Jeff, that there might
have been an open -- or something for the record
for this if there was a conversation. But that
would have been probably Nazak's responsibility
or somebody from iTAlor BIS.

- But those day to day conversations on
decision-makings pertaining to 232, I was limited
at best in my involvement in thdse. I would have
been brought in at the tail end to deal with
communicating'with the Congressman or linking a
Congressman to an.appropriate perscn within the
Department.or a staff member, but sort of the
day-to-day decision making as it relates to that
third sentence that you reference, the Department
of Commerce connected with the cbmpany, I don't

believe I was engaged in any of those sort of

- day-to-day decision-making conversations.

MR. BROWN: Okay. You mentioned when
we first spoke -- and I'm just looking at the
dates here noticing this is sort of, you know

this is April, end of April 2020. So this is

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM _
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shortly after the world shuts down because of the

pandemic.

WITNESS 3: Yeah.

MR. BROWN: And you had mentioned in
our initial conversation that obviously, given
the state of affairs in the United States and
elsewhere, that a lot of the Department's focus
probably would've been on coronavirus issues.

During the same timeframe, there does
seem to be a lot ¢f engagement betwaen Secretary
Ross and Cleveland-Cliffs and their lobbyists and

such., I'm wondering -- and again, please, if you

‘don't have -- if you're not the person who would

have had a lot of exposure to this, let me know.

But it Seems.like'there is a fair bit of back-
and-forth and a fair bit of -~ you knbw,
Cleveland-Cliffs is pressing this issue pretty
hard. And they are able to get access to the
Secretary and ultimately the Section 232
investigation. |

S0 I'm wondering, is this level of --

is this level of communication and correspondence

ST e TR
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and meetings with the Secretary and the senior
officials, is that ordinary? Particulaﬁly in
this timeframe?

WITNESS 3: It doesn't strike me as
unusual. I think any -- I would step back and
say all 232 investigations tend to elicit a |
significant amount of cutside stakeholder
interests. So whether it's this one or whether
it was aluminum, or steel, or autcs, the 232
inVestigatioﬁs in particular elicit a signifiCant
amount of ouﬁside interest. So I don't want to
isolate this one from any of the other 232
investigatioﬁs.

I would venture to guess that the
amount of interest in this és it relates to,

iet's say the 232 investigation of automobiles,

would be very similar. There is just as the 232

investigations by their nature elicits a

significant amount of outside stakeholder

interest, including from elected officials. And

they are just -- they are big deal items, to put

it kind of, sort of simple. They have -- impact

e
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888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

r—
S R e

gzmmmmmmmmm

21-9221_0114



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

Transcript of Witness 3
Conducted on May 27, 2021 24

findings, and again, I was not involved in the

a lot of stakeholders,

And so this 232 investigation versus
something of less significance within BIS
would ~-- it doesn't surprise me that fhe
Secretary would be involved and it doesn't

surprise me that elected officials would be as

involved as much on this because it is a 232,
generally speaking, a 232 investigation, which
again tends to generaté a great deal of intereét
from cutside stakeholders.

MR. BROWN: You said 232 investigations
tend to be a big deal. Can ycu elaborate on
that? Why are they_such a bilg deal-?

| WITNESS 3: I think the fact that the

investigation could lead tc, depending con its

decisicon-making, but depending on the findings of
the investigation, it could lead to a

determinaticn of tariffs and that could lead to a

potential shift in a marketrsource, so to speak.
S0 I think that -- I think that alone is why the

232 investigations merited -- or demenstrated a E

s B R T e B PP et e
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lot of interest.

And the 232, keep in mind, before
President Trump had been in office, the 232,
while it was a vehiele that had been in law for
many years, was not used asg frequently. Anﬁ SO
this was tne first time in probably several
administratione across many presidents,
Republican and Democfat, that used the 232 —- 1
don't want to say aggressively, but more |
frequently I guess. And so I think by the very
nature there was a lot of -- T think the outside
stakeholders were somewhat uncertain about 232
despite it had been on the bocks.

And I think the frequency in which the
232 was being utilized as a tool by the
administration to combat what they thought was
unfair trade practices might have been something
that outside stakeholders hadn't been necessarily
used to from pricr administrations.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

MR. BROWN: Jesse, can you pull up

document three?
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And while he is doing that Witness 3, I
will ask you -- Eileen Dombrowski is on this %
email., And it's my impreséion she is the
legislative affairs shop. But who is she?

WITNESS 3: Eileen worked for me. She
was one of my'staff members., She.handled the BIS
portfolio. So Jeff, similar to a congressional
office_where you divide the issue portfolios l
-between your legislative director and your :
lagislative aides. Think of it sort of that
structure, if that gives.you some. good
comparison. |
| Our legislative affairs shop at the - F

Department of Commerce was divided in portfolios,

And so the issues of the BIS portfolio fell
under Eileen's responsibility. But she was on

my -- I think her title was legislative affairs

specialist, but she was one of my -- she worked

for me. She was on my staff,
MR. BROWN: Would she have any more or
less insight into the 232 announcement than. you

would have?
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WITNESS 3: She might. She might,
Only because it was her -- she was more involved
on the day-to-day issues of all things BIS. And
so she -~ I mean, she might get I gén't say with
certainty, but she might.

MR, BROWN: She wouldn't have though --
she would not havé likely had more infofmation
than yéu about when internal decisions were made
about deciding to initiate the 232 investigation?

WITNESS 3: I can't say with certainty,
She might only because she worked on an hourly |
basis with BIS and maybe I worked on a daily
basis with BIS.
MR, BROWN}' Okay.
WITNESS 3: I covered all portfolios.
MR. BROWN: Right,

WITNESS 3: So depending on if I was

focused on other things, which in this period of

time, the Cares Act funding and COVID response
was occupying a great deal of my bandwidth in
addition to the census related activities. So

I -~ it wouldn't surprise me if Eileen had some
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greater interaction on sort of the less than
30,000 foot level of some of these conversations.
But the decision-making side of it would've been
wholly within BIS and the secretary himself,
| MR. BROWN: Okay. The last email
string we were looking at was the 20 -- I believe
it was the 23rd, April 22nd and 23rd. | |

WITNESS 3: Yes.

MR. BROWN: Now I've got up in front of
you another email string.here. You can see the
first email is Sunday, April 26, Just after noon,
from you to a variety of individuals on the Hill
and copying some folks at the Department of
Commerce. The email suﬁject line reads,

conference call re Cleveland-Cliffs Incorporated.

for a staff briefing regarding Cleveland-Cliffs
ron Monday, April.27 at 4:00 p.m. And then go on
to-talk about the purpose of the call. Why was
this call set up? |

(Exhibit 3 introduced)

WITNESS 3: If my recollection serves
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me, I believe it was in response to a -- the
continuation of -- T'm Just looking at ~- this is
both the Ohio and the Pennsylvania delegation
memberé. I think it was just a -~ in response to
the congressioﬁal delegation from those two
states asking questions. And it was g ~- an
opportunity to have one conversation with
everyone versus a number of one off conversations
separately. And I think it was more of.a useful
exercise of efficiency to answer any questions
that the staff members from these two
delegations, if they had any, could,be addressed,

MR. BROWN: Did anything specific

'prompt this? Or was it Just that there was a lot

of phone calls and a lot of pressure being
applied from these various offices?

WITNESS 3: My (inaudible) recollection
it was just the normal phone calls (inaudible)
and emails (inaudible), Not even sure 1f this

call eventually took place. But my

recollection -- it wouldn't be uncommon. We held

conference calls with staff on the Hill for

RN
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ﬁarious reasons throughout the Department on --
and agencies on a regular basis.

So this would have been, my
recollection, a good way to utilize some measures
of efficiency to talk about it once instead of
many times. We would have done this for the
Census Bureau. We would have done this for —-— T
mean, we regularly engaged in conference calls
with Hill-staff to give them updates and to do it
an efficien£ manner, ' |

So fhis_doesn't strike me as anyfhing
unusual bther than a way to answer, be respensive
to everyone all at once as opposed to many
people, many different times.

MR. BROWN: Okay. Let me scroll up
here a little bit. The first email you sent was
Sﬁnday, April 26 at 12:05 p.m.. And then Harry
Kumar on the‘following day at 12:30, 12:37 in the
afternoon, sends a follow-up. Says, Hey all,
apologies for the short notice. Because of
scheduling conflicts, we're going to pull this

from the calendar. Is this -- was this pulled
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because of scheduling conflicts?
WITNESS 3: You know, I don't recéll.
I just vaguely remembei that we did pull this
call. And I do believe it was because of
scheduling conflicts., And thén I == yeah, I
honestly don't remember this call taking place.
So it's funny because when I first read 1t, I
felt like we ended up pulling this down because
of scheduling cénflicts. |
' MR. BROWN: And who's Harry Kumar?
WITNESS 3: Harry would've been my
~deputy as well. Harry would've been —- I think
his title was director of federal legislative
‘affairs., But he would've worked with me as well
in our office of legislative affairs.
| MR. BROWN: And how well-versed is. he
on things relaﬁed to Cleveland-Cliffs of 232
ihvestigations?
WITNESS 3: FEileen handled the
portfolio for BIS. So she would have been the
most versed because that was her issue area.

Harry and I -- Harry would have been read-in
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because we have weekly meetings to talk about
priorities throughout the Qeek. But he would
have been marginally -~ I think probably the best
way to describe it,‘marginally aware of it
because of the nature in which we communicated
with whether it was weekly tag ups or end of the
week wrap-ups or just going over what's going on
each week. So he would've had some basic
familiarity, but probably not necessarily in the
weeds_as_much as Eileen would have been because
he didn't have that portfolio.
| MR, BROWN: You say we will be -- or

Harry says, We will be inrtouch soon. Do you
know if this call got rescheduled?

WITNESS 3: I can't recall, Jeff. I
don't know. |

MR. BROWN: Okay. Let me go to
Document 10. |

WITNESS 3: This was the 27th, right?
So this would've been dnly maybe a week out. from
I think the announcement.

MR. BROWN: Right.
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WITNESS 3: But I don't recall if it
was ever rescheduled,

MR, BROWN: Okay. Well, I'm going to
go to document 10, Witness-B‘ And I will tell
you, . you're not on document 10. But I'm hoping
you can help explain some of it to me.

© WITNESS 3: sure.

MR. BROWN: And this‘is a Saturday,
April 25 email, |

(Document 10 introduced)

- MR. BRCWN: So that ﬁould be the day
before you sent the last email that we just
looked at. And if you.look here, it's from
Wilbur Ross on Satﬁrday, April 25 at about 9:14
in the morning. And it's too
Bucks3421-. Do you know who
Bucks3421 —- '

.WITNESS 3: I don't. Yeah, I_do not
recognize who Bucks3421 is, no.

MR. BROWN: What do you =-- when you

read this email, what you understand is going on

‘here?
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WITNESS 3: So this is Wilbur's
writing? This piece —— if T understand this,
this is Wilbur writing this piece with Mike
from ~- |

(Crosstalk)

WITNESS 3: "Okay, yeah. So my guess
is, if I'm understanding this, Mike would have --
but you're asking me to infer a lot. So I could
be completely.wrong. Mike would be Mike., I'm
guessing Mike would_be Mike Walsh, becausé Mike
Walsh is the ~- |

MR, BROWN: That's his Chief of Staff,

WITNESS 3: .That's his Chief of Staff,
‘But Mike was also dual headed. He was thelchief
of staff, but he was also the acting --

MR. BROWN: Chief, yeah.

WITNESS 3: At this time he would have
been the acting GC at that point. I think he
would have been the acting GC. T might be wrong
on the date that he became acting GC, Bﬁt‘my

guess is that Mike and this would be -- Mike

Walsh a time slot for a call this afternocon or

AR L e PR AT

'PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

21-9221_0125

L TSR e g e e e et e

e —s

Am—
i A

s

R O AL g



W

w0 o ~1 &y ¢

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Transcript of Witness 3
Conducted on May 27, 2021

35

LS TN

evening. I - no, I'm not sure who the MikeAis
there. But the only Mike who comes to my mind is
Mike Waish. And he's on the CC line, which makes
it a little weird.

MR. BROWN: .Yeah.

WITNESS 3: Cordell, obviously the
undersecretary of BIS., Aand Nazak is the
assistant secretary at ITA. Subject line is
Cleveland-Cliffs. And I'm sorry, I'm not really
sure, . I don't know who Bucks3421 is.

MR. BROWN: Okay. We'll let me just —-
let me interrupt you and say the way I read this
is I think similar to you. '?lease_set up with
Mike a time slot for a call this afternoon or
evening, Wilbur. I think that signed Wilbur
Ross. And the directive here is I -~ it seemed
to me is set up a time slot for a call, And
given.the subject line, seems to me like that
would be in relation to Cleveland~Cliffs, 1Is
that a fair understanding of this email to you?

WITNESS 3: Oh, absolutely.

MR. BROWN: You're not on this, but --
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WITNESS 3: No, absolutely. I think we
read it the same way.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 3: Wilbur sent an emaii to
somebody by the néme of Bﬁcks and CCed at least
four folks and asking him -- asking a call be set

up with somebody by the name of Mike to talk

~about Cleveland-Cliffs. I think that's Wilbur's

desk Wilbur, believe it or not, for an 82-year-
old man, was -- used the internet -~ or uses
emall pretty regularly. So it wouldn't be
unusual for any of us to get an email_from Wilbur
on a Friday, Saturday, Sunday or Monday. He was
very engaged with his emails.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 3: So this -- none of thig --

" yeah, definitely seems like his —-

MR. BROWN: So this email occurs on

Saturday. It seems to suggest that there is

going to be a call between Secretary Ross and
folks at Cleveland-Cliffs this weekend,

presumablyon Saﬁurday. Does seeing this
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emall -~ does it suggest to you or refresh your
recollection at all about why the staff briefing
call came off? In other words, do you recall
that a phone call with Cleveland-Cliffs occurfed?
WiTNESS 3: 8o this is before the staff
briefing? I'm trying to remember the chronology.
When was the staff briefing call? Was that —-
MR. BROWN: The staff briefing was set
for Monday. This -- you sent the email out on
Sunday about the staff briefing. 2And this email
is from Saturday mornlng. .80 you set the staff:
brleflng on Sunday I'm just wondering -~
WITNESS 3: Yeah, I hear --
MR. BROWN: You said scheduling
confiicts. And that was your recollection. But

I'm just trying to jog your memory. Do you

- recall a phone call being had? And did that

phone call -- were you ever updated on what that
phone call was about?
WITNESS 3: In reference to this phone

call here you are talking about?

MR. BROWN: Correct, yeah.
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WITNESS 3: Yeah, I don't know. Yeah,
No, I'm not aware of that.l I don't think I was
involved with any direct phone calls with
Clevaland~Cliffs; But I wouldn't say never,rbut
I don't know that I was involved in any of like
the CEO type phone calls with Cleveland-Cliffs.,

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 3: So I'm sorry I can't be
more helpful on this. I just don't know.

MR. BROWN: I appreciate it. Again,
only asking to the best of your recollection.
And I very much appreciate that-you are not on
this email. 'So a little harder to recall.

MR. BROWN: Jesse, can you do me a
favor and take this one down? And can you pull
up Document 47 |

' (Document 4 intﬁoduced.)
PD TECHNICIAN: Okay, just oné moment

MR. BROWN: And Witness 3, T will

frankly, again, you're not on this email, but I

want to walk you through this one and in

~particular timing of this_email because I think
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it becomes relevant to the next two documents
that I want to show you.

MR, BROWN: Let me see; do I have
contrbl here?

PD TECHNICIAN: Yoﬁ should have control
now,

“MR, BROWN: Thank you.
 MR. BROWN: I'm just going to scroll
down to the bottom here. And I will just walk
you through this. So now we are on April 28,
which is Tuesday. It was Monday.the 27th was the
staff briefing. And now we on Tuesday the 28th,
_Witness 5 at AK Steel, do you know who she is?

WITNESS 3: I don't.

MR. BROWN: Okay. Witness 5 is a
lobbyist for AKX Steel. It's a subsidiary of
Cleveland-Cliffs. | |

WITNESS 3: She's their in-house
lobbyist I would assume, right?

MR. BROWN: Yes, that has a steel plant

in Butler, Pennsylvania.

WITNESS 3: Gotcha.
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MR. BROWN: Witness 5 is writing an
emall to Witness 2. Do you know Witness 2°?

WITNESS 3: I don't.

.MR. BROWN: Okay Witness 2 is a staffer
in Representative of Kelly's office. Witness 5

says to Witness 2, Hey there, I sent you a text. -

Can you do an update call with me‘and Witness 4
any time after 2:45 p.m.? Witness 4 is the
Cleveland~Cliffs lobbyist. _ :

WITNESS 3: Okay,

MR. BROWN: Witness 2 responds, I'm on - ;
a call. I can do the call at 2:45. And then you
éee Witness 5 sends, okay, we can use the line at
2:45'p.m. So Witness 5 is setting up a ' ' F
conference call at 2:45 p.m. on April 28 with
Witness 2. So Cleveland~Cliffs lobbyist, AK F
Steel lobbyist, and‘ﬁitness 2 from Mike Kelly's |
office are getting on a phone call at 2:45, And -
then as you will see here at 2:52 p.m. Witness 2
actuallyrforwards that to Matt Stroia, who we |

talked about, and Witness 1, who was

another staffer at the Kelly office.
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- WITNESS 3: Gotcha,

MR. BROWN: So this is all occurring,
as you see, around -- roughly around 2:45 on
April 28 and then, 2:52.

| MR. BROWN: Jesse, i1f you can, pull up
Document 5,

(Document 5 introduced.,)

MR. BROWN: Witness 3, you are on ﬁhis
email strinﬁ. And I'm hoplng to get to
recollectlons on this email,

~ MR. BROWN: Do I have control?

PD TECHNICIAN: You sghould have
control,

MR. BROWN: Great, thank you.

MR. BROWN: ALl right, Witness 3. I
will start at the bottom here. So there's, you
can see is an email from you; 'This-is again on
April 28, 2020 at‘2:51 p.m. So right aréund the
same time as this prior email. You.say, Hi Matt,
what's the best number to reach.you at, Matt

responds at - it says 4:01 p.m. That's

obviously not accurate in light of the fact that
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Qou then respond there at 3:14 and say, Jjust
tried your cell., Give me a ring.

It appears to me that you guys speak
just after that. What did you guys talk about on
this call? April 28, the afternoon of April 287

WITNESS 3: Yeah, I don't recollect
what we might have discussed. I think we had -~

there were -- I don't recollect, to be honest

“with you. I can -~

MR, BROWN: Let me ~-—

WITNESS 3: I would quess we were —- on
any given occasion they were -~ I would say this.
There were multiple -~ the amount of inquiries

they came from congressional delegation members,
whether it was staff or members of Congress
thémselves, was broad. I mean, I think literally
every member of Congress from both the Ohic and
Pennsylvania delegations were contactihg-me{ So
I'm guessing this was just yet another -~ I sort
of had a system in place.

To shock you, I tried to be responsive

to everyone who called. I -~ there was the chief
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of staff on the Hill that drove me nuts when T
wasn't responsive. So it wouldn't be unusual for
me in the way I manage myself to follow up with
somebody that would have reached out to me.

So -- but beyond that, I don't recall this. I

don't recall this specific -- what might have

been talked about on the specific conversation,

MR. BROWN: So let me £ill you in a
iittle bit further here. So Clevelandmcliffs‘
provided us with information that said the April
28 phone call that happened in the last email
that I showed'you around 2:45 p.m., that
conference call, they said that was a phone call
in which Witness 5 and Witness 4, éd the
Cleveland-Cliffs and AK Steel g@vernment affairs
folks provided notification of the Department of
Commerce's intent to initiate a section 232

investigation covering transformer lamination and

" wound cores,

So that's what they talked about at

' 2:45 on that last email. It looks to me like

right around that same time, you reach out to
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Matt. And I'm wondering if you recall speaking
with him about the internal decision at
Commerce -- to initiate the Section 232 review.
WITNESS 3: It wouldn't -- I don't -~ I
wouldn't be surprised if I would have reaéhed out
to Mr. Relly's office as well as others from
those two states to give them an update on the
- status of the investigation,
| MR. BROWN: You don't have any
recollection though of being told at some point
on April 28, Section 232 investigation is going
forward and picking up the phone and calling
folks? | |
WITNESS 3: I think -~ well, I think
with this, as it relates to any of the internal
232 investigations, I think -~ if my recollectlon
serves me, I don t -= T don't even know that
we ==~ [ -- we necessarily knew -- we knew a
decision was -~ I would say this. I was aware
that a decision was going to be made. I don't

recall knowing what the decision would be. Does

that make sense?
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MR, BROWN: No. Elaborate,

WITNESS 3: My recollection is I was —-

I was aware that the -- that BIS had reached a

determination whether to proceed with an

investigation or not, That's -- but whether they

were going to or not, I don't know. T don't

recall necessarily knowing which direction they
were going. In other words, they could have said

we reviewed everything and we are not going to

proceed. Or it could have been we've reviewed
everything and we are going to proceed,

I just -~ my recollection is I was
aware that they had reached a conclusion. I'm
trying recall. I don't know if i necessarily
knew what the conclusion was going to be. I
think that was still being closely held by BIS

and the Seéretary until a future press release

was being developed by the comms team. And that

would've been somebody different than me. Does

that make sense?
MR. BROWN: You know -—

WITNESS 3: I'm just trying to recall
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that I don{t remember exactly what the

decigsion -~ what decision was reached as_opposed
to having a decision reéched versus what it was,
That's what I'm trying to say.

MR, BROWN: I realize too, it's been a
year. SO we have -- we received some -- aéain,
that communications from Cleveland-Cliffs. And
we've got some text messages from around the time
that says, on April 28, Wilbur Ross Spoke with
folks.at AK Steel and advised them of this plan
to initiate a Section 232 review.

So it seems like, given that, and given
the time frame of this, this email, that you
probably would have been picking up the phone to
call Matt about that. But I understand from you

now it's been a year and your recollection is

that you know, you don't have a clear

recollection of what you guys would have talked
about on April 28th, |

| WITNESS 3: T think that's safe to say.
But --

MR, BROWN: Because when I look up a
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little further at this email, it's A@rii 30. So
it's two days later. But he says, Good morning,
Witneés 3. Juét checking_in. Any word from your
comms team on getting out the release?

My understanding of what you ~- what he
means by the release, getting out the pﬁess
release that the - |

WITNESS 3: Yeah,

MR. BROWN: That we are going forward
with the Section 232 investigation.

WITNESS 3: I think that's fair to say.

My recollection is there was somewhat of a

delay. I think, without.having my calendar in
front of me, I think there was a desire -- sort

of the tlmellne was to get something out on a
certain day. And I think a couple of days'

lapsed. I think it was an internal delay. And T
don't remember the reason for the delay, but I
think a few days lapsed froﬁ when we initially
thought we were going to make this announcement

to when we actually did,

But there are delays for -~ yeah, i

" PLANET DEPOS
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just remember -- for some reason I remember that

there were -- my recollection, I could be wrong.

It might not be serving me well that there was

some sort of delay.

MR, BROWN: Well, that actually ~- I'm
glad you said that, because that's consistent
with T think what I want to show you as the next
document .

S0 Jesse, if you can show —- if you
can, pull up Document 6.

{(Document 6 introduced)

MR. BROWN: And Witness 3, again, I
will inform you, you are not on this document..

WITNESS 3: Yeah. |

MR. BROWN: But I think you're
réferenced in this document. So would like to
see if you can't help walk me through this and
make sure I'm undetstanding correctly,

WITNESS 3: Sure., Jeff, I apologize.,
My dog is becoming very ill. o I might have to
step away. If my wife -~
MR, BROWN: If you need to take a paﬁse
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any point --

WITNESS 3: No, no. Hold on. I think
my wife is able -- we have a very sick little
puppy and -- |

- MR, BROWN: I'm sorry to hear that.

WITNESS 3: That's‘okay. She's been
sick for the last couple of days.

MR. BROWN: Oh, no.

WITNESS 3: Okay, sorry. Go ahead
Jeff,
| MR. BROWN: - Again, if you need to Qet

up at any time, just holler and we will push -~

- will put this on pause --

WITNESS 3: I'm good. Puppy is
outside,

MR. BROWN: Okay, great. So I think -—-

there we go., I have control. T will show you

the top here. This is a text message between
folks in Representé-tive Kelly's office. The
is Witness 2. We mentioned her before. MS is
Matt Stroia. BAnd Witness 1, the other Kelly

staffer, is the other individual on this,
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S50 let me draw yourraﬁtention to the
date here, April 28 at 8:05 p.m. is when these
text messages that I want to direct you to are
being sent, says, Is everything
confined ~- confirmed? And then scroll down,
Matt Stroia response., Again, this is the evening

of April 28. He says, Commerce has not yet sent

their press release out. Cleveland-Cliffs is

walting for Commerce to put their press release
out before they put one out. I spoke to Commerce
and the White House after our call. They were -

hoping to have the release out tonight, but I

don't think it's going to happen. Tt will most

likely go out tomorrow.

S0 when I read this and he says, I
spoke to Commerce and the White House after our
call, when he says our call, I think he's
referring to that 2:45 p.m. call that he had with
Witness 2 and some of the folks at Cleveland-
Cliffs. And that to me suggests that — and when
hé says I spoke to Commetce and the White House

after our call, I think he's talking about that
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3:00 call that he had with you or the 3:00
soméﬁhing call that he had with you. Does that
jog any memory at all?
| WITNESS 3: It seems plausible, Jeff,

bﬁt I don't reéall. I will say this, I had so
many phone calls with members of Congress and
elected -~ and staff frbm these two delegations
over a period of a few months that, whether -- it
certainly fits the timeline. It seems plausible,
but I don't necessarily recall any one specific
phone call with Matt Stroia differing from any
specific phone call I might have had with Ms.
Wagner's staff. 1I'm just jogging -~ I'made phone
calls. I had -- I was on a lot of phone calls |
with lots of members of Congress and staff,

But it certainly -- it seems to fit the
timeline,

MR. BROWN: I also appreciate that it's
been a year. 8o I get that. But let me ask you
one other thing. Matt says, Commerce has not

sent their -- again, this is the evening of April
. . Commerce has not yet sent their press
release out. Cleveland-Cliffs is waiting for
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Commerce to put their press release out.

WITNESS 3: Yeah.,

MR. BROWN: That statement seemed to be
consistent with what you are just talking about,
about an ihternal decision happening and then'a
delay. | |

| WITNESS 3: Yeah.
MR. BROWN: Okay,

WITNESS 3: I think it's accurate, I

do recall there being a delay. I don't know the

reasons for the delay. It's not uncommon to haﬁe
delays with our press Department and a decision
that needs to go out. Reasons for -- I just
recall there being a delay. I think reasons for
the delay would be best answered by either our
comm shop or BIS personnel. |

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 3: But I do -- I just for some

reason something sticks in my head. There was a

- couple of days delay from when we actually had

envisioned getting it out to when actually they

go out..
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MR. BROWN: Well, and I think this next

text message that I'm going to show you further

‘the confirms what you are saying. So again, that

last text was from Matt the_night of April 28,
And then here we are the morning of April 29 of
the night before. And Witness 2, agaln, staff in
Representative of Kélly‘s office,.says, Just
talked to Witness 5. She is referring to Witness
5 at AKX Steel. And then she goes on to say the
announcement is likely_to come later in the week,
hopefully by Friday, based.upon a late night
conversation Witness 4 had with Ross's Chief of
staff. The reference to Witness 4‘is the
government affairs official at Cleveland-Cliffs.,

WITNESS 3: Yes.

MR. BROWN: And I assume Ross's Chief
of Staff, she is referring to Mike Walsh.

WITNESS 3: Right,

MR. BROWN: . And that she just goes on
to say, They need to get their legal ducks in a
row. GSo again, this text to me seems consistent

with what you were saying, a decision was made.
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People were waiting for that decision to kind of
be announced on that day on April 28, but then _ ﬁ
there was a bit of a delay internally qetting the t
actual press release out.
WITNESS 3: Yeah, I think that's -~ T i*
think that's fairly accurate with my
recollection. | |
MR. BROWN: Okay. Let's -- give me a E
second here. | .
MR. BROWN: You can pull that document | L
down, Jesse. | r
All right. I have just a couple of

more questions for you, Witness 3, and we will be

finished here.
WITNESS 3: Take your time.
MR. BROWN: Who at.the Department of
Commerce is likely speaking with the folks at AK
Ssteel and Cleveland-Cliffs? I know it's nét you,
| WITNESS 3: Yeah.

MR. BROWN: Is that Cordell Hull and ;

Nazak?

WITNESS 3: Yes,.

e s e e e

= Pég}“mwwt%m
888.433,3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

21-9221_0145



[T

W o Iy m

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22

Transcript of Witness 3
Conducted on May 27, 2021 : 55

MR, BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 3: And probably the Secretary,

b e, 5 VRt st S

rere——
A A SRR i 2% A A et e

MR}-BROWN: Right. Is there any -- you
know, given everything thét we've chatted about
here today, is there anything else that you feel
like -~ any other questions you feel like maybe I
should aék you? Or points that we didn't really E
'cover all that clearly that you feel like we .
should go back and chat about? M

WITNESS 3: No, I don't think so. I'm m
happy to -- if you have more questions for me |

after this, feel free to ping me. But I think

that will cover it. . I
MR. BROWN: No, like I said, I was

really -- and I know it's been a whole year, but

v re—
R LR G T R

1 was really trying to trying to kind of'pin down

that timing with respect to (inaudible) .

WITNESS 3: Yeah. Yeah.

A Y S

MR. BROWN: And I think you kind of
just gave us your'best recollection on that.

WITNESS 3: Yeah, my recollection,

there was a decision that was made. There was a

888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANE’I‘DEPOS.COM
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decision date that was, I think originally

- thought the decision would be announced. Aand

then I believe there was a delay. I don't recall
the reason for the delay, but it sounds like
there was -- legal ducks have to be in a row. I
wiil say, my ~-- from my perspective, there were
more delays when we had -- we thought was the
perfect tick-tock énd timeline.

It generally was not uncommon for
delays to get -- have to be considered and
timelines be blown through. But I don't recall
the specific reason for:why this delay happen,
but I know there was a significant amount of
outside interest in this. But again, it doesn't
strike me as anything different than any 232,

You can imagine with 232 autos, the amount of
congressional -interest from Detroit and from the
auto industry would have been high.

MR. BROWN: Yeah,.

WITNESS 3: So nbne of this is unusual.
But it certainly was -- it certainly generated a

significant amount of interest from outside
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stakeholders.
MR. BROWN: You -~ you said you don't :

know the specific reason for the delay. You r

don't have any reason'to believe that the
decision was made on April 28 and then somebody F
internally ¢changed their mihd or conveyed that ;
they were changing their mind? This was more of | F
é,.we just got to get the press shop in order and . M

would just got to get the legal ducks in a rOwW?

WITNESS 3: Yeah. |

MR. BROWN: Thgre was nobody internally
that said or gave folks a reason to believe like,
onh, actually this isn't going to happen? E

WITNESS 3: No, my recollectlon is, in L
the conversatlons and my involvement, is that the
delay was a ~m was very much legal a legal --
making sure we legally are checking all the boxes F
on the timeline. Ahd given the good lawyer that T

you are, you wouldn't be surprised that the

lawyers would sometimes say, take your foot off

‘the gas pedal. We haven't done X, Y, and Z.

.

¥

. : . : :
Sometimes there was a Federal Register i
_‘-\
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notification. Sometimes there was a public

comment period that hadn't lapsed.,

Sometimes ~- so there's a lot of E
reasons why delays took place at the end and it

typlcally was a lawyer said, hold on guys, let's

Just make sure we check all the bokes, cross the

11
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13
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16
17
18
19
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21
22
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T's, and dot the I's. But I don't ~- I think
was more than -~ it was more of that. I don't
forget anything to do with any kind of second-
guessing. | |

I'm pretty -- I'm not aware of any

in second-guessing. I think it was aldelay to
ansure everything was done properly and at the
highest level of commerce professionalism,

MR. BROWN: Well, speaking of pesky
laWyers, I will'ask my colleagues if they have

any further questions for you.

I said a good lawyer.
MR. BROWN: And if they don't, I will

just thank you for your time.
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You guys.have anything?

MR, ASHMAWY: Lawyers are in.fact
pesky. And that's all I have to say. I have no
questions. I just want to thank you for your
time and energies in our process. And we
appreciate all your assistance today.

MR. BROWN: Yeah, Witness 3, I don't
think -- you will probably hear from me in a week
or so. I will have a copy of the transcript and
I will get that to you. But other than that, I
just thank you very much for sitting down with us
today and walking through the timeline. Tt is --
it is very much appreciated. |

WITNESS 3: Of course. Happy to help.

Thanks, Jeff. Thanks, Omar.

MR. BROWN: And with that, we will go

off the record.

(Off the record at 12:02 p.m.)
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CERTIFICATE OF COURT REPORTER - NOTARY PUBLIC
I, Martin Onuegbu, the officer before
whom the foregoing proceedings were taken, do
'hereby certify that saild proceedings were
electronically recorded by'me;'and that T am
neither counsel for, related to, nor employed by

any of the parties to this case and have no

interest, financial or otherwise, in its outcome.

Pt (Daghe

Martin Onuegbu, Notary Public in and

for the State of Maryland
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CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIBER ' |
1, Molly Bugher, do hereby certify that

the foregoing transcript is a true and correct

record of the recorded proceedings; that said
-proceedings were transcribed to the best of my ]
ability from the audio recording and supporting
information; and that I am neither counsel for, ?
related to, nor employed by any of the pérties to %
this case and have no interest, financial or %
_ I
otherwise, in its outcome, _ 5
Molly Bugher, CDLT-161 Y
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CLEVELAND-CLIFFS COMPLETES ACQUISITION_OF AK STEEL

CLEVELAND - March 13, 2020 - Cleveland-Cliffs Inc, {NYSE: CLF) announced today that it has
successfllly compieted the acquisition of AK Steel Holdin Corporation, integrating North America’s largest
producer of iron ore pellets downstream into the production of value-added steel and specialty
manuractured parts for the automotive industry. The combined company wil! be led by Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer Lourenco Gongalves.

“This is a new era for Cleveland-Cliffs as a producer of differentiated, high quality iron ore, metallics and
steel in North America. The new Cliffs will begin from a unique position of strength in our industry, with a
dynamic combination of assets ind!uding two efficient fntegratéd blast furnace steel mills, two electric arc
furnace plants, a new state-df—the-art HB! plant and several other highly technologically devsloped facilities.
. We will be catering to a desirable customer base and primarily doing business in the United States, the
most resilient manufacturing economy in the world,” said Mr. Goncalves. “I am honored to be leading a
Company that is built on such a rich'history,'and now compines mining, pelletizing, direct-reduction, EAF
steelmaking, BF/BOF steelmaking, highly technologically developed finishing mills and automated
manufacturing of auto-parts.” Mr. Goncalves concluded: “| am also very pleased to welcome the AK Steal
aemployses and the unions representing the workforce throughout the country to the Cleveland-Cliffs family.
From now on, we are a singlé, united and very strong team.”

About Cleveland-Cliffs Inc.

Fourded in 1847, Cleveland-Cliffs Is among the largest vertically Integrated producers of differentiated iron
ore and steel in North America. With an emphasis on non-commoditized products, Cliffs is uniquely
positioned to supply both customized iron ore pellets and sophisticated steel solutions to a guality-focused
customer base, with an industry-leading market share in the automotive industry. In 2020, Cliffs also
expects to be the sole producer of hot briquetted iron (HBI} in the Great Lakes region. A commitment to
environmental sustainability is core to our business operations and extends to how we partner with
stakeholders across our communities and the steel value chain. Headquartered in Cleveland, Ohio,
Cleveland-Cliffs employs approximately 12,000 people across mining and stesl manufacturing operations
in the United States, Canada and Mexico, For more information, visit hitp://www.clevelandaiifis.com

Source: Cleveland-Cliffs Inc.

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS ING, - 200 PUBLIC SQUARE - SUITE 3808 « CLEVELAND, OH 44114-25844

Commerce-OCE-RFI-21-9221-0000124
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MEDIA CONTACT: INVESTOR CONTACT:

Patricia Persico Paul Finan
Diractor, Corporate Communications _ Director, Investor Ralations

CLEVELAND-CLIEFS ING. « 200 PUBLIC SQUARE BSUITE 3300+ GLEVELAMD, OH 441 14-2544

Commerce-OCE-RFI-21-0221-0000125 21-9221.0165
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From: Bloom, Patrick M
Sent: 4/22/2020 10:51:21 AM

To! Goudarzi, Talat (Federal) “
cC Hay, Mikell {Federal) (| RNNNNNNNNE ; Luciwic, Beth [“} Nikakhtar, Nazak

Subject: RE: Electrical Steel

Very good, Thank you, Tala. We'll stay tuned.
Baest,
Patrick

Frem: Goudara, Talat (Federal) <
Sent: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 10:34 AM
To: Bloam, Patrick M «

Cc: Hay, Mikell (Federal) <[RSS ; Lucwig, Beth <R itokhtar, Nazak

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Electrical Steel
Good morning, Patrick,

Great to hear from youl We have received your call request and wil! get back to you in the hear future on
some potential times / dates. :

Thanks again and look forward to talking with you!
Best,

Tala

From: Bloom, Patrick M <
Sent: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 8:37 AM
To: Goudarz, Talat (Federal)

. €¢: Hay, Mikell (Federal) -; Ludwig, Beth <:—; Nikakhtar, Nazak

Subject: RE: Electrical Steel
Giood morning, Tala.

- {am writing o request a brief conference call between Secretary Ross and Claveland-Clitfs’ Chairman & CEQ, Lourenco
Goncalves, to discuss a very time sensitive matter Invelving the status of AK Steel's electrical steel business Lnit.

Please let me know if the Secretary would be available for such & call today- after 1:30 PM Eastern or any time toemorrow
(Thursday, 4/23). '

Thanks and kind regards,
Patrick

Commerce-OCE-RFI-21-9221-00001 54 21-0221_0157
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CLEVELAND-GLIFFS ING.

PATRIGK M. BLOOM
Diraotor - Sove wnant Redalions
?:! o P e h’I

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS ING, ‘
200 Public Sguare, Suite 3306, Cleveland, OH 44414
P 216.894.8700 F 216.694.5385 clevelandciiffs.com

From: G'oudarzi-,.TaIat(Féderal)é A
Sent: Wednesday, February 19, 2020 11:22 AM
To: Bloom, Patrick M <

Cc: Hay, Mikell (Federal) <—; R k2 khtar, Nazak
< _

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steel

Hi Patrick! Thanks so much!

Tala

From: Bloom, Patrick M <
Sent: Wednesday, February 19, 2020 11:20 AM
To: Goudarz, Talat (Feder

Ce: Hay, Mikell {Federal) <
<
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Stee)
Hi Tala,

Thanks for !etting' us know. We'll plan on 1:45,

Best,
Patrick

On Fab 19, 2020, at 11:12 AM, Goudarz, Talat (Federal) <—> wrote;

Hi Patrick,
We are running a bit behind today. Would 1:45pm be ok for the meeting?
Thanks so much and please let me know!

Tala

Commerce-OCE-RF(-21-5221 -0000165

al)
> ; Nikakhtar, Nazak
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From: Bloom, Patrick M <}
020 ;25 PM

Sent: Thursday, February , 2
To: Hay, Mikelt (Federal) <SSR, Goudarzi, Talat(Federal)—
SN o, \c:o

Ce: ) g T
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steel

Thank you, Mikell. 1 will gather the relevant information and wiil be in touch,

Kind regards,
Patrick

From: Hay, Mikell (Federal) <

Sents Thursday, February 6, 2020 1:17 PM

To: Goudarzi, Talat (Federal) <—; Bloom, Patrick M <—,
cc: IR oo, oz <

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steel

Patrick,

Please inform the group (o enter the Herbert C. Hoover Building through Door 10 (indicated by the red arrow
on the attached map) at 271 15th St. NW, closer to Pennsylvania Avenue than Constitution. T will meet an
escort all visitors from the security desk.

Visitors (or their drivers) are welcome to patk in the courtyard next to Door 10 by providing driver name(s),
license number(s), car make(s) and model(s) (e.g. 2018 red Chevy Tahoe), and license plate number(s). IF

arriving by vehicle, pull into the courtyard and then enter the building via the doors immediately to the right

(indicated by the blue arrow), '

All attendees” names must be stated prior to arrival to ensure building entry. Please also inform me if any

foreign nationals will attend, as the Department requires immediate further steps in this case, US citizens need

only present ene form of state or federal 1D (PIV card, state driver’s license or photo ID card, US Passport or
US Passport Card, US military card, etc.) upon arrival,

Please send me a list of names and titles for all those attending the meeting.
Thank you and please let me know if you have any questions,

Mikell

Mikell Hay

.S D ent of Commerce

From: Goudarzi, Talat (Federal) <ji@

sant: Thursday, February 6, 2020 1:13 PM
To: Bloom, Patrick M < R S A

Commoerce-OCE-RFI-21.9224-0000158
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ce: | k- khtar, Nazak < N ! =y, Mikell {Federal)
< :

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steel

Hi Patrick,

Great] Thanks so much| Adding Mikell Hay who can assist with arrival instructions and logistics!
Thanks again and look forward to it!

Tala

From: Blodbﬁ, Patflck M <
Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2020 12:49 pMm
To: Goudarzl, Talat (Federal)

Co: Nikakhtar, Nazak <SR

" Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Flectrical Steel
Hi Tala,

'm confirming that a meeting with Secretary Ross on Wednesday, Fabruary 19 at 1:30 PM will work for Lourenco
Gonealves. :

Beth Ludwig {of AK Steel} and | tentatively plan to join Lourenco for this meeting. Please let me know who else will join
the Secretary for the meeting. :

Iy addition, please pass along any relevant securlty/logistics instructions at your convenience.

Thariks again for your kind assistance,
Patrick

<imageOQd1.jpg>

PATRIOK M. BLOOR
Dizactor - Government Refations...

P . Pl |

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS ING,
200 Public Square, Suite 3308, Cleveland, OH 44114
F 216.684.6700 F 216.694,6385 clevelandcliffs.com

Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2020 11:53 AM
To: Bloom, Patrick M <

ey — E——
SubJect: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steal
Hi Patrick,

Thank you very much for your patience! The Secretary would love to meet with Mr. Goncalves, Would 1:30pm,
Wednesday, February 19% work well?
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Thanks again and look forward to hearing from you!

Tala

From: Goudarzi, Talat (Federal)
Sent: Friday, January 31, 2020 12:31 PM

To: Bloom, Patrick M

Ce: s Nikakhtar, Nazak <

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Flectrical Steel |

Hi Patrick, '

Thank you very much for following up, We are still looking at dates and will get back to you In the near future!

Thank you so much for your patience!

Tala

From: B'Ioom, Patrick M <
Sent: Tuesday, January 28, 2020 1:51 PM
To: Goudarz, Talat (Federal)

Ce : Nikakhtar, Mazak <—

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: Flectrical Steel

Hf Tala, |

' just checking in on the statﬁs of this scheduling request.

I've attached Lourenco Goncalves’ professional bio for your infermation.

Thanks and kind regards,
Fatrick

<image001.jpg>
PATRICK WM. BLOOW

d LU 0 T
CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC,

-20G Public Square, Suite 3300, Cleveland, OH 44114
P 216.694.5780 F 216.694.5%88 clevelandclitfs.com

From: Goudarzi, Talat (Federal)
Sent: Thursday, January 23, 2020 3:06 PM

To: Bloom, Patrick M <N : v, =2 <

Ce
Subject: RE: {EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steel

Hi Patrick,
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Thank you very much for reaching out to Secretary Ross. We have received your request and will get back to you in the
near future with some potential times!

Thanks again and look forward to it speaking with you soon]

Tala

From: Bloom, Patrick M <BR
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 6:12 PM
To: Nikakhtar, Nazak <

Ce: ; Goudarzi, Talat (Federal) <5 EGG——.

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steel
Very good. Thank you, Nazak.
Tala, please let us know if you require further information to facllitate this meeting.

Best,
Patrlck

On Jan 22, 2020, at 5:31 PM, Nazak Nikakhtar < ot

Hi Patriclc :
'm copying Tala Goudarzi to assist with the meeting. | have apprised the secretary’s office on your company’s issues.

Nazak Nikakhtar

Assistant Secretary, Industry & Analysis

United States Department of Commurce, International Trade Administration
Oftice: NG 5000

From: Bloom, Patrick M <[ uis
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2020 5:23 pM
To: Nazak Nikakhtar <R |
cc: [

Subject: RE: Electrical Steel

Good afternoon, Nazak,

Thanks for your guick reply. 1 believe Beth Lucwig of AK Steel (copied) is already In touch with your team on some of the
anomalles in the data set for transformer components (cores and laminations). Fuither to the request lald out i the
letter F senton 1/15, I'm seeking your guidance on who we can worl with to arrange a meeting between Secretary Ross
and Cliffs” Chairman & CEQ, Lourence Goncalves, The purpose of the meeting would be to discuss the trade-related
challenges facing the eleclrical stee! market as well as Cleveland-Cliffs' announced, pending acquisition of AK Steel {we
are operating as two separate companies until the transaction is finally approved).

Thanks for your consideration.

Kind regards,
Patrick
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PATRICK M, BLOOM
Dirgctor - Government Reladiuns.__
> : ;

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC.
200 Public Square, Syite 3300, Cleveland, OH 44444
P 218.694.8700 F 216,804,558 clevelindeliffs.com

From: Nazak Nikakhtar
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 202012:22 PM
TotBloam, Patrick M <
Cos
Subject: {EXTERNAL] RE: Electrical Steel

Thank you, Patrick. We are reviewing the facts as laid out in your paper to assess options.

As to the transformer components entering the US from Mexico and Canada, we haven't noticed an import surge into
the United States. Nevertheless, my team is combing through all trade data to determine options,

More soan.

Nazak Nikakbtar
Assigtant Secretary, Industry & Analysis :

United States Department of Commerce, International Trade Administration
Office: ! Binail;

From: Blaom, Patrick M <
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2020 12:16 PM

To: Nazak Nikakhtar < | E N

Ce
Subject: Electrical Steel

Good afternoon, Nazak.

Please see the attached letter (with enclosure) to Secretary Ross from Cleveland-Cliffs’ Chatrman, President & CEQ,
Lourenco Goncalves, on the challenges confronting the Grain Oriented Electrical Steel (GOES) market.

While Cleveland-Cliffs’ acquisition of AK Steel is not yet final and we will continue to operate as two separate companies
untif the transaction is finally approved, we are actively planning for the integration of Cliffs and AK:  We recognize that
addressing the trade challenges facing electrical steef must be a top priority.

¥'ve copied Beth Ludwig of AK Steel,

Please let me know when you would be available for a brief call with us in the coming days to discuss further and ptan
for next steps,

Thank you and kind regars,
Patrick
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PATRICK M. BLOGH
Divector ~ (Biovern
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CLEVELAND-CLIFES ING,
200 Public Square, Snite 3300, Cleveland, OH 44114
P 216.684.8700 F 216.694.5385 clevelsndeliffs.com

wommrnrmaiis,

This electronic message and any attachments included with this message are for the exclusive use of the individual or
entity to which it is Intended to be addressed. This message may contain Information that is privileged or confidential

and thereby exempt and protected from unauthorized disclosure under applicable law. If the reader of this message s

not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, be
awarethat any disclosure, dissemination, distribution or copylng of this communication, or the use of its contents, is not
authorized and is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication and are not the intended recipient, please
notify the sender immediately and permanently delete the original message from vour a-mail system,
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Crmygress of the Mnited States
ashington, BAE 20515

November 20, 2019

The Honorable Robert E. Lighthizer
United States Trade Representative
Executive Office of the President

Office of the U.S. Trade Representative
600 17* Street NW, Room 215
Washington, DC 20508

Dear Ambassador Lighthizer:

- We write to express our cancerns about developments in the market for electrical steel. There are
strong reasons to believe that unfairly-traded imports of grain-oriented electrical steel (GOES)
are powring into Canada and Mexico. Even worse, those imports are being used to create
downstream products that enter the US at such low prices that they ate eroding the US electrical
steel market. I urge you to address this matter promptly,

We represent the nation’s only producer of electrical steel, AK Steel. The United States cannot
afford to lose its unique capacity, either economically or with regard to national security, AK
Steel makes products in both major categories of electrical steel: GQES, which is used to make
transformers, and non-oriented electrical steel (NOES}), which is used to make electric motors,

. These electrical steel products are made and finished at AK Steel's facilities in Butler,
Pennsylvanin, and Zunesville, Ohio. :

The GOES and NOES made by AK Steel are critical Lo the American economy. High-quality
electrical steel allows for more efficient transformers and electric motors. This Increases energy
savings, improves our elecirical grid, and results in a more secure energy environment. AK Steel
is the only American company currently capable of making and developing such products. In a ‘
fair market, AK Steel would be in a strong position to maintain its position as a global leader in
electrical steel. However, there ate strong indications that AK Steel faces unfair competition in
the GOES market, : '

In 2014, the US Department of Commerce investigated imports of GOES from seven countries.
Commerce found that imports from each of these countries were dumped, and that imports from
China were subsidized. This litigation shows that foreign producers of GOES have a history of
unfair trade. Unfortunately, the US International Trade Commission denied relief in those cases
— a decision that undoubtedly contributed to-the fact that Allegheny Technologies stopped

making GOES in 2017, leaving AK Steel as the only domestic producer.

For now, US imports of GOES are restricted by tariffs imposed under Section 232 of the Trade
Expansion Act of 1962. However, there has been a dramatic increase in imported GOES into
Canada and Mexico — two countries with no capacity to make GOES. In 2016, Canada and

1
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Mexico together imported approximately 156,000 short tons (ST) of GOES from countries other
than the United States. By 2018, this figure had increased to almos| 214,000 ST, Through the
first six months of this year, Canada and Mexico together are on pace to import over 247,000 8T
of GOES from non-US sources, Most of these imports ate from countries with a history of
shipping unfairly-traded GOES to the United States,

Furthermore, GOES shipped to Canada and Mexico does not stay there, Instead, after very
limited processing, much of it enters the US market i the form of internal components of
electric transformers. These products include laminations, cores, and core assemblies — products
ihat generally consist of GOES that has been merely stacked, slit, or wound, In 2016, the United
States imported approximately $95 million worth of such products from Canada and Mexico.
This year, the United States is or pace to import more than $171 million worth of such products
~an increase of nearly 45 percent with no related increase in demand or reduction in capacity,

There are significant national secuiity concerns here. If the national electrical grid were atlacked
or compromised by a natural disaster, the US would need a dependable source of electrical steel
to allow for rapid repair, Becoming wholly dependent on foreign producers for this vital product
puts Americans ot grave and unnecessary risk,

We appreciate the work the President has done to improve the US global trade situation and
national security, and his work to encourage and support the American stee) industry and its
workers. As such, we believe the President will consider all potential options to prevent harm to.
AK Steel by the recent surge of GOES into Canada and Mexico, We implore the President and
USTR to monitor this situation aggressively und ask that you advise us of any measures taken to
address this issue. ,

We appreciate your attention to this matter, [f you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
reach out to Nate Zimpher in Congressman Balderson’s office at (202) 225-5355, or Lori Prater
- in Congressman Kelty’s office at (202) 225-3406.

Sincerely,

L
M ikmny

Member of Congress Member of Congress
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@ongressof te United Statew
Wasliigton, DA 20515

April 15, 2020

The Honorable Donald J, Tramp
President of the United States
The White House -

- 1600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
" Washington, DC 20500

Dear My, President:

We weite to share oy grave concern about the vulnerability of the electrical ttansformer supply

chain and the fate of 1,500 jobs in Pennsylvania and Ohio. AK. Steel, a wholly-owned subsidiary -

of Cleveland-Cliffs Inc,, is the only producer of grain-oriented electrical steel (GOES) in North
America, GOES Is produced at AK Steel’s mill in Butler, Pennsylvania;, employing approximately
1,400 workers, and finishing occurs at is Zanesville, Ohio opetation, employing approximately
100 workers. ' : .

GOES is a critical and irteplaceable matetial used in the manufactiring of power and distribution
transfortmers that sustain America’s electrical grid. In its 2018 Steel Seetion 237 report, the
Department of Commerce extensively cited national security concerns associated with GOES and
emphasized the importance of ensuring continued production by AK Steel.

While relief from direct imports of GOES was imposed. by your Administeation undet the Section

232 steel tariff program, the bad actors have found a way to circumvent those tariffs and quotas,

Because the Section 232 tariffs do not apply to detivative electrical steel articles including

laminations and cores (i.¢., simply cut and shaped electrical steel) imports of those products are

. now surging into the United States, Mexico and Canada are being used ag a staging ground for
this blatant circumvention of the Section 232 program, The value of these imports from Canada
and Mexico ate up 87% from 2017 to 2019, indicating that approximately 43,000 tons of U.S,
GOES have been displaged by this circumvention activity, A stunning 95% of Canadian and
Mexican lamination and. core exports are now comitlg into the Unifed States yet theie is no
domestic GOES production in either Canada or Mexico, :

AK Steel has announced that, unless this circumvention of ihe national security tarifs can be
stopped, it will have no choice but to idle the Butler and Zanesville plants in 2020, Such an idling
of these facilities would result in approximately 1,500 layoffs and the loss of America’s last
electricel steel producer. Such an owtcome would leave the United States dangerously dependent
on GOES-producing countries including China, Japan, Korea, and Russia for the gtability of our
electric grid, ' . '

Mr. President, We'resﬁecj:ﬁﬂlv urge you to issue a proclamation th‘a,t would cover these derivate
steel products under your Administration’s steel Section 232 promam. In order to effectively
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~address circumvention and presetve this critical supply chain, tariffs must be applied to
laminations and cores from Mexico and Canada. '

Taking this action will not undetmine the USMCA. agrecments already ratified by the 1.8,
-Canada, and Mexico. In fact, when the new USMCA rules of origination are fully implemented,
laminations and cores would rightly be considered originating fiom the country where the GORES
was produced, not Canada or Mexico, which has no GOES production. This derivative product
action would narrowly target intentional circumvention of the national security tariffs applying to
GOES. ' :

A successful resotution of this cireumvention is critical to national security, the effectiveness of
your administration’s Section 232 steel program, and thousands of livelihoods in western.

Pennsylvania and central Ohio,

Thank you in advance for your consideration of this in
mattet.

Marcy Kaptur -

Member of Congress

Troy Baldetson
Membet of Congress

Peter Stauber
Member of Congress

Steve Stivers
Member of Congress

Mike Bost
Member of Congress

Rick Crawford
Member of Copgtess

Scott Perry
Member of Congress

Peter I, Visclosky
Member of Congress

Bill Iohnson
Member of Congress

" Mike Kelly

portant economic and national security

Sincerely,

Member of Congress

Glenn ‘GT* Thompson
Member of Congress

Anthony Gonzalez
Member of Congress

Michael R. Turner
Member of Congress

Tim Walberg
Member of Congress

Tim Ryan
Member of Congress

Steve Chabot
Member of Congress

David P, Joyce
. Member of Congress

Fred Keller
Member of Congress
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Bob Gibbg
Member of Congress

Daniel T, Kildee
Member of Congress

Jack Bergman
Member of Congress

.Conor Lainb
Member of Congress

ce! USTR Ambassador Robert Lighthizer
Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross

Mareia L. Fudge
Member of Congress

Guy Reschenthaler
Member of Congress

‘Mike Doyle

Member of Congress

Dr, Peter Navatro, Director of the Office of Trade and Manufacturing Poiicy
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From: Strola, Matthew

Sent: : Thursday, April 23, 2020 11:29 AM

To: 7 (Buchanan} Joyce, Natalia

Ce: Zimpher, Nate; Prater, Lori; Marsh, James; Engquist, Laura

Subject: ' Member Raquest: Mike Kelly and Troy Balderson _
Attachments: Balderson-Kelly Electrical Steel Letter to President 3.6.2020.docx; ATT00001 him; Kelly-

Kaptur Electrical Steel Letter to President April 15, 2020.pdf; ATTO0002,htm

Matalle,

I know you all have a lot going on today, However, we have a non-goronavirus related issue that s critical to Mike's
district and Mr, Balderson's district, AK Steel/Cleveland Cliffs employs over 1400 peaple In Mike’s hometown and a
large amaunt in Mr, Balderson’s district., Unfortunately, the CEQ has declared he plans to shut down both locations I
the government doesn’t extend the 232 tariffs to grain otiented electrical steel, a type of steel that goes into
transformers used in our electrical grid. The company has shown that Russfan, Japan, S. Korea have been shipping
electrical steel into Canada and Mexico. Once in Canada/Mexico, these two countries superficlally enhance the praduct
and then send it Into the US. Obviously, this rages agalnst the spirit of the USMCA,

_ The issue for our offices is two fold. One, jobs obviously, but two, AK Steel is the last American maker of electrical
steel. This Is a national security Issue.

- The CEQ has had meetings with Secretary Ross. Our bosses have had calls with-the Secretary and follow up calls with his
assistants. Mike has personally spoken to Amb, Lighthizer about this issue and he is supportive but doesn’t want to get
into anyone else's lane. We have had conversations with Peter Navarro’s office. Most recently, Mike, Troy and Marcy
Kaptur sent a letter to the President on this issue and gathered 20 others to join. | have attached those letters to this
email as background for a potential call with the Leader. : -

Mike and Troy would like to talk to the Leader for a few minutes on the phone at a some point soon to brief him on the
issue and ask for his advice on a strategy with the administration.

Simply put...we need the administration to extend the 232 tariffs to Grain Oriented Electrical Steel coming into the US.
- Thanks for the consideration Natalie!

Matt

21-9221_0173



EXHIBIT 13

21-8221_0174



April 22, 2020

Phone call between
:‘dltn,ess

NG vl Rep. Mike Kelly

nformed Rep. Kelly of potential layoff notices at the Butter Works and Zanesville Worls operations.

April 23, 2020
Phone call bistween ISR Rep. Mike Kelly's Leglslative Director) and Nate Zimpher
(Rei. Troy Balderson's trade policy legislative assistant) :

Re: nd rovided information regarding discussions with the Department of Commerce {Commaerce) and
acteons Commarce elieved could be pursued to address the circumvention of Section 232 tariffs and quotas covering
GQES through the production and importation of transformer cares and laminations.

April 24, 2020 _ _
Phone call between RS Nate Zimpher, and Sam Mulopulos (Senator Partman's

trade policy Legislative Assistant) . _
Re:@nd%mvidm an update that the Department of Commerce had declined to pursue coverage of

faminations and cores as “derivative products” under the existing steel Section 232 tariffs/quotas.

Wilness 4

Moriday, April 27, 2020

Valcemail teft by Rep. Mike Kelly for Lourenco Goncalves

Re: Rep. Kelly had been in contact with Mark Meadows, who would be talking with the president that afternoon ahout
“this issue.” Rep. Kelly mentioned a call apparently scheduled for the next day with Senator Portman, Secretary Ross,
Ambassador Lighthizer, and possibly Peter Navarro. Rep. Kelly said he was available if Goncatves wanted to eall hiny
back. : ' '

Tuesday, April 28, 2020 -

Phane call between [IEY Mnd RS (Rep. Mike Kelly's Legislative Director)
Remn -};V't“ess provided notification of the Department of Commerce’s intent to [nltiate a Section 232
investigation cavering transformer laminations and cores _

Thursday, May 7, 2020 : :

Phone call between‘nd WRICEEF R (Rep. Mike Kelly's Legistative Director), and Matt Stroia
{Rep. Mike Kelly's Chief of Staff)

Re: Discuss anticipated timaline of Section 232 Investigation: discussion regarding coordination of state/local
governmental support for the Section 232 investigation from the Butier, Pennsylvania area

Thursday, September 17, 2020 ,

Phone call between S (G Rep. Mike Kelly's Legislative Directar), and Matt Strofa
{Rep. Mike Kelly's Chief of Staff), Laura Engquist {Rep, Balderson’s Deputy Chief of Staff), Nate Zimpher (Rep. Balderson's
Legistative Assistant) and Sam Mulopulos (Senater Portman's Legislative Assistant) _

Re: Discussion of the pending Section 232 investigation; the need for a status update from the Department of Commerce
and the White House,

September 25, 2020 ._ '
‘Phone call betweenmw WS (Rep. Mike Kelly's Legislative Director), Matt Stroia (Rep.
Mike Kelly’s Chief of Staff), Nate Zimpher (Rep, Balderson's trade policy Legislative Assistant), and Sam Mutopulos
{Senator Portman's trade policy Legislative Asslstant).

Re:! Notifted staff of the GOES Section 232 product exclusion requests that were granted by the Department of
Commerce,

2
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Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 10:07:20 Eastern Daylight Time

Subject: AK Steel

Date: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 at 2:32:07 PM Eastern Daylight Time
From: Collins, Erin

To: Elsenberger, Andrew

Attachments: image001.png, image002.png, image003.png, image004,png, image005,png, image006.png

Hi Andrew,

Checking on your response plan to AK Steel telling workers tomorrow morning about plant closures. | know

our iosses are chatting with McCarthy and we’ll get more info, Happy to hop on a call to discuss.-
Could do a joint release... spit balling.

Erin Collins

Communications Director
Congressman Troy Balderson | OH-12

0000

Page1of1l
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5:33

Erin »

iMessage
Apr 28, 2020, 3:51 PM

Hey Andrew, Erin Collins again. My
LA called me right after we spoke,
apparently Wilbur Ross is going to
make the necessary fix

“Here's what he said: Wilbur Ross
just called AK Steel and they are

going to come up with a deal—they

are not announcing the closing or
announcing they are frrmg anyone
tomorrow!!!
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From: Stroia, Matthew _

Sent: Thursday, Aprit 23, 2020 10:18 AM

To: Prater, Lori

Subject: Fwel: Kelly-Kaptur Electrical Steel Letier to President April 15 2020.pdf

Begin forwarded messape:

From: "Foti, Anthony (Federal)" <IEG—_———_—_

Date: Aprll 22, 2020 at 5:49:08 PM CDT '

To: "Strala, Matthew" <N

ce: "Garrett.M.Ziegle RN - 0o o wski, Eileen

{Federal)" | |
Subject: Re: Kelly-Kaptur Electrical Steel Letter to Prasident April 15, 2020, pdf

Hi Matt, Hope you're well. Thanks for reaching out. ) know this issue s a priotity far the Congressman as
| was on a call with him and Nazak fram ITA several weeks hack. As you know, the Department is famitiar
with the company's concerns and has been engaged with them over the course of many meetings and
discussions. DOC connected the company with the appropriate officials at USTR and CEP to pursue
concerns untlar thase respective Jurtsdictions, DOC continues to look into this matter. As soon as there s
additional Information ta share, you have my commitment that | will let you know immediately.

Pve ce'd my colleague, Elleen Dombrowskl, en this email, Either of us would be happy to try to answer
any additional questions you may have,

Thanks.

Anthony

Anthony Foti

Performing the delegated duties of the

Assistant Secretary for Legistative and Intergovernmental Affalrs
U.S. Bepartmant of Commarce

On Apr 22, 2020, at 10:22 AM, Strola, Matthew <1

wiote:

“Anthony,
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{ just wanted to foliow up on this letter. | know that there is a lot going on hut things
are getting dire at the Butler, PA plant {1400 emplayees and the last US maker of
electrical steel).

Can you advise me on any potential developments from you slde?
Thanks,

Matt

On Apr 15, 2020, at 3:32 PM, Foti, Anthony (Federal) <R EREEEES-
wrote: '

Matt, thanks for sharing. | will be sure o provide this to the Secretary,
Anthony Fotl |
Performing the delegated dutles of the

Asslstant Secretary for Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs
.S, Department of Commerce

On Apr 15, 2020, &t 1:51 P, Strola, Matthew
wrota:

Anthony and Garrett—just a heads up, this letter was
sent over to the WH today regarding the AK Steef / 232
tariff issue. -

Thanks!

Matt

<Kelly-Kaptur Electrical Stee! Letter to President Aprit 15, 2020.pdf>
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From: Gourdikian, Alexanclra

Sent: Monday, April 27, 2020 1:06 PM

To Duncan, Chris; Marsh, Jamas; Engaquist, Laura

et Strola, Matthew; Zimpher, Nate; Prater, Lori; Meyer, Katle; Roriner, Lee; {Buchanan)
Joyce, Natalie ' '

-Subject; : RE: Member Request; Mike Kelly and Troy Balderson

Hi all-- call in information for this call tamorrow, Tuasday, April 28 at 2:15PM ET is below. Thanks!

Call in: I
Passcode: IR

~~~~~ Original Message---
Fromi: Duncan, Chris
Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 5:47 PM

To: Matsh, Jares quwsmaura A

Ce: Strofa, Matthew >; Zimpher, Nate <5EG—GG oo, Lo
; Gourdiklan, Atexandra <RGN ; cver, Katic

; Bonner, Lee i EEENEGNN-; (3uchanan) joyce, Natalie

>

- >

Subject: RE: Member Request: Mike Keily and Troy Balderson
Hi lames,
Thanks for the response. We will get back to you soon with a conference line dial i,

Mrs. Christiana Duncan

District Scheduier

Congressman Kevin McCarthy-{CA-23)
Republican Leader

4100 Empire Drive, Suite 150
Bakersfield, CA 93309
P-661-327-3611

F-661-631-9535

www. kevinmecarthy.house.gov

---0riglnal Messaggusw--
From: Marsh, Jamas
Sent: Friday, Aprll 24, 2020 2:25 PM.

To: Duncan, Chrls < - :r'qquist, Laura <

. Ce: Stroia, Matthew SRR ; 2/ pher, Nate SR ; o, Lot
; Gourdikian, Alexandra <SRG | oy, Katie

; Bormer, Lee <SRG ; (5. chanan) Joyce, Natalle

Subject: RE! Member Request: Mike Kelly and Troy Balderson

Hi Chrls,
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{'tn putting this an Congressman Kelly's catendar for Tuesday at 2:15 PM Eastern. Do you have a conference line we can
dlai Into for this call?

Thank you for making Lhe time!
Sincerely,

James Marsh

Director of Administration

U.S. Reprasentative Mike Kelly (PA-16)
1707 Longwarth House Office Bullding
(202) 225-5406 | www.kelly.house.gov

neeenQrIgINGL Messagaemmm- |
Fram; Duncan, Chrls-

Sent: Friday, Apri 24, 2020 5:17 PM '
T Engquist, Laura -

Ce; Stroia, Matthew s

>, Zimpher, Nate - ; Prater, Lorl

; Marsh, Jamas R
1 Mevyer, Katie 4

7 (0 chann) Joyce, Natalle

Subject! RE: Member Requtest: Mike Kelly and Troy Balderson

l; Gourdikian, Alexandra
e Bonner, Lee

HI Lauira,

Thanks for clrcling back. Please let us know if Tuesday, April 28th at 2:15 PM Eastern/11:15 PM Pacific will work for both
Congresstman Kelly and Congressman Balderson. In the meantima, we will place a hold on the Leader 5 scheduie for that
time frame. Thanks and have a nice weeken|

Mrs. Christiana Duncan

District Scheduler

Congressman Kevin McCarthy-(CA-23)
Repuhlican Leader

4100 Empire Drive, Suite 150
Bakersfield, CA 93308
P-661-327-3611

£-661-631-9535
www.kevinmecarthy.house.gov

—w«»Olriginal Messapa e
Fram: Engguist, Laura
Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 12:37 PM

To: {Buchanan) loyce, Natalie <5EEEEG_G——TT

Ce: Stroia, Malthew > Zimpher, Nate -

: Prater, Lori

P Gourdikian, Alexandra
e Duncan, Chrls

b: Mever, Katle | NGENGN
: b1 Bonner, Lee
Sub]ect. Re: Member Request: M;Ice Kelly and Troy Balderson

21-92201_0083



Thanks, alll Please let us know If there's a good time early next week for our bosses to connect. We'll be as flexible as
passible ta hls schedule, '

Have a grest weekendi

Laura Enggulst
Deputy Chief of Staff
Rep. Balderson {QH12)

Sent from my 1Phone

>On Apr 23, 2020, at 7:34 PM, (Buchanan) Joyce, Natalic <SR- v o::

> : _
> Matt - thanks for the Information and background. Ceing our team to see how we can he helpful and if we can set upa
call with the Leader next week. We will get back to you. '

. .

5.

> Natalie Buchanan Joyce

> Office of Relnublf_can Leader Kevin McCarthy
>

o .
> On Apr 23, 2020, at 11:29 AM, Strola, Matthew < EEGEGEGRGGGEEE ot
o
=
> Natalle,
> _ -
> | know you ail have a lot going on today. However, we have a hon-coronavirus related issue that is critical to Mile's
district and Mr, Balderson's district, AK Steel/Cleveland Cliffs employs aver 1400 peaple in Mike’s hometown and a
large amount in Mr, Balderson's district. Unfortunately, the CEQ has declared he plans to shut down both focations I¥
the government doesn’t extand tha 232 tariffs to grain orlented electrical steel, a type of steel that goes into
transformers used in our electrical grid. The company has shown that Russian, fapan, §. Korea have been shipping
electrical steel into Canada and Mexico. Once in Canada/Meaxico, these two countries superficially enhance the product
and then send Itinto the US. Obviously, this rages agalust the spirit of the USMCA. :
> ' _ ‘
> The Issue for our offices is twa fold. Ona, jobs obviously, but two, AK Steel Is the last American maker of electrical
steel. This s a natiobal security Issue.
o .
» The CEO has had meetings with Secretary Ross, Our bosses have had calls with the Secretary and follow up calls with
_his assistants. Mike has personally spoken to Amb, Lighthizer about this. Issue and he is supportive but doesn’t want to
get Into anyone efse's lane, We have had conversations with Peter Navarro’s office. Most recently, Mike, Troy and
Marcy Kaptur sent a letter to the President on this issue and gatherad 20 others to join. Lhave attached those letters to
this emall as background for a potential call with the Leader. :

N .

> Mike and Troy wouki like to talk to the Leader for a few minutes on the phone at a some point soon to brief him on
the issue and ask for his advice on a strategy with the administration.
S :

> Simply put...we need the administration to extend the 232 tarlffs to Grain Oriented Electrical Steel coming Into the US,
>

> Thanks for the consideration Nataliel

>

21-922% 0086



> Matt
>

> <Balderson-Kelly Electrical Steel Letter to President 3,6.2020,docx>
> <Kelly-Kaptur Electrical Steel Letter to President April 15, 2020.pdf>

21-9221_0187
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i
From: Marsh, James
Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 12:16 PM
To: : Burke, Jill; Prater, Lori
Ce! Butler, Tim; Stroia, Matthew _ '
Subject: Re: Scheduler Contact information for Ross, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the AK Stee

lssue

Loxi — I emailed both Ross’s office and Lighthizer’s office. The email to Garrett in Navarro®s office failed to
send, Do you know if there is someone else in that office we should contact?

From: "Butke, Hil"

Date: Friday, April 24, 2020 at 11:54 AM

To: "Marsh, James" G, ' :atcr, Lor!"
Ce: "Butler, Tim" >, Matthew Stroia
Sublect: Re: Scheduler Contact information for Rass, Lighthizer, Navario to discuss the AK Steel Issue

Yes, let’s reach out and see what we can coordinate

From: "Marsh, James"
Date: Friday, Apri] 24, 2020 at 11:35 AM

To: "Burke, Jill" < >, "Prater, Lori"

€c: Tim Butler >, "Stroja, Matthew"

Subject: Re: Scheduler Contact information for Ross, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the Al Steel [ssue

1 don’t mind, but T don’t think we ate going to get them all on the same call. Do you want me to reach out to
cach office individually and cc you so we can find the best time for each? Also these are obviously high priovity
for MK, so we should be willing to move other things on the schedule if we have to.

Fram; "Burke, Jill" :
Date: Friday, April 24, 2020 at 11:27 AM : ' :

To: "Prater, Lori” » "Marsh, James" S
Ce: "Butler, Tim" . Matthew Sircia

Subject: Re: Scheduler Contact Information for Ross, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the AK Steel lssue

James,
Tuesday or Wednesday afternoon should work well for MK, do you mind reaching out to sef it up?

| Thanks,
Jill

From: “Prater,‘ Lori" -
Date: Feiday, April 24, 2020 at 10:48 AM

To: "Burke, Jill" <R 2 <h, james" -

1

21-922¢ 0189



- Ce: Tim Butler <SG, stroia, Matthew" «

Sulsject: Scheduler Contact Informatlon for Roess, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the AK Steel Issue

Last night, Mika said he wanted to speak with Ross, Navarro, and Lighthizer. Below are the scheduling information for
each of the offices. If possible, we should try to set up a call with Ross first since he’s the most critical, Senator Portman
will be making a simllar request today [ understand, And 1t's on our favorite issuel

Sent from my IPhone

Begin forwarded message:

- From: < >
Date: April 23, 2020 at 6:29:58 PM EDT
To:< >
Subject: Cantacts

Hére's what | have:

For Ross: _ .
Goudarzi, Talat {Faderal} - {Rosgs Administrative Assistant)

For Lighthlzer:

Jaciyn Khight

Director of Scheduling

Offica of the United States Trade Rapresantative

Exacutive Office of the President
o. NN | a%
For Navarro, we reach out to Garreit:

| Garreit Ziegler
Office of Trade and Manufacturing Pottey

The Vhite Hotise
0%10-

Beth DeBrosse Ludwlg

AK Stee! Corporation

Carporate Manager, Gavarnment & Public Relaﬁuns
4227 Cenirg Pointe Dr.

West Chester, OH 45069

Cell:

Confidentiality Notice

This message Is intended exclusively for the individual or entity to which 1t is addressed and may contaln
privileged, proprietary, or otherwlse private Information.

if you are not the named addressee, you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy or dissemlnale
this message or any part of it, If you have recelved this message In error, please notify the sender

immediately by e-mall and delete all coples of the message.

21-922%_0100
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Prater, Lovl

ik L % DR
From: Marsh, James
Sent: Fricay, April 24, 2020 12:16 PM
To: Burke, Jill; Prater, Lori
Ca Butler, Tim; Strola, Matthew
. Subject: Re: Scheduler Contact Information for Ross, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the AK Steel

Issue

Loti ~ I emailed both Ross’s office and Lighthizer's office. The email to Gatrett in Navarro's office failed to
send,. Do you know if there is someone else in that office we should contact?

Fromt "Burke, Jill" <
Date: Friday, April 24, 2020 at 11:54 AM

To: "Marsh, James” - , "Prater, Lotl" <—’
o Niahw Stols <

Subject: Re: Scheduler Contact information for Ross, Lighthlzer, Navarro to discuss the AK Steel Issue

Yes, let’s reach out and see what we can coordinate

From: "Marsh, James" <
Date: Friday, Aprll 24, 2020 at 11:35 AM
To: "Burke, JIN" , "Prater, Lori" <
et Tlm Butler < , "Strola, Matthew" <
Subject: Re: Scheduler Contact information for Ross, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the AK Steel Issue

" Idont mind, but I don’t think we are going to get them all on the same call, Do you want me to reach out to
cach office individually and cc you so we can find the best time for each? Also these are obviously high priority
for MK so we should be willing to move other things on the schedule if we have to,

From: "Burke, Jill*
Date: Friday, April 24, 2020 at 11:27 AM
To: "Prater, Lorl" < » "Matsh, James" <
Ce: "Butler, Tim" , Matthew Strola <
Subject: Re: Scheduler Contact Information for Ross, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the AK Steel lssue

- James,
Tuesday or Wednesday afternoon should work well for MK, do you mind reaching out to set it up?

Thanks,
Jitf

From: "Prater, Lor}"
Date: Friday, April 24, 2020 at 10:48 AM

vo: “sure, i1 R ar<h, somes" <

1

- LP_0t08
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Ce: Tim Butler < ; "Strola, Matthew" <
Subject: Scheduler Contact information for Ross, Lighthizer, Navarro to discuss the AK Stee! Issue

Last night, Mike sald he wanted to speak with Ross, Navarro, and Lighthizer. Below are the scheduling Information for
each of the offices. If possible, we should try to set up a call with Ross first since he's the most critical. Senator Portman
will be making a simllar request today | understand, And It's on our favorite issuel

Sant from my iPhone

Begln forwarded message:

From; < b
Date: Aprll 23, 2020 at 6:20:58 PM EDT
To:< >

- Subject: Contacts

Here's what | have:

For Ross:
Goudarzl, Talat (Federal) « {Ross Administrative Asslstant)

For Lighthizer;

Jaclyn Knight

Director of Scheduling

Ofilce of the United States Trade Reprasantative
Executive Office of the President

0, I e

For Navairo, we reach out to Garrett:

Garratt Ziogler
Offlce of Trade and Manufacturing Palicy
Ti

i o n—

Beth DeBrosse Lucdwig

AK Stael Corporation

Corporate Manager, Government & Public Relations
9227 Centre Pointe Dr.

West Chester, OH 45069

Phone;

Call:

Confidentlality Notice :

This message Is intended exclusively for the individual or entity to which It Is addressed and may contain
privileged, propriatary, or otherwlse private infoermation,

if you are not the named addressee, you are not authorlzed to read, print, retaln, copy or disseminate
this message or any part of It. If you have recelved this massage In error, please notlfy the sender
Immediately by e-mall and delete all coples of the message. -

LP_0108

21.9221_0193




Prater, I.ori__'

Lo
From; Marsh, James
Sent; - Monday, April 27, 2020 2:16 PM
To: Goudarzl, Yalat (Fedaral}
Ca _ Strofa, Matthew; Prater, Lori; Burke, Jil; Butler, Tim; Fotl, Anthony (Federal); Kumar, Harry
(Fadaral)

Subject: ' Re: Phone Call Requast from Rep. Mike Kelly

Hi Tala,

That works for us, Do you have a conference line we shiould have the 0011gressﬁan call into at that time?
Wao appreciate you making the time,

Sincerelj(, |

James Marsh

" Rirector of Administeation
U.S. Representative Mike Kelly (PA-16)
1707 Longworth House Office Building
(202) 225-5406 |

From: "Goudarzi, Talat (Federal)" <
Date: Monday, Aprll 27, 2020 at 2:06 PM
To: "Marsh, lamas"
Ce: Matthew Strola
"l <

, "Burke,
P, "Foti, Anthony (Federal)”

, "Prater, Lorl"

, "Butler, Tim"
, "Kumar, Harry (Federal)" <
- SubJect: Re! Phone Call Request from Rep. Mike Kelly

Hl James,

Hope you're well and thank you very much for your patlencel Would 3:30pm EST, Friday, Méy 1st work well
for a call? '

Thanks again and look forward to hearing from you!

Tala:

From: Marsh, James
Sent; Friday, April 24, 2020 12:07 PM
To: Goudarzl, Talat (Federal)
Ces Strola, Matthew

s Prater, Lorl < + Burke, JH

; Butler, Tim <
Subject: Phone Call Request from Rep, Mike Kelly

LP_0083

21-9221_0194




Hi Talat,

Congressman Kelly would like to speak with Secretary Ross regarding AK Steel at his eatljest convenience, For
referenco, please see the attached letters that the Congressman sent to President Trump, Please let us know if
this is possible.

Sincerely,

James Marsh

Director of Administration -

U5, Representative Mike Kelly (PA-16)
1707 Longworth House Office Building
(202) 225-5406 |

LP_goB4

21-9221_0195




Prater, Lori

s Ll SO
From: Knight, Jaclyn C. cOP/USTR <N
Sent: - Monday, April 27, 2020 11:15 AM
Tos Marsh, James
Cet Strale, Matthew; Prater, Lotl: Burke, fill; Butler, Tlm; Jackson, Christopher L, EOP/USTR;
' Cameron.M,Bisho ; Ekmark, Kimberly KK, EOP/USTR;

Subject: RE: Phone Call Raquest from Rep. Mike Kelly

From: Knight, Jaclyn €. EOP/USTR

Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 12:14 PM
To! lames.amarsh
Coi "matthew.stroi

; 'fill.burke
; ackson,

3 Ekmark, Kimberly K. EOP/USTR
; Carr, Kerrle L. EOP/USTR <

Fram: Marsh, James <
Sent: Friday, Aprill 24, 2020 12:11 PM
Toi Knight, Jaclyn C. EQP/USTR <
Cet Strola, Matthew

; Prater, Lorl < s Burke, Jitl

: Butler, Tim <
Subject: Phone Call Request from Rep. Mike Kelly

LP_0092
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Hi Jaclyn,

Hope you are doing well! My boss would like to speak with Ambassador Lighthizer regarding AK Steel at his
earliest convenionce. For reference, please see the attached letters that the Congtessman sent to President
Trump on this issue, Please let us know if this is possible,

Warm regards,

James Marsh
Director of Administration
U.S. Representative Mike Kelfy

(PA-16)

1707 Longworih House Office Building

(202) 225-5406 |

LP_0093

21-9221_0197
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From: Marsh, James

Sent: - Friday, Aprit 24, 2020 1:39 PM

To Garrett.M.Zlegle

o Strola, Matthew; Prater, Lork; Burke, Jill; Butler, Tim

Subjact: - Phone Call Request from Rep, Mike Kelly

Atinchmonts: Kelly-Kaptur Electrical Steel Letter to President Aprit 15 2020.pdf; Balderson-Kelly

Elactrical Steel Letter to President 3.6.2020,pdf

Hi Garrett,

Congrogsman Kelly would like to spealc with Mr, Navarto regarding AK Sicel gt his eatliest convenlonce, For reforence,
ploaso seo the attached letters that the Congressman sent to President Trump on this issue. Ploase let us know if this is-
possible. '

Sincerely,

James Marsh

Director of Administration '

U.S. Representative Mike Kelly (PA-16)
Y707 Longworth House Office Building
(202) 225-5406 |

LP_0105

- 21.9221_ 0198




- EXHIBIT 20

21-9221_0199



From:

Sentz

To:

Subject;
Attachmeonts:

Stroia, Matthew

Friday, Aptil 24, 2020 10:37 AM

Prater, Lari

fvtike Kelly Text o Mr, Meadows

Balderson-Kelly Electrical Steel Letter to President 3,6,2020.docx; ATTO0001 hten; Kelly-
Kaptur Electrical Steel Letter to President April 15, 2020.pdf; ATT00002.htm

FYL.| sent this over to the WH, Can you give Beth and Patrick a heads up?

Thanks!

Matt

Begin forwarded message;

From: "Strola, Matthew"
Date: April 24, 2020 at 9:30:37 AM CDT
Subject: Mike Kelly Text to My, Meadows

Chris and Jeff,

I know you all have a lot golng on today. However, | wanted to give you a heads up that
Mike Is going to be texting Mr. Meadows about an issue this morning. We have a non-
coronavirus related issue that is critical to Mike's district and Troy Balderson's

district. AK Steel/Cleveland Cliffs amploys over 1400 people in Mike's hometown and a
large amount in Mr, Balderson’s district. Unfortunately, the CEO has declared he plans
to shut down both locations IF the government doesn't extend the 232 tariffs to grain
oriented electrical steel, a type of steel that goes Into transformers used in our electrical
grid, The company has shown that Russlan, Japan, 5. Korea have been shipping
electrical steel into Canada and Mexlco, Once in Canada/Mexico, these two countries
superficially enhance the product and then send it into the US. Obvlousiv, this rages
against the spirlt of the USMCA.

The lssue for our offices is two fold. One, jobs obviously, but two, AK Steel is the last
American maker of electrical steal, This is a natlonal security issue.

The CEQ has had meatings with Secretary Ross. Our bosses have had calls with the
Secretary and follow up calls with his assistants. They ave very well aware of the fssue
and have alerted CPB and USTR abaout the issues within thelr jurisdiction as wall. Mike
has personally spoken to Amb. Lighthizer about this Issue and he is supportive hut
doesn’t want to get Into anyone else's lane, We have had conversations with Peter
Navarto's office. Most recently, Mike, Troy and Marcy Kaptur sent a letter to the
Prasident on this Issue and gathered 20 others to join, | have attached those letters to
this emall. We believe that Sec. Ross Is assembling his senlor team to discuss next steps
related to his issue as well?

21-5200 0200



Simply put...we need the administration to extend the 232 tarlifs to Grain Orlented
Electrical Steel coming into the US.

Thanks gentleman]

Matt

21-8221_0201
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From: _ Prater, Lori

Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 11:01 AM

To:

Subject: [EXT] White House/Ross Cutreach -

Just wanted to give you a heads up, We reached out the White House staff and Mike is texting Mark Meadows today
since their old colleagues to get this issue on his radar screen as well as leaderships. |talked to Portman’s staff last
night. Sounds like Portman is going to call Ross directly today and we'll also reach out to schedule a call with him and

Mike as well. Balderson and Portman are supposed to talk today about AK Steel. We’ll continue to keep up the drum
beat.

Let me know if you hear anything on your end.

Sent from my iPhane

21-9221 0203
CC_OCE-000039
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From:

Sent: Thursday, April 23, 2020 12:53 PM

To: Prater, Lori

Cc: _ Zimpher, Nate; Bloom, Patrick M
Subject; Re: [EXT] RE: Electrical Steel Update Call

Great, 1:00 it Is. Use this number - talk to you in a few min.

Beth DeBrosse Ludwig
AK Steel Corporation ,
Corporate Manager, Government & Public Relations
9227 Centre Polnte Dr.

YWest Chaster, OM 45069

Lidprater, Lori" -04/28/2020 12:45:38 PNI—That works, From: Zimpher, Nale “
Frat “Prator, Lori"_ I I _

To: "Zimpher, Nato' Pl T Pil

Ce; "Bloom, Patrick M Pl

Date; Q42372020 12:45 PM :
Subject: [EXT] RE: Elactrlcal Steel Update Call

That works.

From: Zimpher, Nate
Seant: Thursday, Aprit 23, 2020 12:43 PM
To: Prater, Lor
Ce: Bloor, Patelck M
Subject: RE: Electrical Steel Update Call

Does 1:00pm work for you ali?

From: Prater, Lori
Sent: Thursday, April 23, 2020 12:42 PM
Tot ; Zimpher, Nat
Ce: Bloom, Pattlek M
“Sublect: RE: Electrical Steel Update Call

I'm avallable now until 2,

Sent: Thursday, April 23, 2020 12:27 PM

To: Prater, Lor NN : e, ot R

1
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Ce: Bloom, Patrick M
Subject: Elactrical Steel Update Call

. Hi Lorl and Nate,
Do you have & few minutes this afternoon so Patrick and [ can give you an update on information we got from DOGC this
morning? We are free now untif 2:00 and then from 3:00-4:30 and 5:00 and after. We can do Separate calls or one
together, whatever is easiest, '
Thanks|
Beth

Beth DeBrosse Ludwig

AK Steel Corporation

Corporate Manager, Government & Public Relations
9227 Centre Peinte Dr. '

West Chester, OM 45060

Confidentiallty Notice _

This message is Intended exclusively for the Individual or entlty to which it is addressed and may contaln privileged, proprietary, or
otherwise private information,

if you are not the named addressee, you are not authorized to tead, print, retain, copy or disseminate this message or any part of it.
If you have received this message In error, please notify the sender immediately by e-mail and delete all copies of the message,

21-9221_0206
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From: Curtls, Deborah (Federal{ '''''' Pli ]

| Pil ]
Sent: 412472020 11:27:05 AM ‘ ’
To: Bloom, Patrick i _ ] :
e Cobau, John {Federal) ; Graham, James D § JEEIM); Vaughn, Stephen
Subject! Re: Request for Legal POC '
Talk then,
Deborah A, Curtls

Chief Counsel for Industry and Security
U.5. Department of Commetrce

On Apr 24, 2020, at 11:16 AM, Bloorm, Patrick M b wrote:

12:30 PM taday works for us. Stephen Vaughn of King and Spalding will foin the call as well,

Thanls,
Patrick

From: Curtis, Deborah {Federal) <8
Sant: Friday, April 24, 2020 10:42 AM
To: Bloam, Patrick M <

Ce: Cobau, John (Federal) <SRG ; Graharm, James D <28

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Request for Legal POC

Great. Shall we say 12307

From; Bloom, Patrick M <
Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 10:20 AM

To: Curtis, Deborah (Federal '
Ce: Cobau, John (Federal) ; Graham, Jlames O < GGG
Subject: RE: Request for Legal POC :

Good morning, Ms, Curtis;

Thank you for your amall. Cleveland-Cliffs' Executive Vice Prasident & Chief Legal Officer, Jamas Graharn, will be
avallable for a call with you and Mr, Cobau this afternoon after 12:30 PM Eastern. |intend to oin James for this cal

and we may have representation from King & Spalding on the line as well.

Please use the following teleconference instructions:

Access] Pl :

Commorce-OCE-RF1-21-9221-0000165 21-5221_0208



Please let me know what time would work for you and My, Cobau.

Rest,
Patrick

From: Curtis, Deborah (Federal) <R e
Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 9:53 AM

To: Bloom, Patrick M <

Cet Cobau, lohn (Federal)

Subject: {EXTERNAL] Request for Legal POC

M. Bloom,

My colleague John Cobau (Chief Counsel for International Commerce) and I would like to have a discussion with
an attorney tot Cleveland Cliffs, either in-house or otherwise. s it possible for us to be connected with someone
from your General Counsel’s office?

Thank you vety much in advance.
Regards,

Deborah A, Curtis
Chief Counsel for Industry and Security
U.S, Department of Commerce
A )

PIl i(mobile)

Coufidentiality Notice: This c-mail message is intended only for the named recipients. It containg information that Ay be
confictential, privileged, attorney wouk product, or olberwise exempt ftoin disclosure under applicable faw,

[————

This electronic message and any attachments included with this message are for the exclusive use of the individual or
entity to which it is intended to be addressed. This tnessage may contain information that is privileged ot confidential
and thereby exempt and protected from unauthorized disclosure under applicable law, If the reader of this message |s
not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended reciplent, be
aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication, or the use of its cohtents, Is not
authorized and is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communlcation and are not the intended reciplent, please
notify the sender immediately and permanently delete the original message from your e-maif system.

JFRS—.

Commerce-OCE-RFI-21-9221-0000166
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Froni Beth,Ludwi

Sent: . Fricay, April 24, 2020 2:06 PM

To: Zimpher, Nate

Ce: ' Prater, Lorl; Bloom, Patrick M; Sarn_Mutopulo<| NI

Subject; : Rex (EXT] RE: Electrical Steel Update Call

Let's do 2:16, It won't take long. Sam, we can vall-you seperate If this doesn't worl for you. Talk to you shortly, DlalIn
info, below, '
Thanks

Beth DeBrosse Ludwig

AK Steel Corporation

Corporate Manager, Govarnment & Public Relatlons
9227 Centre Pointe Dr,
West Chester, OH 456068
Beth. Ludwi

Phone:

Call;

“Zimpher, Mats"
"Praer, Lo
Goo "Bam_Mulepido
[Inla: D4/24/2020 D169 PM

From:
To:

-"8loom, Paiick M4

Sublack [EXT] RE: Electricsl Stas! Updata Call

Fcan da 2 ar anytime after 3 {only time | can’t Is 2:30-3),

From: Prater, Lori
Sent: Friday, April 24, 2020 1:58 PM
“Toi Beth. Ludwi

: '
Ca sarm_Mutopulo- NSRRI 7iroher, Nate SN - - -0y, Patick M

Sublect: Re: Electrical Steel Update Call

2-3 works,
Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 24, 2020, at 1:52 PM, " "< > wrote:

We have an update out of DOC, can you all hop on a call anylime batween 2:00-3:00 or 4:00-4:307 If we can't gel atima
that works for all we can do them Individuatly,

Thanks,

Bath

Beth DeBrosse Ludwig

AK Steel Corporation
Corparate Manager, Govarniment & Public Rela_tions

_21.9221_0211



9227 Gentre Painte Dr.
West Chester, OM 45069

- Phone:
Call:
Confldentiality Notlce
This message Is Intanded axclusively for the Individual or entity to which it Is addressed and may contaln privileged, proprietary, or
otherwlse private information. '
If you are not the named addressee, you are nol autharized to reacl, print, retaln, copy or disseminate this massage or any part of it.
Ifyau have received this message in error, please notify the sender Immediately by e-mall and delete all coples of the message.

Confldentiality Notlce _

This message Is intended exclusively for the Individual or entity to which It is addressed and may contain privileged,
proprietary, or otherwise private Infarmation, _

if you are not the named addresses, yau are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy or disseminate this message or
any part of It. If you have received this message in errov, pléase natify the sender immediately by e-mail and delete all
coples of the message,

21-9221_0212
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~ From: Wilbur Rossi Pl

i Bl [
o . . .
Sent; 4/25/2020 9:14:24 AM
To: g
cc: Walsh, Michael (Fedetal) ; Hull, Cordell [l B Nikakhtar, Nazak
‘Subject: Cleveland Cliffs.

Please set up with Mike a time stot for acall this afternoon or evening Wilbur

Sent from my irhone

Commerce-QOCE-RFI-21-9221-0000001 2192210214
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From: Kumar, Harry (Federal) KRR

Sent: 4/27/2020 12:37:26 PM

To: Foti, Anthony (Federal) NENEMMRSNN; sarah_ben:inc NN Jo:rmy._hekhuis R

kris_gentite [REHTGEGNGEE oerek_miter kevin_smith
pam_thiessen |GG (o'.orater craig. kwiecinski
chiis.bowmarn NN atthew Strola (RN

; Sam Mulopulos

ce: Metaan, Duncan (Federsl) R : ©orbrowski, Eiteen (Federal) (I
Subject: RE: Conference call re: Cleveland-Clifs, inc. . '
Hey all,

Apologies for the short notice. Because of scheduling conflicts, we are golng to have to pull this call from the calendar.
- We will be in touch soon,

Thanks,
Harry

From: Foti, Anthony {Federal) <R EERERR:
Sent: Sunday, April 26, 2020 12:05 PM

; Jeremy_hekhwis | NN kris_gentile | G-
kevin_smit pam_thiessen (GG
chris.bowman/iETEE v 2tthew Stroia

P Sam Mulopulos < -

& Dombrowski, Elleen (Federal) <—>; Kumat,

Cc:Mn, Duncan (Federal) <] _
arry (Federal) JNNSNNNNNNN
Subject: Conference call re: Cleveland-Cliffs, Inc,

Please join the Department of Commerce officials for a staff briefing regarding Cleveland-Cliffs on Monday, April 27 at
4:00 PM. '

The purpose of this call is to provide an update, answer questions and address concerns of Hill offices that have
expressed an interest in this issue to the Department of Commerce. :

Please use the following teleconference information to participate:

Pl ]

Pas'scodegz PII. J
Thank you.
" Anthony

Anthony Foti ‘

Performing the delegated duties of the

Assistant Secretary for Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs
1.5, Department of Commerce

1401 Constitution Ave, NW

Washington, DC 20230
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APPENDIX A
STATEMENT OF

Lam a Vice President in the Government Relations department at Cleveland-Cliffs Inc. (the
“Company™). During April and Moy of 2020, I held the title Senio¥ Director in that same
depariment. Among other things, my responsibilities then and now include communicating with
Congressional staff, and sometimes members of Cengress, on behalf of the Company.

On Apri] 28, 2020, at approximatety midday, [ received a phone call from the Company’s
CEO, Lourenco Gonealves. During that conversation, Mr, Goncalves told me that he had received
ant incoming call en his cell phione from Commerce Secretary Wilbur Ross shorily before Mr,
Gonealves had called me. Mr. Gonealves said that Secretary Ross had informed him that the
Department of Commerce intended to announce publicly in the near future that the Department
would be self-initiating a new Section 232 investigation covering transformer laminations and
cores. I understood Secretary Ross conveyed to Mr. Goneatves that (1) the Departrment believed
the prospective new Section 232 investigation could be handled in an expedited fashion, meaning
that it could be’ completed in as little as four months; (2) the investigation would be ovetseen by
Under Secretary of Commerce for International Trade Joe Semsar; and (3) Secretary Ross would
be given regular updates that he would pass along to the Company to the extent legally permissible.

~ Following my phone conversation with Mr. Goucalves, early in the afternoon that same
day, I discussed the matter by phone with my colleaguetho is a Corporate Manager

in the Company’s Government Relations department, Consistent with our roles in the Company’s

Government Relations department, we decided to contact staff in the offices of several members
of Congress representing areas in Pennsylvania and Ohio that included Company facilities

impacted by that prospective new Section 232 investigation. Generally spea'king,and

I together coniacted staff in those members® offices by phone to inform them of the information

Secretary Ross had conveyed to the Company that day. As part of those efforts, we contacted staff
for Rep. Mike Kelly. - '

At approximately 2:43 p.m. (ET) that afterncon, and T spoke to

Legishative Director for Rep. Mike Kelly, on a telephone conference call, To the best of my
rzcollection, the three of us were the only people on the line for that conversation. While [ no
longer remember the precise dialogue from that call, I generally recall that we told N tht
the Department of Commerce had informed the Company that it intended to self-initiate a new
Section 232 invesligation covering transformer laminations and cores. I do not recall discussing
any of the following topics during that call: the Company’s share price, trading in the Company’s
shates, or Victoria Kelly,

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS ~ HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED

21-9221_0220
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APPENDIX B

STATEMENT OF IR

I'am a Corporate Manager for Federal Government Relations at Cleveland-CIilfs Inc. (the
“Company™), anc I was serving in a comparable role during April and May of 2020. Ameong other
things, my responsibilities include communicating with Congressional staff, and sometimes
- members of Congress, on behalf of the Company,

On April 28, 2020, in approximately the early afternoon, I had a phone conversation with
my colleague then a Senior Director in the Company’s Government Relations
department, During that conversat'ionadescribed to me a conversation he had with the
Company’s CEQ, Lourenes Gonealves, in which Mr. Gonealves conveyed that he had received an
incoming call from Commerce Secretary Wilbur Rogss midday that day, I understood that Sectetary
Ross had informed Mr, Gonealves thal the Department of Commerce intended to announce
publicly in the near future that the Department would be self-initiating a new Saction 232
investigation covering transformer larninations and cores. T understood Secretary Ross conveyed

to Mr. Goncalves that (1) the Department believed the prospective new Section 232 investigation

could be handled in an expedited fashion, meaning that it could be completed in as little as four
months; (2) the investigation would be overseen by Under Secretary of Commerce for International
Trade Joe Semsar; and (3) Secretary Ross would be given regular updates that he would pass along
to the Company to the extent legally permissible,

Consistent with our roles in the Company’s Government Relations department, SISl

and I decided to contact staff in the offices of several members of Congress representing areas in

Pennsylvania and Ohio that included Company facilities impacted by that prospective new Section -

232 investigation. Generally speaking, and [ together contacted staff in those
members’ offices by phone to inform them of the information Secretary Ross had conveyed to the
Company that day. As part of those efforts, we contacted staff for Rep. Mike Kelly,

At approximately 2:43 p.m. (ET) that afternoon, IRl and T spoke to

Legislative Director for Rep. Kelly, ona telephone conference call. To the bestof my recollection,
the three of us were the only people on the line for that conversation. While I no longer remember

the precise dialogue from that call, I generally recall that we 1:oldmhat the Department

of Commerce had informed the Company that it intended to self-initiate a new Section 232

investigation covering transformer laminations and cores. 1 do not recall discussing any of the

following topics during that ¢all: the Company’s share price, trading in the Cotnpany’s shares, or
Victoria Kelly, -

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS -~ HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT REQUESTED
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Deposition of WITNESS 2, conducted

virtually.

Pursuant to agreement, before Jesse Greer,

'Notary Public in and for the State of Maryland.
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Phone: 202~225-9739
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PROCEEDTING S
MR. BROWN: For the record, this is

Jeff Brown with the Office of Congressional

and Annie Cho. We are undertaking a remote
video interview of Witness 2 from Representative
Mike Kelly's office. It is May 21, 2021. 1It's
a little after 9:30 a.m. Witness 2 has been
given a copy of the False Statements Act and
with fhat, we will get started.

S0, Witness 2, first, the question is,
you are currently in Representative Kelly's
Congressional Office, correct?

WITNESS 2: That is correct.

MR. BRCWN: 2And what is your title and
what is your role in the office?

WITNESS 2: I am Policy Director/Tax
and Trade Counsel.

MR. BROWN: Okay. And you have held
that pOSlthH since at least January of 2020,

WITNESS 2: Since -- I started off as

‘Policy Director and Tax Counsel, T added Trade

i

PLANET DEPOS
888.433. 3767 | WWW PLANETDEPOS. COM

Ethics. With me are my colleagues Omar Ashmawy‘l
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over the course of the time since I handle both
of those issues and everyone loves a good title
in DC. So, I just thought I'd make mine.bigger,
s0. |

MR. BROWN: Okay. And you have been
working on this stuff since at least January of
2020,

WITNESS 2: Yeah. I worked for a
former Ways and Means, Pennsylvania member, and
s80, before that, but I don't believe T ever had
-= I don't think this issue -- other than just

general steel 1issues and also I was closer to --

cur district was closer to Philly. So, sorry, .

that's my schedule.

MR. BROWN: That's okay.

WITNESS 2: So, at that point -- so,
really until I started working for Mike Kelly,
it was the only time I, you know.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: And it's a member company

in his district, so like avery —-- every

Congressional Office, you get to know all the

" PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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members companies in the district, so.

MR. BROWN: Right and you're touching
on the next question. SO, you -- you're sort of
the lead on issues involving Cleveland Cliffs or
AK Steel.

-WITNESS 2: When it comeé to -- ves.
Wben it comes to those, you know, tax or trade
or anything related, yes.

MR. BROWN: Okay. For tax or .—-

WiTNESS 2: Or terrorist, anything
that s all w1th1n, you know, the trade space.

MR. BROWN: Great. Well, as I
mentioned in my E-mail earlier today, and we may
have talked about it, the primary thing I want
to do today 1is just sort of like walk th:ough a
timeline of events, get your recollection. TI'il
show you a bunch of documents +to try and jog
your memory on scme things.

WITNESS 2: Sure, thank you.

MR. BROWN: But What I;ll do up front

is I just want to ask You generally about some

issues and where I want to start focusing 1is,

 PLANET DEPOS B
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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you know, in the events leading up to the May 4,

2020 Section 232 announcement by the Department

i

of Commerce, but I'm not going to start on May
4ﬁh. I'm going to back up a little bit and just %
ask you when did you aﬁd when did Representative_
Kelly, the Congressional Offibe, first

understand that the Butler Works, the AK Stee]l E

Plant in Butler, Pennsylvania, was potentially
going teo shut down?

WITNESS 2: So, I don't think T ever
feally felt like it was going to shut down.
There's a lct of —- as all things in ~- a lot of
dompanies will say that they're about to close
down and they neﬁer close -- close down. They
might go into_baﬁkruptcy, they might go into any
numder of things. So, I never really got a
cléar sense that they were actually ever going
to be shut down. A lot of -- 3 lot of, you |
know, a lot of CEOs will come in with their haif
on fire. You know, my job is, like any

congreésional is, are the -- is this really --

is this -- are they really going to be shutting

"PLANET DEPOS |
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS. COM
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down because of, you know, x, vy, and Z, Or are
you trying to get like -- like —;.lots of
companies have done throughout -- throughout the
history of ~- of the Hill, I think, who, vou
know, want to change the law to, you know, to
benefit them, whether -- whether or not they're
being gamed, particularly in the trade, well
éctually the trade and tax based is that, you
know, that they're being gamed internationally
and so, you -- whether it's tax or trade. And
50, you know, on the tax side, it's we're going
to invert and move our héadquarters to, you

know, to Ireland or a lot of CEOs come in and

say that unless -- unless -- particularly more

sO0 1in the tax base -— unless the tax, vyou know,
we get tax reform, we're moving our headquarters
to Ireland because we have a more favorable tax
rate or we might just shut down our, you know,
dur Us, you know, subsidiary companies, it
doesn't matter.

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: So, T kind of take it with

888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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a grain of salt that actually they are going to
really shut down. Until I see notices going out
and --.and they do have to —- I'm from the west
coast, sc we don't have as many unions,Abut T
learned that, you know, the unions and uhdér
whatever contract that they have with the
company, ﬁhat they have to give them a head's up
if they -- an intent to —— and I'm not expert in
labor law -- but thef have tc give them a head's

up if they are going to potentially lay people

off or close a shop or -- and to my knowledge,

maybe that went out. But there was discussion
that that mightrpotentially happen, but I don't
ever recall it ever happening, so.

MR. BROWN}_'Well, in this case, as I
understand it, the Cleveland-Cliffs CEO, it's —-
it's —— I think it's the March timeframe.

WITNESS 2: Ts it?

MR, BROWN: And to your point says --

WITNESS 2: I think they set it. I
don't know if it actually went -- |

- MR. BROWN: Well —--

g R R 2 R AN e R YR T R T e R Y AV T o B B

PLANET DEPO
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.shut these plants down if T don't get help with

WITNESS 2: And maybe you, I mean, you
maybe know. ' E
MR. BROWN: Well, let me -- let me —--

let me try and jog vyour memory a little bit. I F

think it's in March, and this goes to the point,

I think, you were just making. The Cleveland-—

Cliffs CEO, right around the time they were

going to acquire AK Steel says, I'm going to

the 232 tariffs. Is that your understanding of
how things went?
WITNESS 2: And I think he -- I think

he might have testified -- well, so there's a

steel --
MR. BROWN: Right. It was before a i
steel caucus.

WITNESS 2: Yes. And that's the first E

time I think I ever met him and he's a very

different character than the previcus president.

So -- so, that was probably the first time I
heard him say it publicly. Whether that

matters, you know, whether that —-— that actually

R e R T PR M e et e R D R T o oA B P

PLANET DEPOS |
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS. COM
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initiated anything or, you know, whether or not
if it was more bluster than anything else, I
kind of -- I think that was the first time it
was done in a public forum with other
Pennsylvania members there. But again, that was
my.first, you know, again, it's the CEO —-

MR. BROWN: Yeah, 7

WITNESS 2: -- a new CEO, but that was
my -- that was the first time T think -- that |
was the first time I ever actually had héard of
him, and I was actually at that hearing, so,
with my boss. So, I do recall it,

| MR. BROWN: I get —-- T gét the

impression that after he made that statement he,
you know, kind of doubles down on it a little
bit later. I get the impression that this
becdmes a focus in the office. Ts it fair to
say‘that?

WITNESS 2: I, you know, I mean, I
don't think it necessarily any more, T mean, I
cover a lot of issues, and sc, no more than

every other focus. I think it's more of a focus

e e s o e

PLANET DFEPOS
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for Mike because it's down the street from his,

you know, where he lives. 'These people come

like, you know, it's his small town‘that's

lived. He's a 72-year-cld man. It's like ;~
MR. BROWN: Right.

WITNESS 2: -- every -~ and I'm from a

small town in Oregon, you know. I think it's a .

big issue. You drive by, I mean, he literally
drives by AK Steel, and it's been different
iterations over the years. It used to be a much
bigger steel plant, which is kind bf the case --
we have a lot of steel in Western PA, and over
the years, it used to be like Erie,

Pennsylvania. It used to have kind of a ropbust

economy. Whether or not it was because of our

ttade laws maybe, I mean, it could be any-number
of factors and, you Xnow, we ali lament the
decline of manufacﬁuring, but we are an advanced
economy now and, you know, those jobs that don't
pay as well and we also have a lot of
environmental laws that in some sense pecple,

you know, companies would prefer to locate

WP . MtDEPOW?WAM =
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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elsewhere. T think it's happened in the high
tech industry and in the fabs. Semiconductor
fabs have gone overseas. You know, you go where
it financially makes sense. And so, I think --
I think a lot of it was pérhaps —— the way I
read it, having worked on the Hill twenty years
-— T don't suffer fools and I —- my personal
feeling was he is in his -- he's Very Latin --
Létin American man,'and he likes to, you know.
Let's just say the previous president of AK
Steel never made --— hever, ever, you know,
obviously he lamented like we're moving -- we're
losing market share} theré’s this, there's that,
you know, could we have some help on the, you
know. But that's -- that's -—- that's the US
trade and steel industry in general.

MR. BROWN: Um-hum.

WITNESS 2: You know, like I think for

the last two months, they've -- I've been
getting from the TAA -- T don't know if you're
familiar -- with layoffs, like, and in -- on

multiple steel companies in our district. So,

T T e T e e e O e e e K e et S b R R
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in some sense, you know, it's a trend --
MR. BROWN:  Yeah.
WITNESS 2: -- across the industry.

So, this isn't -- this, you know, whether or not

‘they actually close or not, you know, until I

see it -- start seeing notices coming from, you
know --—
| | MR. BROWN: Right.

WITNESS 2: =-- they -- the company
actually pulls the trigger and sends the intent
to lay off to, YOu know, the labor unicn, then -
- and I have it on paper and it's a public, you
know, notification, then I kind of take it with
a2 grain of salt, to be honest, so. .

| MR. BROWN: You said before, you krniow,

it's important to Representative Kelly because

“he's from Butler -- he lives in Butler. To what

extent -=-
WITNESS 2: For their whole life.

MR. BROWN: Yezh. To what extent, you

know, given his interest and given Butler is his

hometown, is he, you know, staying on top of

 PLANET DEPOS
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these issues, wanting you and/or Matt and others
to keep him apprised of what's goeing on with AK
Steei? |

7. WITNESS 2: You know, I deal,
actually, less with Mike and Matt. Matt doesn't
1ive down here. He lives in the District. I
prokably see him a couple, you know.. Whén we're
in session, he'll come in for one or two days
for fundraisers,‘then he leaves. BSo, I probably
talk more with the AK Steel people thaﬁ I ever
do with Mike and Matt., And part of it is just{
you know, they, you know, we do a lot in the
steel, We're members of the steel caucus. We,
you know, but it's like any other -- I probably
deal more.with AK Steel than I ever have with --—
IT've toured the plant, kut I've toured other
steel plants. I've done —- depending if-if's a
labor union shop, I'm wearing a hard hat, and if
I'm not, I'm not wearing a hard hat, so.

MR. BROWN: I guess I was more

wondering, you know, just -- just how looped in

~on AK Steel issues the Congressman was.

 888.433.3767 | WWW PLANETDEPOS.COM
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WITNESS 2: He's more locped in -- how
do I say it. Like, he's -- we're loopéd in on
the ground because he runs into AKX Steel like
the union guys, you know, at the grocery store,
at the gas station, you know.. He's in a small

town. I deal with the government affairs, you

“know. I go up to the distriect,

MR. BROWN: In other wérds, he is
interested to the extent that he's gping te be
aéked about this sort of stuff when he's walking
arcund town.

WITNESS 2: Right. That's -- that's
the level of his interest. He;s not wondering,
you know,_he's nct reviewing, you know, letters,
you know. He's very -- he could care less.
Like, he's like, that's your job in terms of
letters to the administration and, you know,
I've worked with, like every other colleague
I've worked.on over the years, I work, you know,
I mean, just me -- him sending a letter by

himself, you know, I've worked with other, you

know, I've dQne Republican letters, I've been ~--

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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I've done bipartisan letters. Tt's -- T work
more with the other staffs and the AK Steel
representative than I do with probably talking
to Mike.

MR. BROWN: Wellrff well, let me ask
you this then. How, you know, I see from the
documents and, you know; from the comments you
just made, you're working fairly closely with
the folks at AK steel on some of these issues.
How big of a deal is —-- how blg of a deal are

these 232 issues to AK Steel to Cleveland-

CCliffe?

WITNESS 2: You krnow, I had never even
heard of a 232 until, quite frankly, until the
Trump administration. 1If you told me there was
such a thing as & 232, you know, the Hill
doesn't really deal with a lot of trade issues

as much as like tax issues because a lot of that

is just done down at USTR or Commerce. And what -

actually -- I really have -- over the course of

twenty years, have very limited contact with

Commerce. They just don't —- they just don't
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have -- we just -- we don't do a lot of, you
khow, Congressional casework issues with them.
We don't ~- they kind were off -- and maybe it's
just a function of, you know, the issues I've
done over the years. But I've really never even
heard of a 232, |
MR. BROWN: And maybe it's -- I

shouldn't ask about it in the context of 232 but
more in the context of how big of a deal is it -
to AK Steel,.ﬁo Cleveland-Cliffs to try and
close this what they see as a loophole for --

 WITNESS 2: To be honest, I have no
idea. I mean, that's -- that's like in the
weeds trade lawyer. I think -- to be honest, I

think whatever is in the toolbox that would

help them in terms of product coming in, I don't

care 1f it's 232, it could be any number of --
any number of things in the kind of -~ the trade
toolbox to limit products coming in to, you
know, the United States. You know, over the

years, it's been everything from lampposts,

from, you know, every company at some point or
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at least particularly in the éteel, aluminum is E
another one, and for every one company that }
wants a 232 or some kind of trade remedy, %

there's another company who doesn't. So, in

some sense, yocu're kind of relying on what both
companies are, you know, companies that want the

protectiocnism, not that, you know,'want,—— want
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some sort of trade remedy or protection versus,
you know, another company ﬁho deesn't want it,
and it's kind of,ryou kind of rely on the
companies, I mean, because I don't really have
the ability to go investigate whether or not
they're being, you know, accurate.

And I will say that that -- what has

been a topic of discussion in the office is

like, so we issue this 232. Do we really —-- if

they -- if they do -- do we really know they're

not going to really still just close the plant
anyway? And quite frankly, we, you know, I'm

'like, I-don't know, I don't see their books.,

And, you know, they say it's going to help them

or -- but not just this company, any cbmpany,
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from lampposts to anybody that's producing here

cr if, you know, or if we put made in America, H

will that actually change‘another, you know, or
require -- that's another thing on the steel or
aluminum -- if you require, you know, the

military to buy a certain amount of product

that's, you know, produced domestically, you
kncw, it's the -- in some sense, you know, the
U5 companies, you know, especially for
Republicans, they want to be like free market,
but they understand like other companies aren't
necessarily free market, S0, you're tiying to‘
kind of ferret ocut whether or not, you know, if
—-- 1f, you know, Commerce does this or if USTR
does this, you know, will this actually save
jobs at ——.at the end of the day, which was --
which was, you know, the goai of any member I've
ever worked for. You know, they don't like to
see -- and that's what the TAA, you knew, kind
of ex1stlng program -- it's to help them, you

know, with layoffs if they do.

I'm kind of, you know, Mike listens to
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-this, I'm ready to go back.

people, you know, when he's getting -~ shopping
at Shoppers or wherever he shops in thé
District. He runs into those people.
MR. BROWN: And that's why this is key
for Representative_Kelly is that --

WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR. BROWN: —-- 1,400 jobs in his
community are potentially ocut the dbor.

WITNESS 2: 1I'll be hcnest, he has
five car dealerships and if 1,400 jobs_go away,
it also, you know, probably impacts, you know. -
There are days wheré he's like, I'm done with
He's like I'm a car
guy that never ran for officé, not intefested,
you know,-and when I retire, I'm going to go
back because Géd knows I don't want to be at
home every -- every day, and his —-- and, as he
says, his wife doesn't want him home every day,
and I'm like, I'm pretty sure thaﬁ all wives
think that way. You neédrto go and have a hobby
or something.

He's like, I don't have any

hobbies. I mean, he's very —-- he's very Irish.
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He's very -- there is nothing that you don't
discuss with him, which, you know --

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: So, you know, I think for
him, it's like —-- uhfoh. Can you --

MR. BROWN: Sorry. Omar, I see you're
up on video. Did you want to pop in? You're on
mute.

MR. ASHMAWY: Yeah, yeah. 1 really —-—
actually, so I think maybe it's an unfair
question to ask you —-- for you to tell us how
important this 232 investigation and the
interaction with Commerce was for AK Steel.

Like maybe anocther way of asking is, how
important did they tell you it was? Regérdless
of whether or not you think they were overeating
or being over-—emotional, how important did they
tell you it was? |

WITNESS 2: You mean how —- how
important Mike —- like —--

MR. ASHMAWY: No. FHow important did

AK Steel tell you -- how important did
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Cleveland-Cliffs tell you this was to them? How
did they preseﬁt it to you?

MR. BROWN: 1In other words; Witness 5
and Witness 4 -~

WITNESS 2: Witness 5, you know, so,
and also Witnesé 4 was relatively new.
Cbviously, the -- the Cleveland-Cliffs pecple
are, you know, kind of new, you know,‘new -—
“kind of new to the game. I've never ever dealt
with either -- I'd never heard of Cleveland-
Cliffs, if that télls you anything. So, you

know, it's -- they said it was important but it

~-— I never got the sense that they wculd -- if
we didn't do -~ if 232 or some other trade
remedy wasn't issued, that they, you know,
they're really never geing, I mean, they'ré
going to actually close the plant. I never
really felt that that was --

MR. ASHMAWY: I realize that, But, I

mean, we've seen documents, you know, from Lthem

that, you know, and -- and have received

e e T P e s ey
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representation from them that they at least

thought it was important or at least they

thought so.
| WITNESS 2: Oh,'yeah. Oh, yeah, yeah,
yeah. -
MR. ASHMAWY: That ‘it was important.
WITNESS 2: No, I think they

definitely -- yeah. "No, I definitely think they

- thought it was important, yeah. There's no --

there's no -~- yeah. There's absolutely -- they
definitely thought it was important,

MR, ASHMAWY: Yeah, yeah.

WITNESS 2: Do I think that they're
already back trying to figure out somefhing else
to do with this administration® Yes; they
already are. They are not talking to us,

necessarily. They are now —- like they have now

kind of migrated, like if this happens,. you

know, when the pendulum swings -- T think
they're now more focused on the ~- the
Democratic offices in this current

administration. So, to be honest, it's funny.
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I think I talked to AK Steel probably every
couple weeks, if not every other week. TIt's
crickets. I have not talked to them since the
new administration. S0, I think they're, you
know, they're doing what the Government.Affairs
pedple do, as they're pursuing other avenues to,
you know -- you know, to secure, I think some
sort of, you know, protections from imports with
this administration, and that's, you know,
that's now the Democrats, you know, kind of on
their plate.
| MR, BROWN:' And you'd -~ you'd be
talking to Witness 5, right?
- WITNESS 2: Yeah. Oh, yeah,

MR. BROWN: And Witness 5 -~ Witness 5
is their main or is she their only internal?

WITNESS 2: She was their -- she was
their only representative for AK Stéel. Now,
she reports to Witness 4.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

- WITNESS 2: And so, I think, yeah.

MR. BROWN: They are the two in-house
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lobbyists for AK Steel --
WITNESS 2: Yes.

MR. BROWN: -~ and Cleveland-Cliffs,
WITNESS 2: Yes.

MR. BROWN: Are there any other more

senior Government Affairs officials or those are

the -- those are the two.

WITNESS 2: Those are the only two
that I have dealt with. |

MR. BROWN: Okay. Well, let me --
let's get into some of the documents énd_that
way, you can kind of help march me through the
timeline of events that happened here,

Saul, can you pull up Document Number
1 for us? And if you cén give me control of it,
I'd be appreciative. All right,

S0, Witness 2, I'm going to zoom out a
little bit,

WITNESS 2: Sure.

MR. BROWN: 'This is a document you

produced to us, Hopefully, that's not too small

for you to read there. This is an E-mail from

2 Rkt A R R U e K Bt
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Matt Stroia to yourself -- to, excuse me,
Natalie Joyce and you are copied on this Ewmail.
I'll give you a second to look at it.

- WITNESS 2: Okay. Okay., It's a
little. I'm‘going to open it so I can see it.

MR. BROWN: Yeah. I can -- I can blow
it up a little. -

WITNESS 2: Can you blow it up a
little bit?

MR, BROWN: Yeah,

WITNESS 2: And remind me who Natalie
is with,

MR. BROWN: Sure. I was going to ask

you that. But it's my impression that Natalie

Joyce 1s the Deputy Chief of Staff for Kevin

McCarthy.

WITNESS 2: Oh, okay. Yeah,

MR, BROWN: Does that sound -- does
that sound right? '

WITNESS 2: I am guessing. So, I have

no -- see, I rarely deal with leadership, so.

I'm guessing this.
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MR. BROWN: Well, take your time,
Finish reading this document if yéu want .,

WITNESS 2: Right, |

MR, BROWN: And let me know. T have a
couple quick questions.

WITNESS 2: Sure. I know herreached
out to -- I mean, I didn't see this or I didn't
pay attention to it. But yes.. T know that -—-
that they did do a call to Kevin McCarthy.,
| MR. BROWN: Let me ask you this. I'm
trying to gauge == this is from Matt to Kevin
McCarthy's people.

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: And the date of this is
Thursday, April 23rd, 11:30 in the morning.

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: Any reason to beliéve this
isn't an accurate assessment of the ~~.the 232
issues at the time as represented by Matt?

WITNESS 2: Say that again. =

MR. BROWN: I'm just trying to, you

know, make sure that this is an accurate
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aséessment of the ~- the issues atrthe time,
What I'm seeing and frankly what I'd like to
confirm with you is that it sounds to me like
Representative Kelly's office along With several
other offices iﬁitially took the approach that
there are these tariffs in placé —-= Section 232
-~ are in-place.

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: We would like to close a
1oophole with respect to those existing tariffs
in order to protect electrical steel,

WITNESS 2: Yes, that's -- that's
accurate,

MR, BROWN: And that -- that's the
initial strategy, that's the initial gamé plan

thét both Representative Kelly and other both

House and Senate offices ~-

WITNESS 2: Right, and I think
Balderson was -- Troy Balderson's office was
looped in on it. Yeah, and I see Troy
Balderson. Yeah,

MR. BROWN: And I see that here'at the
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end, Matt says, "Simply put, we need the

administration to extend the Section 232 tariffs

~ to grain-oriented electrical steel coming into

the US.

WITNESS 2: Yeah.
MR. BROWN: 8o, my understanding is

the initial game plan is let's use the existing

tariffs that are in place and close -- but shut

‘the loopholes -~ close the loopholes, and then

that's good for AK Steel if we do that.

WITNESS 2: Or if -- and yeah., And I
think the thing is, I mean, because I'm not at
Commerce-and,_you know, the issue is whatever
tools in your toolbox to help our -- this
company that potentially will go, you'know; will
go.mm likelany company will go out and there
will be a job loss. I think, you know, at least
from Matt's perspective, he's not a trade

person, I'm not -~ like, I'm a trade person on

'Tv,so.to speak, but I don't actually -- I don't

really know what could potentially be in the

toolbox in Commerce. So, 232 is kind of what
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the company has sald would be helpful. Because
we -~ we kind of asked them, like, what is it
that would be helpful. They have, you know,
they have a bunch of DC law firms with trade
attorneys that they're being advised. And 50,
to my knowledge, this is what the best, you
know, potential outcome or trade remedy out
there Qn'the books that would -~ would help them
the most;

MR. BROWN: So, AK Steel isg saying to
you guys, we need this 232 relief --

WITNESS 2: Extended, right. I mean,
it could be -- |

MR. BROWN: This is -- this is —-
yveah, this is what's important to us and this is
how we want it, |

WITNESS 2: Right, right.

MR, BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: Because, you know, it's
like any, you know, anything else. You have a
zillion companies cbming in needing, you know,

assistance with something, Usually, I don't, I
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mean, usually they come in and they're likef
this is what would help us.

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: You know, . there's other
things that cduld potentially help them, but
this is the one that they presented to us.

MR. BROWN: And so, that's what they -
~ AK Steel, Cleveland Cliffs said in this
situation. This is the manner in which, you
know, you guys can help us.

WITNESS 2: Yes.

MR. BROWN: Yeah, okay,

WITNESS 2: That's accurate.

MR. BROWN: Let me move on to Bocument
2, Saul, because this -- Witness 2, this
document, I think, helps me understand that the
== the strategy shifts at some point, But let
me walk you through the document . Okay. This
is an E-mail string --

WITNESS 2: [Indiscernible. ]

MR. BROWN: And let me -- I'll start

at the bottom here. vYou'll see it's from ~-
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this is.an Ewmail string from Witness 5 --
WITNESS 2: Right.
‘MR. BROWN: -- and she says on April
24, 2020, this is at 1:52 p.m., "We have an
update out of DOC," Department of Commé:ce," Can
you all hop on the call anytime between 2 and 3
or 3 .and 4?" And then you respond, "2 to 3
works. Nate Zimpher," who as I understand is
Troy Balderson's -- is a Troy'Baiderson staffer,
" says -~ _
' WITNESS 2: Um-hum.
MR. BROWN: -- he can do 2 to 3." Aand
Witness 5 ultimately responds, "Let's do 2:15.-
It won't take long." And a'2:15 call occurs.
Do you ~- what happens on this 2:15 call?
What's discussed? In other words, what is the -
WITNESS 2: Right, right,
MR, BROWN: -~ update out.of DOC?
WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: This is Friday, April
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WITNESS 2: To be honest, I -~ they
probably -~ to be honest, it's a year -- it's a
year ago. I -- because we have so many dalls.
The best of my knowledge was they were
potentially talking about issuing an extension
of the 232 or -- but that's -~ I don't récall
beyond, you know. |

MR. BROWN: Let me ask you two
questions then.

' WITNESS 2: Sure,

MR. BROWN: You said we had so many
calls, and that's -- when you say we had so many
célls, dc you méan -

WITNESS 2: I like literally --

MR. BROWN: You and AK Steel were on
the phone all the time around this time?

WITNESS 2: 1I'll be honest. I feel
like Commerce is -- I don't have a good opinion
of Commerce after this'because_z felt like they
were always -~ like, you just couldn't get an --
and I don't.know if it was Secretary Ross, but

it's -~ it was more that T felt like I was
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beating ~- like, just give —- just give us an
answer of what you're doihg'or what the thought

process is because I'm having to just like ~-

- because Mike wants to know what's going on.

He's at the grocery store running into people
and they think they're going to lose their jobs
and I'm liké -- so, I think the -- they would
reach out to -- basically, they would reach out

to AK Steel for giving us a head's up half the

time --

MR, BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: == which T found very
frustrating. But ~-- but, so --

MR, BROWN: Well, let me -~ let e
tell you this. 1I've got a call summary here.

WITNESS 2: Oh,'good.

MR. BROWN: Let's see if we can Jjog
your memory with this.

| WITNESS 2: 'Yes, ﬁlease do.:

MR. BROWN: I've got a‘call'summary.

So, this is the Friday, April 24th pheone call.

This is a call summary from Cleveland Cliffs
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that says there was a phone call between Witness
4, Witness 5, Witness 2, Nate Zimpher, and Sam
Malopoulis [phonetic], and it says, "Wltness 5
and Witness 4 prov1ded an update that the
Department of Commerce had declined to pursue
coverage of lamination and cores as derivative
products under tﬁe existing steel Section 232
tariffs and quotas." Does that jog your memory?

WITNESS 2: Somewhat.

MR. BROWN: Well? let me ask it like
this. Do you have any reason to believe that
that's not what you discussed on this call?

WITNESS 2: -NO.

‘MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: No. It was a year ago

MR. BROWN: I éu.and T == I completely
understand.

WITNESS 2: And I'm 50, so.~~ I'm 50,
S0 —— and I get a lot of information coming in,
and so.

MR, BROWN: Then I just want to make

sure it's --
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WITNESS 2: There's -~ yeah. - _ E
MR. BROWN: ~- fair to you that on
Aprll 24th, the BK Steel and Cleveland ~Cliffs 'y

via Witness 5 and Witness 4 couldAhave and it b
sounds liké would have --

WITNESS 2: Yes,.

R Al 2 T S

MR. BROWN: ~- alerted you to the fact

~ that the Department of Commerce declined to move
forward with what it sounds like was the initial %
strategy on the Hill to —-

| WITNESS 2: Yes.

MR, BROWN: -~ extend, you know, to

use the existing tariffs to address the, you

know,'to close the loopholes on the existing

tariffs.

e e e ey

WITNESS 2: Yes, ves.
MR. BROWN: Okay. Well then, let's '

move on to -- oh, before I do that, what is —-

do you know who at AK Steel Qr excuse me -- who )
Witness 5 and Witness 4 are speaking to at the 7'

Department of Commerce?

A T A PO R

WITNESS 2: I do not.

LR s e

" PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS. COM

21-9221_0262



=W N

w3 oy L

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Transcript of Virtual Interview - Witness Two
Conducted on May 21, 2021 39

MR. BROWN: Okay. Have they ever

| said, you know, we're talking to,.you know --

WITNESS 2: At Commerce?

MR, BROWN: -~ these are -- these are
our main points‘of contact at Commefce?

WITNESS 2: No.

MR. BROWN: No? OCkay. So, to the
extent that on Friday, April 24th, you guys
learned the Department of Commerce has
effectively kind of shot d&wn the strategy
that's being pursued by the Kelly office and
other offices in AK Steel, what's AK Steel and
ClevelandwCliff's reaction to that?

WITNESS 2: I really onlty dealt with

‘Witness 5 and -- and T think usually with --

well, like every Government Affairs person, she
is like ~- and she just wés starting to report
to a brand new, you know, she had someone new
she's, you know, reporting to that she doesn't
have experiénce with and, yoﬁ know, she's a
former Hill staffer. So, it's the okay, so if

this -~ what's our hext strategy? Like, if they

888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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-~ 1f Commerce won't do this, you know, what's
the next tool in the toolbox basically to put it

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: -~ that we can pursue to -
- because they believe there's been -- and based
on the data somewhere that I've seen is that
they are the last maker of electrical steel for,
you know{ for national security reasons, you
know, thét's == We probably want to keep the
last maker of electrical steel. But also that
there‘s'imports that are coming in illegally
from Mexico and'Canada, how they're, you know,
cutting and slicing these big steel parts that

basically -~ basically, they're doing an end-run

-~ an in-runaround our existing, you know,

policies on the books. 8o, how do we get at,
you know, in my mind as a.Hillsﬁaffer,_how do
we get at insuring that we -~ we stop that if
it's -~ if it's illegal or what kind of laws can

We, you know, or pursue, or what's on the books

~Wwe can pursue that's -- that the Commerce can
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pursue to make sure that that's not happening,

I mean, that's kind of =-- 80, okay. So,
Commerce doesn't issue a 232, What else can we,
you know, but in my mlnd -— and that's klnd of
the way, you know, she's -~ she has two little
kids at home. She is working from home, there's
a pandemic, you know. So, it was more like,

okay, you know. If I recall correctly, it was

like what do we do? What's -~ what can we do

next, so.

MR. BROWN: Okay. Saui, can youApull
up Document 4 for me? And so; I'1ll just give
you a-head's up. Document 4 is going to be a
Tuesday, BApril 28th-E~mail strihg about setting
up a conference call between yourself, Witness
4, and Witness 5. And again, I appreciate that
it's been a year., I want to see if you recall -

WITNESS 2: Okay, vyeah.

MR, BROWN:V ~— what was discussed on

that date. So, let me zoom out a little bit

888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS,COM
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WITNESS 2: Okay.

MR. BROWN: And you can see here at
the bottom.

WITNESS 2: Okay, there's that call,

MR. BROWN: Witness 5 says, "Hey, sent
you a text but E-mailing too., Can you =- can
you do an update call with.me and Witness 420
This is April 28th at 2:17 p.m. You say, "I'm
on the call with Mike and Troy Balderson. T can
do the call at 2:45.,n

WITNESS 2: Right,

MR, BROWN:' Then, she.sends; you know,
a dial-in for 2:45 and then the first E-mail in
the string is you forwarding that dial-in to
both Matt and Witness 1.

WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR. BROWN: So, my first question is,
what's the conversation that you have with
Witness 4 and Witness 5? And this is April
28th.

WITNESS 2: Right,

MR. BROWN: Tuesday.

15

“%f ,Sbrbgmﬂwfﬂw.mmﬂme_.
838.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

21-9221 D266

Aol i R '




Dy G R W N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

Transcript of Virtual Interviéw ~ Witness Two
Conducted on May 21, 2021

43

WITNESS 2: To be honest, I do not
have a recollection of what we talked about
other than I know that I remember Matt -- Mike
asking -- because I think there was a general
frustration that -- I'll be honest -~ that
Secretary of Commerce was a little old for that

-— for that job and really difficult to try and

get any sort of responses or get him on the

phone, and I think,.you know, the strategy is

like well, maybe if we ‘have Kevin McCarthy call,
I do recall that of that day, like Mike saying
hey, we really -- can you help us here? And it

was -- Troy Balderson was on the call with my --

I did -- that was -~ I know that piece of the

day. I don't know exactly what got said on this

one to be honest.

MR. BROWN: Okay. And so, let's back

up to that call.
WITNESS 2: Right,
MR. BROWN: On that call, that's Mike

and Troy Balderson --

WITNESS 2: Talking to --

" PLANET DEPOS
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MR. BROWN: -~ pushing -- pushing
Kevin McCarthy -~

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: ~~ Lo try and, you know,
address these issues on behalf of AK Steel and
Cleveland-Cliffs,

WITNESS 2: Hey, they're not listening
to us. Maybe if we get a call from Kevin
MCCarthy, that may be --

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: -~ you know, Secretary --

MR. BROWN: So, this is —-

WITNESS 2: Yeah, Maybe the Secretary
will stop napping all day and like maybe get
back to the Hiil.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: T mean, a lot of ~- a lot
of frustration with dealing with Commerce and
just ﬁrying to like who -- and who's at
Cbmmerce? Like, nobody knows —-=- versus like
USTR and also the head of.mw the ambassador of

USTR was a former Senate staffer, like, much

P A T A R N A
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more responsive and.again, I never spent a lot
of time dealing with Commerce. Sd, but and I've
had friends that went over to work at Commerce
and were out sooner rather than later. So, I
feel like there's a lot'of dysfunction at

Commerce and trying to ~-

MR. BROWN: So, in the call -- in the

cali with Kevin McCarthy --

WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR, BROWN: ~-~ that is, you know, you
guys saylng this is important to us, this is
important to our constituent, you know.

WITNESS 2: Right, Can we -

MR. BROWN: Both the constituents and
the business, we need to try and adjust this.
Can you kind of work with the administration?

WITNESS 2: Can you see if anyone's
awake at Commerce is kind of the gist of that
and --

MR, BROWN{ Well, let me then -- let
re read to you another call summary from

Cleveland-Cliffs. So, this is a call summary of

 PLANET DEPOS | |
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conversation that it sounds like you had with
Witness 4 and Witness 5, and this is Tuesday,
April 28th, at it looks like 2:45 p.m. Phone
call between Witness 4, Witness 5, and Witness
2. "Witness 5 and Witness 4 provided

notification of the Department of Commerce's

intent to initiate Section 232 investigation
covering transformer lamination and cores, "
Does that jog your memory at all?
WITNESS 2: Um-humn.
MR..BROWN: Okay. |
WITNESS 2: The intent, right. é
MR. BROWN: Yeah.
WITNESS 2: Yeah.
MR. BROWN: So, what -- what is that? |
What do you recall about this cail having
occurred? ' : : | E
WITNESS 2: Just that. Like the -- T
mean, the intent._ ' . r
MR. BROWN: So that can -~ that --

that seems to be an accurate -- an accurate

assessment of what you recall.
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WITNESS 2: Yeah, intent -- this is
with regard to Canada, right? Not Canada,
Mexico.

MR. BROWN: This is -- let me read it
to you again. | | | M

WITNESS 2: Yeah, please do, F

MR, BROWN: Witness 5 and Witness 4

provided notification of the Department of

Commerce's intent --—

WITNESS 2: Oh, right, right,

S R L 2 e,

MR. BROWN: =~- to initiate a Section
232 w-

WITNESS 2: 32 ~-

MR. BROWN: - investigation --

A R AT F R AT

WITNESS 2: Right, vyes.
MR. BROWN; -~ covering transformation
laminations and cores. |

WITNESS 2: Yes.

MR, BROWN: so, it sounds to me like
on this call, the prior strategy of getting the
existing 232 tariffs, you know, that cover

electrical steel didn't work, so =—-

S B e DT el
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WITNESS 2: So, it was —--
MR. BROWN: -~ the new strategy

shifted to getting an effort for 232

Jinvestigation initiated into electrical steel

and on this call from Witness 5 and Witness 4,
you're being advised that the Department of
Commerce has told AK Steel that they are going
to -~

WITNESS 2: Which would initiate --

which, quite frankly, I'1l1l be honest, I have

not, I mean, it's kind of ~- like I said, it's
relatively -- s0, we're going to, you know,
investigate. Like, whether or not they -- just

because somebody investigates it, like initiates
another investigation, .whether that produces
anything. S0, I mean, I think they took it as

like an exciting, you know, a good development.

But, you know ~-

MR. BROWN: You ~-- you were -- you
were startihg to say they took it as an exciting

or good development.

WITNESS 2: Or a good thing. You're

'PLANET DEPOS
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going to initiate_a 232. Because here, you
know, they've been going -~ saying that --

MR. BROWN: Who -- who is they? AK
Steel? |

WITNESS 2:. AK Steel, yeah. BAK Steel,
like, there's dumping.from, you know, of, you
know, ghost-type products coming to the United
States and the issué has been with -- with any
company is that demonstrating this, in fact, is
actually happening. I mean, from lampposts to -
= we get a lot of, you know, companies that cbme
in and ﬁhere‘s like this illegal dumping is
occurring, whether it's from Canada.or Mexico,
Mexico is a little easier to get things -~
products in just because of the state‘bf'their
‘government. But that doesn't necessarily mean
that it's going to lead to anything. Do you
know what I mean? Like this ig -—

MR. BROWN: So, this is —- this is a
good thing in a sense --

WITNESS 2: I consider it's a good

thing. I, I mean, at least they're going to

~ PLANET DEPOS
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investigate, which -~ which, it's unclear --
- MR, BROWN: And I guess --
WITNESS 2: —- what Commerce, you know

-~ you know, it's unclear if Commerce -- well,
Y .

- Yyou could -~ you could send a lot of letters to.

Commerce. There's not really ever a response
like hey, this is wﬁat our companies are gsaying,
you know, could you -~ your job is to help with
the enforcement and, you know, L -- I -~ yeah,

MR. BROWN: Okay,

WITNESS 2: So, I took it.that they're
actually going to maybe investigate what our
company is saying.

MR. BROWN: So, this is a good -- this
is a good thing for the company and for the
Congressman in the sense that, you know, this is
what -~ this is what we've been driving at to
get —-—

WITNESS 2: Right. We've been —- this
is whét our company, I mean, in_some sense,

you're kind of the mediator, like, this is what

- this this company is saying in our district,
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“this is what they're alleging., You, you know,

you government entity, you are the one, I nmean,
your staff --

MR. BROWN: You're advocating w*lyour
advécating for a constituent company.

WITNESS 2: - Could you -- yeah, could

you do a little digging that's in your purview,

_DepartMent of Commerce, which I'm'not sure, and

-~ 50, it loéked ~= from my perspective, it
looked like they were going to do some due
diligence on what the company is alleging.

MR. EROWN: It looks to me like you
have Matt and Witness a dialing into that
conferénce line. Do you know, are they on that
call with Witness 5 and Witness 47

WITNESS 2: I don't ~- usually they =—-
they should be -~ they should be on that call,

MR. BROWN: Okay. But even if they're
not on the cail with Witness 5 or Witness 4, T
take it that this is an important enough issue

that they're getting advised of this either, you

“know, by you or by Witness 5 and Witness 4, you

ity
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know, it looks like around 3:00 on Tuesday,'

April 28th.

on the call, but, you know.

MR. BROWN: Yeah, okay,

on the call,

MR. BROWN: Okay. Can you pull up --
sSaul, can you please pull up Document 57

And, Witness 2, just so you're aware,
this is going to be a -- a version of the séme
documents.

WITNESS 2: Okay.

same E-mail string and I -- I really have kind
of ohe main question for you. |
WITNESS 2: Sure.
MR. BROWN: All right. 8o, if you
look at this ~- I'll zoom out a little bit --
this is a different version of this document

that we got., But you can see it's the same

thing.

SRS TR e e e i i e
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WITNESS 2: My guess is that they were

MR. BROWN: A different version of the
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WITNESS 2: Right.

o eI

MR, BROWN: It's from Witness 5 saying
I sent you a text, and you say, I'm on the Mike

McCarthy/Balderson call.

WITNESS 2: Right.
MR. BRCWN: Then, there's this, okay,

we'll do it at 2:45,

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: And then, there's an -

mail atop that says from Mike Kelly.

WiTNESS 2: I was going to say, does

TR

. he have an E-mail address?

MR. BROWN: That's my question.

WITNESS 2: Well, Jeff, now you know

e S A AR PR e B

more than I do about my own boss, because I
don't -- I've never seen him E-mail since I've F
worked for him. | 7

MR. BROWN: Well, that's ~- that is my

question to you. Do you think this is Mike _ %

ey

Relly, or is it -~ is it possible that somebody
has an E-mail --

WITNESS '2; Yeah.
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MR, BROWN:.~~ you know, that says Mike
Kelly, but it's actually a staffer?

WITNESS 2: I don't know if that's
like our campaigh. I don'ﬁ -~ like, he doesn't
héve an E~mail address to my Rnowledge. I mean,
Matt would be the person that would know that or
the scheduler -~ not the scheduier like in DC,
but maybe éomeone up in the District'office
might have. But again, I've never seen him use
~~ he's -- if anything, he texts.

- MR, BROWN: Yeah,

WITNESS 2: Like, boat wrecks, I just
text him., I mean, he's a 70 —~-

MR. BROWN:. Yeah;

WITNESS 2: My previous boss E-mailed,
which I'm kind of glad Mike doesn't have an E-
mail address because it makes my life a little
easier,

-MR. BROWN: Well then, let me -~ let
me ask you this. We can't say for any certainty

whether or not this is Mike Kelly who is calling

into that call. But do you -- do you remember
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the Congressman being on that phone call?

WITNESS 2: I don't and my -- it had

~to have come from the District is all T can

think of because I've never gotten an E-mail
from Mike Kelly.
MR, BROWN: Okay. Well, let me ask

you this. So, it -- it appears to be around 2 -

- 1f we go back to Document 4 here —-

WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR. BROWN: - It's about 2:52 p.m, that
-~ it looks like you, Matt, and Witness 1 are
all alerted to the fact that Cleveland~ClLiffs
has been told or AK Steel has been told by the
Department of Commerce that the Department_of
Commerce is going to-initiate a Section 232
review,

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR, BROWN: I gather from our
conversations and also from the documents_that
I've seen that even if the Congressman wasn't on
that E-mail, ﬁhat this information would have

been conveyed to him because this was important

A S T TR
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to him and it was important to --

WITNESS 2: Yes.,.

MR. BROWN: Okay. So, it's —-

WITNESS 2: He probably -~ he dqesn’t
do a lot. It's just staff calls. He,doésn’t
generally.get on the call,

MR. BROWN: Do you --

WITNESS 2: Because he doesn't really
like --

MR. BROWN: Do you know if you would
have updated him on this or would -~

WITNESS 2: ©No, it would ha&e been
Matt.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: It looked like at that
point, he might have -~ I'll have to_look at the
Congressional schedule -~ but baék -~ My guess
is he was up in the District at that point. I
mean, he only comes down when there's votes,
like most members, and then goes -- and then he

would have been -~ he would have been in the

Butler office. Again, I don't think I've —-
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I've never gotten an E-mail from him,

MR. BROWN: .Okay.

WITNESS 2: 8o, to be honest, I don't
even think he has an E-mail address. So, that

might have come from -- T don't know if it's the

scheduler up in the District QY =

MR, BROWN: The main ~- the main thing
I wanted to -- to gét your opinion on is even if
that's not him on the conference call --

WITNESS 2: Right, right, right.

MR. BROWN: -~ given the nature of
this iésue, it's safe to assume that Matt would
have updated him on this development,

WITNESS 2: Yes, yes,

MR. BROWN: Okay. - Saul, can you
please pull up Document 6 for us? All right,
Document 6 here, Witness 2, as you'll see, is a

WITNESS 2: Right,

MR, BROWN: == E-mail from you to

Witness 4, Witness 5, Matt Stroia, and Witness 1

T st
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WITNESS 2: Um-hum,

MR. BROWN: -- and you say =-- and this
is April 28th at 4:05 p.m.

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: You say, "Assumipg |
everything stays on track with Ross's offer to
hélp AK Steel, please let Witness 1 know if you
need a quote from Mike."

WITNESS 2: Right,

MR, BROWN: When you say Ross's offer
to help with AK Steel, what are you referring -
to?

WITNESS 2: I don't -- whatever he can
do to help AK Steel. I don't care —-
potentially 232, whatever is in their little
bailiwick to help AK Steel is what I réferred
to, so.

MR, BROWN; So,.when I read these

documents in the context of the documents I've

seen, it sounds like, you know, an hour or two
earlier in the day, you're told that Department

of Commerce plans to initiate this Section 232 -
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- that you were announced the Section 232
- review,
with AK Steel, I read that as saying the

decision by the Department of Commerce to --

Section 232 review. Isg that -- is that a fair

reading of that?

Commerce hopefully can do scomething, . I mean,
baéed on all the evidence that's cut there, i1£f
anything, I think everybody, or at least, was
like what -- well, what‘does ~-= 1if Commerce
can't help them based on éverything -~ the
information we've been getting with the dumping
and if not 232, what is in their, you know, |
their -- their little -~ their little trade or,
you know, toolbox? What is it that they can

~help with or investigate or, I mean.

the -~ I don't think I personally am like 232 or

So, 'when I read Ross's offer to help

s

WITNESS 2: To do something.

MR. BROWN: And to initiate the

bt
e AR B

WITNESS 2: Yeah or anything that the

B B S SR

B S

MR, BROWN: Yeah, yeah.

DT

WITNESS 2: That's -- I think that's
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something else, It's just AK Steel is alleging
there's dumpihg and -- and that they're not, you
know, what is it that you can do to either |
investigéte or ~— QOr =--

MR, BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: I mean, because you're
kind of relying as a staffer, like relying on
what the cbmpany is saying aﬁd what you're |
getting from Commerce. The problem is we're not
-= like Commerce is persona non grata half the

time and there's not really any -~ nobody knows

~-- I don't know how many times I've heard well,

who's -~ who's at Commerce and who's left at
Commerce? Like, there's nobody that you feel

like ~-~ I've been on Hill twenty years.' I know

-when I -~ T know like half the people at

Treasury used to work on the Hill that's in, you
know,,there is like'nobody - we're just trying
to find like what is it that they --

MR, BROWN: It sounds to me --

WITNESS 2: You have my boss -- go

e R T S SR AR e e ke e
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MR. BROWN: -~ like the Department of
Commerce -- and I think you saild ﬁhis before ke
is directly communicating with AK Steel. So,
you're learning much of what's going on through
AK Steei.

WITNESS 2: Yeah. I meén, I feel like
-~ well, part of it is you have a CEO, which I -
~ a #ery active CEQO that doesn't have a problem
calling, I mean, doesn't have a prbblem calling
the Secretary —-

MR. BROWN: Right.

WITNESS 2: ~- and -- or calling like
-~ he's a very active -~ so, we're kind of, like
I -~ I think the frustration is we're just

trying to piece together like what Commerce is
sayiné to AK Steel and what AK Steel is -- I
mean, half of the time,‘I was learning what
Commerce was doing dr if they were going to do
or whatever discussions from AK Steel, so.

MR. BROWN: Yeah, and to that point,

let's go to Document 7. Saul, if you can pull

that up.

e
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WITNESS 2: Sure.

MR. BROWN: This is a text strlng,
which I think makes things a little clearer, at
least on my end. So, I'd like to get -- get
your help walking thfough this.,

WITNESS 2: Sure.

MR. BROWN: And just as a reminder, it
looks like it's about 2:45 on April 28th that
you get an update from Cleveland-Cliffs or AK
Steel w~.Witness 5 and Witness 4. it'Says,
"Department of Commerce intends to initiate the
Section 232 review.ﬁ And that's at about 2:45,

WITNESS 2: VOkay.

MR, BROWN: And so, I've got a text
string here now that sﬁarts at April 28, 2020,
3:41 p.m., and actually, let me start here =-- 8§
~- 8:05 p.m, |

WITNESS 2: Okay.

MR. BROWN: This is Witness 1 saying,
"Never heard from Witness 5 about whether they
want a quote from us or not."

WITNESS 2: Right.

" PLANET DEPOS
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MR. BROWN: Do you -~ when he says

whether they want a quote from us or not, who's

e et o TR e € VP A

-— who's Witness 1 referring to?

WITNESS 2: Never heard from Witness 5
about whether -- what do you mean who are they
referring to?

MR. BROWN: So, when Witness 1 says

they ~- whether they want a quote, I'm wondering

who he's referring to -~ and let me --
WITNESS 2:  They're just Cleveland-
Cliffs and BK -~

MR. BROWN: Yeah, okay. Because T

O A T I P e 2

look at this -~ this other document here, and

you say, you know, let Witness 1 know if you

A O R A T TR

need a quote and this it to Witness 4 and
Witness 5.
WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: That's at 4:00, and then I

R

look at this text message, and he says, "Never
heard from Witness 5 about whether they want a

quote.”

WITNESS 2: They.
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MR, BROWN: I'm assuming they means
Cleveland-Cliffs, AK Steel.

WITNESS 2: That's the thing is, like,
you know, we're now dealing with this other
combany that -- or, you know =-- that just

acquired AK Steel, so,

MR. BROWN: Right.

WITNESS 2: They are‘they now, not
just AK, because it's a subsidiary of -~ so, now
we're dealing with a they. |

MR, BROWN: Uh-huh.

WITNESS 2: And,-quite frankly,
Witness 5, you know, she's ~- it's a relatively
new =—-

MR. BROWN: Merger. It'happened in
March.

WITNESS 2: Merger and so, you know,
she's dealing with new, you know, she felt -- I
know, you know, just because I've dealt with her
over the years -- she didn't know if she was
going to have a job. So, it was the, you know,

and she's reporting to new. 8o, that's the

'PLANET DEPOS
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they.

MR. BROWN: The they, okay. And then,
Witness 1 says -~ and again, this is at 8:05
p.m., so sort of the end of the day of the 28th,
he says, "Is evefything confirmed?"” When I read
is everything confirmed, hé seems to be, you.
know, asking you is everything confirmed —

WITNESS 2: Right. |

MR. BROWN: -~ that we're going -- go
ahead. |

WITNESS 2: Yeah, like hello, can we
get, I mean, Witness 1 and I are the ones like,
okay, do we know what Commerce is actually géing
to do, and 1f so, what kind of, vou know,
becaﬁse at the -- because -~

MR. BROWN: Well, let me -~ let me
walk ﬁhrough this text.

WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR, BROWN: This is Matt responding to
Witness 1. It looks like e |

WITNESS 2: Yeah;

MR. BROWN: =-- sometimes after, you

SE AL R e R O
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know, his 8 p.m. text.
WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: So, yeah. Matt says,

"Commerce has not yet sent their press release

out. Cleveland-Cliffs is walting for Commerce
to put their press release out before they put
one out." When I read that, I see put their
press release out, My understanding of thét_is
the press release stating that ﬁhey are |
initiating a Section 232 review.

WITNESS 2: Right. That's how --
yeah,-that's how I_read it.

MR. BROWN: Okay. And then, he says -
- Matt says, "I spoke to Commerce and the White
House after our call. They are hoping to have
the release out tonight but don't think it's
going to ha@pen." Again, their release.would be
a press release noting that they're opening a
section 232 review,

WITNESS 2: Yeah,

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: That's how T read that.
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MR. BROWN: When he says I spoke to
Commerce and the White House after the call, do
you know who he's referring to? |

WITNESS 2: No. Like, that's all, you
know, the difference between the political and
the policy, I quite frankly don't --

MR, BROWN: You're the policy.

WITNESS 2: I don't even know who's at

the White house. That the thing is 1ike, you

know -

MR, BROWN: . Okay.

WITNESS 2: -- and they didn't keep
anyone I did know who had been in, you know,
worked in the $enate or the Hduse. So, they
didn't last long., |

| MR. BROWN: Okay. Let me scroll down
a little bit further. If you see here, we're.at
April 29th at 9:04 a.m.
WITNESS 2:  Um~hum.

MR, BROWN: .Witness 1 testifies,

- "Still don't see it." Again, the it, to me, is

referring to the Commerce press release on fhe
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232 investigation.

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR, BROWN: And then you respond and
you say, "Just talked-to Witness 5," and I
assume that's Witness 5 --

WITNESS 2:. Yes, |

MR, BROWN: -- at AK Steel, okay.
"The announcement is likely to come later in the
week," Agaiﬁ, to me, the.announcement'is a
press release from Commerce that says, you know,
we're initiating Sectién 232 review.

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: -Okay._ "Hopefully by

Friday based upon a late night conversation

Witness 4 had Ross's Chief of Staff." T

understand Witness 4 to be Witness 4 -~
WITNESS 2: Yes.
MR. BROWN: -- Cleveland-Cliffs and
Ross's Chief of Staff is -~
WITNESS 2: Whoever that is.
MR, BROWN: Secretary Ross.

WITNESS 2; Okay, yeah.
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MR. BROWN: Secretary Ross, yeah.
"They need to get their legal ducks in a row.”
What did you mean when you said they need to get
their legal ducks in a row? |

WITNESS 2: That, I mean, that's kind
-of what my understanding is. They need to --
legal ducks. In other words, how they -- by
legal ducks in a row, I'm guessing, that they
have to -—-

MR. BROWN: The clearance process?

- WITNESS 2$ Clearance process or I'm
trying to go back twenty years to law school ~--
the Administrative Procedures Act, whatever they
need to do that's administratively that I'm glad
I don't do for a living. Whatever they need to
do to, you know.

MR. BROWN: Okay. Because when I read
-~ when I read these texts and the documents
we've walked through'~—

WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR. BROWN: -- and the call summaries,

what I see or what I understand here is that

888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM
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Secretary Ross communicated to AK Steel that
we're;w~ we're opening a Section 232 -~

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: -~ investigation, And
that's everybody's understanding of what's
happening.

WITNESS 2: Yeah, yeah.

MR, BROWN: It's just a question of
when exactly are they issuing this press
release,

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR, BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: Or if they're going to.

.issue a press release. I think the thing is

that ~- that you kind of, I mean,rit's kind of

' this black box at Commerce and are they going to

do something, are they not going to do

something, and, you know, to our knowledge, you
know, based on our knowledge, Commerce is the --
has the jurisdiction of, you know, determining,

you know, import, you know, if there's dumping,

like Ambassador [indiscernible], that's not

SO SRR
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something they're, I mean, they're the

department that's supposed to be handling this.

 How they issue, you know, and I, quite frankly

don't really -- I kind of watch, yqu_know, like
press reieases coming out when they are
announcing over, you know, many years, if
théy're going to initiate something. I'm
assuming they'd have to vet this before they,
you know, that's the legal ducks in.a rOw.
That's my sense,

MR. BROWN: I guess what I;m trying
toget at here is, you know, it seems to me like
there's been communication at AK Steel and
Cleveiand«Cliffs, like this is what we're
doing. We're initiating this Section 232 review.

WITNESS 2: Yeah.
"MR. BROWN: You guys a£ the end of
this text, you say, "It ain't over until

Commerce makes the announcement and --"
WITNESS 2: Yeah.
MR. BROWN: " and to put on the gas
until the finish line." I get what vyou're
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saying when you -- you're saying for the
Commerce's-black.box, we never know exactly what
they're going to do.

WITNESS 2: Yeah, I don't trust —- I
don't trust them.

MR. BROWN: Is there any -- is there
anything -- when you say you don't trust them;

is there anything that you've heard specifically

is it =--

WITNESS 2: No, they're opaque. . Like
there is no.haad's == I mean, I heard what
Commerce is doing from AK.Steel. Like nobody at
Commerce picked up the phone and said hey, no,
and like there was no -- |

| MR. BROWN: So, neither you nor_Matt
or anybody has been told like actually Secretary
Ross is waffling or the Department of Commerce
people are waffling. This is you guys saying
like we've got to keep -- out of an abundance of
caution, we need to keep --

WITNESS 2: Yeah, like can ~- are

R A e e e e
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there -~ is there somebody still awake at
Commerce? I mean; and I -~ like I said, I never
really had a discussion with anybody at

Commerce. I still don't know who is at Commerce

and I certainly didn't -- didn't know under, you
know, the Ross ~- the Ross regimen who, you
know,

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: Yeah, who -- who -- who
was.théxé to call, I guess —- |

IMR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: =~- to find out what --

what's going on..

MR. BROWN: It sounds like that was
more Matt. He had a connection --

WITNESS 2: Matt was the one that had
connections, He dealt with Commerce.

MR, BROWN: And let me just ask you
one more question about this text string. This

occurs, again, April 28th in the evening and

“then 9:04 the texts start again on April 29.

WITNESS 2: Yeah.
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MR. BROWN: It seems like, again,
fairly substantial updates about, you know,

what's going on, who has talked to who. This is

important to the Congressman. I assume Matt's

the person who would be updating him?

WITNESS 2: He is the point person for
dealing with the administration.

MR. BROWN : Okay;

WITNESS 2: He's also the.one that's
always with -- with my boss. You know, he lives
in the district, he's with them the vast

majority of time. He really is the person that

. would be around for all these conversations. I

would say that I dealt more with Witness 5 and
what Witness 5 khew, what, where, and you'know,
when, and less -- less Matt énd Mike, so.

MR, BROWN: OQOkay. Can you -~ Saui,
can you pull up Document 8 real fast? And
Witnéss 2, I can want to provide for you -
you're not on this E-mail string, but in the
text that we just looked at here, Matt says, you

know, "I just talked to somebody from the White

RO A
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House at Commerce.”

WITNESS 2: Um-hum.

MR, BROWN: And that -- he says that -
- it looks like I lost control of the document
here -~ but he says that I think it's at like 8
at night -- okay, thank you.

WITNESS 2: Okay.

MR. BROWN: Let me just pull the -~
this document back up first and go back up_to
what Matt says. Matt says, "I spoke to Commerce
in the White House after our call."

. WITNESS 2: Um-hun. |

MR. BROWN: "They were hoping to have
the press release out." I think this is the
individual that Matt spoke with.

WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR, BROWN: But let me give you a
second tc read that and see if that's your
understanding of this document as well. So,
you see here, it starts with Witness 3, |
AssistantSecretary for Legislative and

Intergovernmental Affairs —-
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WITNESS 2: Right.

MR, BROWN: ~~ Department of Commerce
Says, "Hi, Matt. What's the best number to
reach you at?"

. WITNESS 2: Okay. |

MR. BROWN: This is at 2:51 p.m.

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: So, that's right around
the time you guys are havingra Cohversation with
Cleveland-Cliffs and AK Steel -

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: ~-. about the intent to
initiate a Section 232 review..

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: VMatt responds., It looks
like he gives his chtact informétion and it's
redacted.

WITNESS 2: Right.

at 3:14 p.m. and says, "Just tried your cell.
Give me a ring." And then again, that's 3:14,

April.28th.
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WITNESS 2? Um~-hurm,

MR, BROWN: It seems to me that
Witness 3 is the individﬁal Matt's
referring towhen he says here.

WITNESS 2: Yeah. Now, it's jogging
my -- and he has delegative authorities but ﬁot
actual authorities -- yeah.

MR. BROWN: Okay. And then, if you
look up hére at April 30th, Matt says, "Good
morning, Witness 3. Just éhecking in. Any
word from the Comm team on getting the release
out?" Again, to me that release meéns press
release onthe 232. |

WITNESS 2: And announcing it, yeah.
MR. BROWN: Yeah. And then Witness 3 says,
"Slipped a few days, but the decision has been
made. Just internal clearing process stili

going'on." That seems to.be to me consistent

| with your text message.

WITNESS 2: Yeah,-yeah.
MR. BROWN: 8o, in other words, the

decision was made on April 28th,
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WITNESS 2: Yeah. Now, get it —-
yeah, now -- from a, like, give us some credit
that, like we would or me, I've been writing
letters for four years, like, okay, just pull
the trigger and I need to get this off my plate
sc I can move on to my -- my day job, like ~-
like doing, you know, boat wrecks and things
like that. Yeah, so that looks very accurate.

. MR. BROWN: Okay. So then, Monday,
May 4th, the Section 232 investigaﬁion
announcement finally released in the afternoon.
I think it's around 4 p.m. |

WITNESS 2: Um~hum,

'MR, BROWN: We've talked.about this a
little bit, but the plan or the hope postw
announcement obviously is that the Department of
Commerce and.the administration is going to do
something to assist -~ |

- WITNESS 2: Yeah.

MR, BROWN: ~- AK Steel, Cleveland-

Cliffs. Do ydu know what the current status of

this is?

2t e,
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WITNESS 2: No.

MR. BROWN: Do you know =-- everybody
is sﬁill employed at Butler Works; there's no
threatened layoffs right now? |

WITNESS 2: I go to Western
Pennsylvania when I have to go. So, I -~ I'm
aésuming I would read in the, you know, the
Office clips that they -- everybody got, I
mean, you're kind of -- we're kind of -- yeah,
to my knowledge, they're still -- they're still
employed.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

| WiTNESS 2: I would read otherwise in
‘the daily clips like everyone else or -

MR. BROWN: All right. Well, listen,
Saul, can you pull down the documents? I'm
going to change gears a little bit here. And,
Witness 2, I jﬁst want to ask you, when ~-- when
did you first become aware that Victoria Kelly
had purchased stock in Cleveland-Cliffs?

WITNESS 2: I did not know -~ I didn't

know that she purchased stock until the -- until
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a reporter called Witness 1, if I recall

correctly, that the issue of potentially -- told

me it looked like it was going to become a

story. That's when I learned about it.
' MR..BROWN: So, this is September.mm
sometime early September?

WITNESS 2: After -- yeah.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: And it was near --~ I want
to say it was near the campaign, like November
or October maybe. Whatever it became -~ it
became -- it was about to become a story and -~

MR. BROWN: I think the story is
September 20th, I believe,

WITNESS 2: Yeah, something and (a)
didn't know any, you know, I never see, Vicky's
never in the office. We didn't talk, you know,

obviously we don't talk about it, like I don't

- talk about it, you know, his stock purchases.

And so, it wasn't until it became a story that -
- T don't know if Witness 1 -~ I think I was

getting -~ I was at a doctor's appointment in
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Northeast Portland or no in Northwest and I had
to pull over and -- and Witness 1 is like, well,
this is,:you know, then that's when I learned
about it. I don't know the exact date. I could
probably figure it out,

MR, BROWN: What did -~ what was that
conversation with Witness 17

WITNESS 2: That this was going to be
a -- this is potentially going to be a story and
I can say it's what's +~‘he's like what the hell
was she thinking? I mean, it was like, what, I
mean -- but I -- I kind of heérd, you know, in
her defenses, like she's from Butler, PA too,
and she's probably -~ you know, she's in her
70s. She probably is not thinking} oh, insider
trading or I'm, you know, she's in a town where
everybody‘s talking about it, you know, and I'm
not ~-- and I, based on what I know of their
marriage, she probably did it on her own and
probably didn't-e&en tell him about it and only
had the information, I méan, it's a small town.

People were probably talking about it, how, you

A B
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know, how she -- information got to her, I have
no idea. _Buth can certainly say, when you, you
know, when you have a major emplOyer in a small
town and everybody is, you'kﬁow, going to the
same coffee shops and, you know, but I learned
about it when there was a sﬁory, To

MR. BROWN: Did -~ so then, it's fair

to say that on April 29th is when she made this

‘stock purchase that her decision to buy the

VStock wasn't conveyed to you?

WITNESS 2: No, had no idea.

MR, BROWN: Was.it,lyou know, was
there a public announcement of any kind that
you'fe aware of?

WITNESS 2: No.

MR. BROWN: Okay. Because when I read

the -- the article -- the quote, that it sounds
like Witness 1 ahd the Congressman gave to
Pittsburgh Post Gazette aﬁd the Butler Eagle,
it's Representative Kelly's wife made a smailr
investment to show her support for the workers

and management of this 100-year-old bedrock of
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their hometown,

WITNESS 2: Yep.

MR, BROWN: I'm -- I'm trying to
understand, how -~ how is she showing her
support by purchasing sﬁocklin Clevéland~01iffs?

WITNESS 2: I -- that, I don't know.
I don't -~ I mean, obviously, that's -- that I
don't -- I can't -- I mean, that's wordsmithing
from the press, I -~ I didn't -~ I didn't
approve 1t or so, I.mean,

MR. BROWN: Were you involved -- were
you involved in the —-

WITNESS 2: No, I'm not, no.

IMR. BROWN: -~ drafting of the
response?

| WITNESS 2: Nope.

MR, BROWN: Okay. Have vyou ever --

WITNESS 2: I am when it comes to -~- I
am when it comes to nerdy little bills that
we're dropping that's'in the weeds on tax and
trade that -- that Witness 1 doesn't want to

deal with. But when it comes to this, this was
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a conversation between Mike and Matt and Witness
5 :

MR. BROWN: Okay. So, you didn't --
did you talk to Mike -~ Representative Kelly
about the res?onse?

"WITNESS 2: No, I did not, and he was
up in the District, as was Matt, because we were
out of session, if Irracall cotrectly, S0, Or at
least, yeah.

MR. BROWN: Did you have a
conversation with Witness 1 about preparing a
response?

WITNESS 2: No. He just -- it was
ﬁore of the what -- because -- because then I
think. I read it and I -~ and it was more of the,
you know, we're both from the west coast., We
both were working for other members, and we're
like, what the hell was she thinking, you know.
And, you know, and as I told.Witness 1, I was
like, she probably, you know, who knows what the -
cohversation is between a husband and a wife.

But, you know, I think -~ and she's -- she's a
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wealthy individual.  She's -- let's just say she
brought more money to the marriage than he did,
80, you know, she has her own investments. She
has her own properties, and my, yoﬁ know, my
undérstanding is she does her own thing. And
so, you know, that was my.¥~ my general, you
know, from down here, thinking well, it was
probably happéning up in Butler,‘PA. But -- but
again -- |

MR, BROWN: Well, let me ask you this
because you - you are sort of in certainly‘a
better position than I am to understand the
degree to which --

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: -~ the Congressman, you
know, yourself, the cffice, the Congressman --

WITNESS 2: Yes.

MR, BROWN: -~ perhaps his wife had
access to information about the company --

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR, BROWN: ~-- and the Department of
Commerce that others may not have had.
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WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: So, you know, given your
knowledge of -- of those sort of issues, would
you have been comfortable_purchasing stock on
April 29th in Cleveland-Cliffs? You know, and
if so, why, and iflnot, why? I'm trying to
understand, you know, factually, what would have
heen importént.

WITNESS 2: Why -- you know, no, I

| would not have -- I would not have felt

comfortable in part because I'm married to

gsomeone who is a chief tax counsel for twenty-

eight years in Senate Finance and -- and so, you
know, that's -- I put everything in -~ in a
mutual fund so it doesn't -- so it doesn't look

like I'm, you know, I'm working on ilssues and

~not that I am an expért on insider trading or

anything like that. 'But,I've.had enough -~ I've
been around enough people who've gotten tripped
up on it. I generally don't get -- it's usually

the health care staffers on Senate Finance or

Ways and Means that have gotten tripped up over -
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the years and ~--

MR. BROWN: Yeah, and I don't -- and I
don't want to ask you a question where Ikm
asking you to produce’~-

_ WiTNESS 2: No, but I just -~ I think
I jﬁst -- I err on the side of caution and I've

also ~- I don't -- I don't know -- generally,

it's really, I think, committee staff that are

more privy to, you know, I'm in a personal
office. I like to be in a personal office. I -
- but, you know, I know in many cases, my
husband has, you know, is véry -=- let's just say
in my house, we have lots of conversations about
what you can say and what you can't say. I
mean, and especially in Tax and Trade, you .
potentially can move markets, and so, you know,
and it's hard, like I am, you know, and part of
it is, you know, he worked for Senator Grassley,
who created some of the Stock Act Violation
stuff and so, you know, éo, I'm a liﬁtle more
probably well versed in those issues, and I've

seen what and the ramifications how people have
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gotten tripped up over, you know, just talking.
S0, I -~ for instance, i don't talk to any
investor groups at all.

MR. BROWN: Yeah. And I guess what
I'm -~ what I;m really driving at because,
you're right,_it‘s not fair to ask you, you
know, you're not an expert on insider trading.

But what I -- what I am trying to get at is it

seems to me like there's a degree of

confidential and nonpublic information that's
being discussed between Commerce, AK Steel, and

your office, and, you know, what I'm really

‘trying to get at is the extent to which that's a

fair assessment of the conversations.

WITNESS 2: I mean, I have to say
that, you know,_again, I've been.on the Hill
twenty years, so, and I've worked for Democrats
and Republicans. And so, I — I mean, some of
it's public, but I would say the information
beyond like oh, we might iésue a 232,'yeah,

that's certainly -~ but this is not unlike any

other administration where you're trying to get
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the administration or trying to find out,
really, if the administration‘was going to do
something. I felt like I was very much in the
dark about what Commerce was ever'doing as a
staffer and -- but, you know, I kind of come
from more of a, you know, if I'm looking for
information.or == or, you know, I have a much
better relationship with ﬁhe IRS or the Tréasury
folks because I deal more from a trades
perspective. But, you know, it's -~ if
anything, I felt like we were just trying ~- I,
at least, me personally, was -- I was getting
more information fxdm AK Steel about what
Commerce was doing than I was from Commerce
because I felt like I rarely -- I really ~--

rarely dealt with Commerce in the past, and this

~administration was a little different like every

other administration -- ﬁhan other

administrations and it was, if anything, I was

just -- we were just trying to get information

from Commérce. But it felt like it was more of

a black box and it's ~-- we, you know, that -- if
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anything, I just felt like beating my head
whenever I had to deal with -- and I kind of
deferred to Matt on, you know, to even dealing
with Commerce --

MR, BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: -- because, you know, he
wanted to be the lead, so.

MR. BROWN:" feah.

WITNESS 2: If he asked, yeah. I
mean, that's my --

MR. BROWN: Well, let me just -~ I'm =-

- I'm trying -~ I'm going to try and wrap things

‘up here, Witness 2, because I don't want to take

up too much of your time.
WITNESS 2: Okay.

MR. BROWN: But, Saul, if you could

put up Document 11 and Witness 2, 1I'll ask you

if you -~ if you've ever seen this.
WITNESS 2: Okay.
MR. BROWN: 1It's -~ it's a periodic
transaction report that the Congressman filed

with respect to that stock purchase.
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WITNESS 2: Ummhum.

MR. BROWN: Here we go. And I really
just, .you know, maybe you've seen these before;
maybe you haven't. Take your time and look at
it, but-I really want to draw your attention
down here to -—-

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR. BROWN: -~ you see where it says
SP -- I understand that means spouse =--
Cleveland-Cliffs. You can see here it says
purchase, and then it says date of transactien
4/29/20, which is what we were just talking
about. | |

| WITNESS 2ffomuhum.
MR. BROWN: And then it says date notified of
ﬁransaétion 5/7/20. Do you know why it says
5/7/20 on there? |

WITNESS 2: No. Well, first off;
I've never seen a document like this, so, and
Matt is the only -~ Métt's the only one that
deals with this,

MR. BROWN: This would be Matt's
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purview?
WITNESS 2:
MR. BROWN:
WITNESS 2:
even Ieen -
MR. BROWN:

WITNESS 2:

- have,

MR, BROWN:

or'you'specifically?
-WITNESS 2:
MR. BROWN:

that was me, sorry.
| WITNESS 2:

. MR. BROWN:

e et e

It would be Matt, yéah.

Qkay.

So, I've never actually

Did ~- did -~

I'm not what you'd call --

consider a political designee or whatever they

Yeah. Did the Congressman

ever address the stock- purchase with the staff

No.,
Okay. You were thinking
No.

S0, let me just real quick

and then I think I only have one or two more
questions. But back to the quotes that the
Congressman issued or Witness 1 provided to the
Pittsbﬁrgh Poét Gazette. And Saul, you can take

the document down. The second part of the
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~ response said, you know, "Whether a trade

investigation would be launched was uncertain

until Secretary of Commerce Ross confirmed the

plan in a private phone conversation with the

Congressman on May lst. I understand you and
Witnegs 1 and Matt and the Congressman tock a
phone call with Secretary Ross on the lst.

WITNESS 2: Um-~hum.

MR. BROWN: Do you remember that --
being oﬁ that call?

WITNESS 2: Yes,

MR. BROWN: Okay. When the response
says the, "The investigation was uncertain until
Wilber Ross confirmed the claim in the private
phone conversation,"™ in ny mihd, it's == it's

not -~ it's not uncertain because you've been

~informed sort of by various individuals along

the way at Commerce that they're intending to

issue a Section 232 review. It's only uncertain

in the sense that the press release hasn't been
issued yet, and I think that's sort of what we

talked about is Commerce is a bit of a black box

e Rt

| LANET DEPOS
888.433,3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

TG s S e S e e e R e R R A e T

P T

-

Cm—n
R N T T O e S

A N O e B R

I L S SN

b S B R B

21-8221_0317



= W Mo

LLC I o o -~ s} {n

11

12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

‘Transcript of Virtual Interview. - Witness Two
Conducted on May 21, 2021

94

and, you know, until the press release hits the
internet, you guys are worried it's not coming.
down the pike. -

WITNESS 2: Yeah. I mean, yeah., I
mean, again, it's a ~- it's a -- it's been -~ I
mean, it's kind of a black box and it's not, you
know, it's like any administration. Until you -
= until you actually, I see it on paper, I don't
-~ I don't believe it's happening, you know. .

MR. BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: It might -- we certainly
have made the request from a Congressional
Office whether or not -- and it's not just us,
it's Portman's office, it's Balderson's office.
We've been doing joint letters with any number
of; you know, Marcy.Kaptor [phonetic], like, you
know.

MR, BROWN: Yeah., All right,.Witness
2, I think I'm -- I'm pretty much done. I'm
going to ask you just a few quick questions to
end here. You guys don't do -~ you don't Qork
through Teams or anything like that in your
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office, do you?
WITNESS 2: The only thing I -- no,
not on Teams, I mean, Ways and Means when we do

like a hearing. That's the only real time I use

Teams,

MR. BROWN: Okay. And then, so, in
some of the documents that were produced to us

from others besides yourself, I got some text

messages that you were on. I know you said to

me you don't really do much work texting.
| WITNESS 2: I don't.

MR. BROWN: But I was wondering, in
light of seeing any of those, do you think that
you have any text messages that weren't --

WITNESS 2: I went-fhrough. I used -~
I have two phones -~ one and two.

MR. BROWN: Okay.

WITNESS 2: I have a son. I do most
of mine oﬁ'my personal. So, and'then, yéu know,
I get it replaced when I broke it, like I just

did again. So, I really don't. I went through

everything.
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MR, BROWN: Okay.
WITNESS 2: But =--
MR, BROWN: I just wanted to verify.
T know it's_beeh over a year, |
| WITNESS 21  Oh, yeah,'yeah. No.
MR. BROWN: But I just wanted to know.
WITNESS 2% And just to clarify, dther
people might use Teams in our office. I don't.
S0, beyond Ways and Means, you know, hearings
and stuff like that, so I have enough gadgets as
it is, so.

MR. BROWN: Okay. And then, vyeah, I

'understand that;

WITNESS 2: Right.

MR, BROWN: 8o, vyou know, this -- I
think we contacted you a couple weeks ago. Have
you spoke to anybody else, you know, aside from
your husband? It sounds like maybe you and
Witness 1 had a conversation about =--

WITNESS 2: Witness 1 and I have had a
conversation.

MR, BROWN: Okay. Anybody else in the
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Congressional office —- have you spoken --

WITNESS 2: Matt.

MR, BROWN: Matt, okay. And what =--
what did you guys chat about?

WITNESS 2: I just said; just so you
know, I've been contacted by the Ethics and -~
and then he asked if was going to.talk to you
and I said ves, so. I think Witness 1 -~
Witness 1 is a stress case. So, I said, you
know, what, we havé nothing to hide. We were
doing our jobs and we have no, you know, -we're -
~ we're the hired hands. I'm not from the
District, I'm not, you know, I, vyou knéw, I've
worked for other members. I worked for two -
members from California, a Senator from QOregon,
and two from Pennsylvania. So, you know, I --

" we -~ you know, I -- if anything, you know, he's
a junior -- not a junior, he's younger than me -
- and I said we didn't do anything wrong. All
we were-trying to do is éomply with, you know,
we.were trying to help a company iike we do - and

you're supposed to press release it if there's
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and, you knqw, everything else is above our pay
grade, so. So, I didn't =~

MR. BROWN: I will -- I will just ask
if Omar has aﬁy additional questions for you,
but --

WITNESS 2: Sure.

MR. BROWN: ~-- if he doesn't, I think
we can @robably wrap up and I will -- I'l1l thank
you for your time..

WITNESS 2: Thank you.

MR. BROWN: Omar, do you have anything
for Witness 27

MR, ASHMAWY: Excuse me. No, thank_
you very much, Witness 2. I really appreciate
your time also} and yeah, thank you for your
willingness to cooperate with our process.

WITNESS 2: Absolutely.

MR. BROWN: Yeah, and I'll just echo
what Omar just said and sort of what you said.
You know, thisris our job.

WITNESS 2: I get it., ©No, trust me, I
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get it.

[Simultaneous speaking]

WITNESS 2: 1It's just like my Job is.
Well, you've learned about my job. I think I
would rather do my job than yours, but.

| MR. BROWN: Well, I appreciate you

taking the time to -- |

WITNESS 2: Absolutely and --

MR. BROWN: ~- review the documents,
walk us through the documents and --

. WITNESS 2: And I appreciate you are

very well organized -- better than me, sb.

MR, BROWN: We're working on it here -
- getting the hang of pandemic interviewing.

WITNESS 2: Someday, I don't know, I
walked in Longworth yesterday and nobody, it's
like the cops aren't wearing masks.

MR.'BROWN: Yeah.

WITNESS 2: Knock on wood, we‘re
getting back to, you know, some new version of -
.~ of reality, so.

MR, BROWN: I -~ I hope you're right

e
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and .I hope soon we'll be doing these interviews
in person again, as soon as I, you know learn
how to do them virtually. But, with that --
WITNESS 2: Sounds good.
MR. BROWN: ~- we can go off the
record at this point.
[Whereupon the interview was completed.]

[Off the record at 11:03 a.m.]
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CERTIFICATElOF COURT REPORTER - NOQTARY PUBLIC

I, Jesse Greer, the officer before whom the ks

foregoing deposition ﬁas taken, do hereby
certify that said proceedings were

_électronically recorded by me; and that I am

neither counsel for, related to, nor empldyed by
any of the parties to this case and have no
inteteét, financial or otherwise, in its

outcome,

N LR A T i i e At s L ks SRR A SR e

R

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my notarial seal this 21lst day
of May, 2021.

iiﬁig%ﬁwwwiﬁgwaﬁfwxm

Jesse Greexr, Notary Public for the State of

Maryland
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CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIBER

| I, Pamela A. Flutie, do hereby certify
that the forégoing trahscript is a true and
correct record of the recorded proceedings; that
gaid proceedings were transcribed to the best of
my ability from the audio recording and
supporting infofmation; and that I am neither
counsel for, related to, nor employed by and of

the parties to this case and have no interest,

financial or otherwise, in its outcome.

Pamela A. Flutie

© PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS,COM
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Tuesday, May 11, 2021 at 10:06:01 Eastern Daylight Time

Subject: Fwd: [EXT] Re: call

Date:  Tuesday, April 28, 2020 at 2:52:38 PM Eastern Daylight Time
From:  Prater, Lori

To: Stroia, Matthew, Eisenberger, Andrew

Call back in on this number.
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: <Beth.Ludwi >

Date: April 28, 2020 at 2:29:28 PM EDT
To: "Prater, Lori"
Cc: "Bloom, Patrick M"
Subject: Re: [EXT] Re: call

OK, we can use the fo owng ne at 2:45 PM:

[
I
Organ zer P n: N

Beth DeBrosse Ludw g

AK Stee Corporaton

Corporate Manager, Government & Pub ¢ Re atons
9227 Canire Ponte Dr.

Woest Chester, 0 45069

Seth.Ludw ORI
Phone: |

Co : NN

From  "Prater Lo < >
To o "Beth Ludvi " T >
Cc  "Bloom Patrick M’ |

Date 04/28/2020 02 26 PM
Subject [EXT]Re call

I'm on the call with Mike/McCarthy/Balderson, | can do the call at 2:45.

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 28, 2020, at 2:17 PI\/I; "Beth.Ludwi_" _> wrote;

ey there, sent you a text butema ng too. Can you do an update ¢a w th me and Patr ck any t me after 2:45 today.

We are genera y open, except from 4:30-5.
Thanks,

Page 1of 2
21-9221_0328
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Eisenberger, Andrew ] ' -

From:;

Sent:

To:

Subject:

Daniel Moore <—>
Friday, September 4, 2020 5:23 PM
Eisenberger, Andrew

Re: Timeline

Received, thanks again. I'll let you know if anything else comes up early next week. Have a good weekend,

On Fri, Sep 4, 2020 at 4:45 PM Eisenberger, Andrew— wrote:

Daniel - these can be attributed to me.

For questions 1 and 2: “Whether the 232 investigation would be launched was uncertain until Secretary Ross
confirmed the plan in a private phone conversation with the congressman on May 1.”

For questions 3 and 4: “The filihgs regarding investment ownership are accurate.”

Andrew Eisenberger
Communications Director
Rep. Mike Kelly | PA-16

On Sep 3, 2020, at 11:17 AM, Daniel Moore || NN - -t-:

Andrew, thanks for getting this statement to me. | will include it.

I'd like to ask some follow-up questions for the record and to check my understanding of the
financial disclosure filing just posted online.

**Did the congressman know on or about April 28, per this account, that the Commerce Department
had verbally confirmed a 232 investigation would be announced?

**Did his wife know about the verbal confirmation on April 28 when she decided to make the
investment? .

**Congressman Kelly's most recent financial disclosure filing from the House Clerk {the 2019 annual
form, which | attached to this email) showed his wife owned about 126 financial investments — |
counted 80 stocks, 28 bonds, 18 mutual funds. it appears the congressman owns no stock, bonds or
mutual funds persenally. Is that accurate? They're all in his wife's name?

**| totaled up about 183 transactions total in 2019. Does Victoria Kelly have a stock broker making

. some or all of the trades? Or does she make individual investment decisions hersalf?

**And is it accurate to say Congressman Kelly and his wife declined to be interviewed for this story?

I'm still not on an immediate deadline, but I'm hoping to have something by the end ofthe week.

Happy to chat further.

Thanks,

| Daniel -

On Wed, Sep 2, 2020 at 6:19 PM Eisenberger, Andrew_ wrote:

21-5221_0330



You can use this and attribute it to me:

“At a time when the entife Butler community is rallying to save the AK Steel plant and its 1400 jobs,
Representative Kelly’s wife made a small investment to show her support for the workers and
management of this 100-year old bedrock of their hometown, where they both are life-long
residents.”

Andrew Eisenberger
Communications Director
Rep. Mike Kelly ] PA-16

On Sep 2, 2020, at 11:45 AM, Daniel Moore— wrote:

And here's the one that references a verbal commitment a day before the stock
purchase.

Lori gave this to me as background, and | believe she said it originated from Cleveland-
Cliffs, but | have not confirmed that.

---------- Forwarded message -
From: Prater, Lori
Date: Wed, Aug 19, 2020 at 1:43 PM
Subject: Timeline

Tos Daniel Moore [N

Timeline - 4 months.

Verbal commitment on or around April 28 - Four months from th|s date would be
August 28.

There was a flurry of activity on several different days in May regarding the initiation of
the investigation (see below). Generally speaking, four months from the
announcement of the investigation would be early September - sometime between
Sept. 4-11.

DOC Press Release saying DOC is self-initiating the investigation on May 4.
The FRN cites the initiation of the investigation date as May 11
The FRN was issued on May 19

Daniel Moore
Washington D.C. bureau chief
Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette.com)

wobii: I

21-9221_0331



danielmoarejournalist.com

Daniel Moore
' Washington D.C. bureau chief
Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post- gazette. com)

Mobile:
dmoor ‘

danielmoorejournalist.com
<2019FD.pdf>

Daniel Moore
Washington D.C. bureau chief

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette. com)
Mahbile:

dmoor

danielmoorejournalist.com

21-9221_0332
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From: Strota, Matthew [N e
Sent: 4/30/2020 10:27:18 AM A

To: Fotl, Anthony (Federal) ERESREEA

Subject: Re;: Phone #

Got it. Thank you Anthony

On Apr 30, 2020, at 8:58 AM, Ioti, Anthony (Federal)

wrote:
Slipped a few days. But the decision has been made. Just internal clearing process is still ongoing,

Anthony Foti

Perforining the delegated duties of the

Assistant Secretary for Legislative and h1te1governmcntal Aftairs
U.S. Department of Commerce

1401 Constitution Ave, NW

Washmivtonl DC 20230

On Apr 30, 2020, at 9:56 AM, Stroia, Matthew < GGG ot

Good morning Anthony-just checking in, any word from your comms team on getting out the release?

On Apr 28, 2020, at 3:14 PM, Foti, Anthony (Federal) <} NN v ot:

Just tried your cell. Give me a ring at Pil

Anthony Foti

Performing the delegated duties of the

Assistant Secretary for Legistative and Intergovernmental Aflairs
U.S. Department of Commerce

1401 Constitution Ave, NW

Washington, DC 20230

On Apr 28, 2020, at 4:01 PM, Suoia, Matthew <[ R o <:

PII

On Apr 28, 2020, at 2:51 PM, Foti, Anthony (Federal) <[ GG ot

~Hi Matt, What's the best # to reach you?

Commerce-OCE-RFI-21-9221-0000171

21-9221_0334



Anthony Foti .

Performing the delegated duties of the -

Assistant Secretary for Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs
1.8, Department of Commerce

1401 Constitution Ave, NW

Washington, DC 20230

Commerce-OCE-REI-21-0221-0000172 2192210336
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1237 | all = @)

<9

2 People »

Apr 28, 2020, 3:41 PM

Matt Stroia

Commerce has not yet sent their
press release out. Cleveland-Cliffs is




12:37 all = @

<@

2 People »

Matt Strofa

- Commerce has not yet sent their »
press release out, Cleveland-Cliffs is
waiting for commerce to put their

* press release out before they put
one out.

| 'spoke to commerce in the White
House after our call. They were
hoping to have their release out
tonight but | don't think it’s gonna
happen. It will most likely go out
tomorrow. ' '

It’s not confirmed until they put it in
‘the press!

Apr 28, 2020, 8:04 AM

Lori Prater

Just talked to Beth. The
announcement is likely to come later
in the week. Hopefully, by Friday
based on a late night conversation
Patrick had with Ross’ Chief if Staff,

Tl nf\n‘rl tr rmd dabe lamal Aloalis i
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2 People »

Lori Prater

Just talked to Beth. The
announcement is likely to come Iater
in the week. Hopefully, by Friday
based on a late night conversation
- Patrick had with Ross' Chief if Staff.
They need 1o get their legal ducks in
- arow. Therefore, | think we still
need to keep any of MK's calls with
Administration in the schedule make
sure we keep this on track. It ain't
over until commerce makes that
announcement.

Matt Stroia

Yeah, definitely. We're all waiting to
see that release come out: :Mike has
a call with Ross on

Friday. Hopefully, they put -
something out before then, .
though. We'll keep it on there e:ther
way. -

Apr 80, 202& 10:4.2 AM.

._.:.madraft fcr

¢ iMessage
.\"‘ g . oan tyAthalic
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From: Schedule, Secretary' sI TPII i@doc gov]

Sent; A4f27/2020 2:41:21 PM

To: Walsh, Michael {Federal) ] ; Barranca, Steven (Federal) [EREetaiene ; Fotl; Anthony
(Federal) ' ; Kumar, Harrv(Federal) ESRC 5emsar, Joseph _
Dombrowskl, Elleen (Federaf) K '

Subject: Call with Congressman Mike Rellv, PA

Start: 57142020 3:30:00 PM

End: 5/1,/2020 4:00:00 PV

Shaw Time As: Busy

Recurrence:  [none)

Required Walsh, Michael {Federal); Barranca, Steven (Federal); Foti, Anthony {Federal); Kumar, Harry (Federal); Semsar,
Attendees: Joseph; Dombrowski, Eileen (Federal)

Pil }

Steven's C(}t:]e! P

Hi Talat,

Conglcsqman Kelly would like to speak with Secretary Ross regarding AK Steel at his earliest convenience. For
reference, please see the attached letters that the Congressman sent to President Trump. Please let us know if
this is possible.

Sincerely,

James Marsh

Director of Administration

1S, Representative Mike Kelly (PA-16)
1707 Longworth House Office Building
(202) 225-5406 | www kelly.house goy

Commerce-OCE-REI-21-0221-0000005 21-6221.0341
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3 People »

May 1, 2020, 3:49 PM

Mike Kelly |
So far so good. I'll be more upbeat
once we get it off our lot and in his
driveway. Gz

Lort Prater

'ME TOO!M!

May 4, 2020, 2:55 PM
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21312021 U.8. Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross to Initiate Sectlon 232 Investigation Into Imports of LamInations and Wound Cores for Incorporat...

U.S. Secretary of Commerce
Wilbur Ross to Initiate Section
232 Investigation into Imports of
Laminations and Wound Cores for
Incorporation into Transformers,
Electrical Transformers, and
Transformer Regulators

B Trade enforcement

U.S. Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross announced he will

initiate an investigation into whether laminations for stacked FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
. S ' ' Monday, May 4, 2020

cores for incorporation into transformers, stacked and wound -

cores for incorporation into transformers, electrical " Office of Public Affairs

transformers, and transformer regulators are being imported (202) 482-4883 -

into the United States in such quantities or under such publicaffairs@doc.gov

circumstances as to threaten to impair the national security.

The decision to launch an investigation under Section 232 of

the Trade Expansion Act of 1962, as amended, follows inquiries and req'uests from multiple members
of Congress as well as industry stakeholders. As required by law, Secretary Ross will send a letter to
Secretary of Defense Mark Esper informing him of the investigation, Secretary Ross will also notify
other relevant executive branch officials.

“The Depértment of Commerce will conduct a thorough, fair, and transparent review to determine
the effects on the national security from imports of laminations for stacked cores for incorporation
into transformers, stacked and wou nd cores for incorporation into transformers, electrical
transformers, and transformer regulartor's,” said Secretary Ross.

Transformers are part of the U.S. energy infrastructure, Laminations and cores made of grain-
oriented electrical steel are critical transformer components. Electrical steel is necessary for power
distribution transformers for all types of energy - incl'uding solar, nuclear, wind, coal, and natural gas
— across the country. An assured domestic supply of these products enables the United States to

https:l/www.commerce.govfnewslpress-feleaseleOZOIOS/us-secretary-commerce-wilbur—ross-inlﬁate-sectI0n-232-investigation 21.9221 2(;?45



2/3/2021 U.8. Secretary of Commerca Wilbur Ross to Inltlate Section 232 Investigation into Imports of Laminalions and Wound Cores for Incorporat..,
respond to large power disruptions affecting civilian populations, critical infrastructure, and U, S,
defense industrial production capabilities.

The investigation, to be conducted by the Department’s Bureau of Industry and Security, will provide

the opportunity for public comment. A notice will be published shortly in the Federal Register.

BUREAUS AND OFFICES
Bureau of Industry and Security

TAGS
@ National security

Share this page

Explore

Issues
News
Data and repotts

Work with us

About us

Our mission
“Strategic plan

Bureaus and offices

Privacy program

hups:ﬁww.cammerce.govfnawslprasa-releases/2020f05/us—secretary~commarca-wlIhur-mss-inltfa(a-sacﬁon«Z_32-investlgatlon 21-9274 ?tﬁ 5
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Rep. Mike Kelly §# ®@MikeKellyPA - May 4, 2020 , s
Thank you to- @CommerceGov for opening a 232 investigation of imparted
elecirical steel products. As the 1ast electrical stesfmaket in the 115, Butler,
PA-Dased AK Steel is crucial to our national security. :

My statement on @SecretaryRoss’ announcement:

kelly.house.gov/press-release/...

(2 4 T 7 N E o | 1

i You Hetwested
4. Sec. Wilbur Ross

@SecretaryRoss - May 4, 2020

BCommercagoy will conduct a Section 232 investigation on imports of
taminations for stacked cores forincorperation into transformers, stacked
and wound cores for incorporation inta transformers, electrical transformers,
and transformer regulators commerce.gov/News/press-rel,.,

(J & Tl oan I &y 21.0221 0348
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Frony: Dormbrowsk, Eileen (Federal) < SERGEGGGGGE

Sent: Monday, May 4, 2020 2:27 PM

To: Prater, Lotl; Strola, Matthew

Ce: Fotl, Anthony (Federal); Kumar, Harry (Federal)
Subject: ~ Department of Commerce Announcement

Matt and Lori: Later this afternoon, the Department of Commarce s announcing that it will initiate an nvestigation to
determine whether imports of laminations for stacked cores for incorporation into transformers, stacked and wound
cores for incorporation Into transformers, electrical transformers, and transformer regulators threaten to impalr the
hational security, The decision to launch an investigation under Section 232 of the Trade Expansion Act of 1962, as
amended, follows inquirtes and requests from multiple members of Congress as well as industry stakeholders.

Additional information will be provided at that time,

Eileen Dombrowski

Legislative Affairs Specialist _
Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs
Office of the Secretary

U.S. Department of Commerce

EDombrowski

21.9221_0350
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From: Bloom, Patrick M «

Sent: : Monday, May 4, 2020 445 PM

To: : Bloom, Patrick M

Ce Ludwig, Beth

Subjoct: U.S, Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross to Initiate Section 232 Investigation into

Irmports of Laminatlons and Wound Cores for incorporation into Transformers, Electrical
_ Transformers, and Transformer Regulators
Attachiments CLF.20200504 Cleveland-Cliffs Applauds DOC.pf

Good aftarnoon,
Please see the following announcement and the attached Cleveland-Cliffs press release,

On behalf of Cleveland-Cliffs and our Chalrman & CEO, Lourence Gonca lves, thank you for your support and that of your
respective bosses, ' '

Wae look forward to continuing to work with you all while this Section 232 investigation is under way,
Should you have any questions, please contact Beth or me at any time.

Thanks again and kind regards,

Patrlck
i PP e
lom [“.:':: Wil
I] J R

I; o “DOC Publle Affairs® < : >
o,

Drale: 08{04/2020 04:07 BM

Subject  [EXT] U.8. Secrelary of Commarca Witbur Rosg to Iniliate Seclion 232 Invastipation Into Imports of Laminallens and Waund Coros for Incarporallon
tnlo Fransformers, Gleclileal Transformers, and Transformer Regutalors .

FOILIMMEDIATE RELEASE

Monday, May 4, 2020

News Maodra Contact:

Office of Pubille Affalrs, 202-412.4993

4.5, Socratary of Commarce Wilbur Itoss to Inltinte Secdion 292 Investigation Into Imports of Lerslnations and Wound Cores for Incorparation into Transfarmers, Eloctiieal
Transformers, and Transformor Regulntors

1
LP_ 0067

21-9221_0352




© o Daler  05/04120 !

Eisenbérg er, Andrewy

From: Bloom, Patrick M <

Sent: Monday, May 4, 2020 4:45 PM

Tor Bloom, Patrick M
Ce: - Ludwig, Baeth . , ' , .ot
Subject: : U.S, Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross to Initiate Section 232 Investigation into :

Imports of Laminatlons and Wound Cores for incorporation Into Transformers, Electrical
' Transformers, and Transformer Regutators :
Attachments: CLF.20200504 Cleveland-Cliffs Applauds DOCpdf : !

Good afterhoon,

* Please see the fotlowing announcement and the attached Cleveland-Cliffs press release.

On behalf of Cleveland-CIist and our Chairman & CEO, Lourenco Goncalves, thank you for your support and that of your .
respective bosses,

We look farward to continulng to work with you all while this Section 232 Investigation Is under way,
Should you have-any questions, please contact Beth or me at any time.

Thanks again and kind regards,
Patrlck

~#*- CLIFF

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS ING.

PATRICK M, BLOOWM ' ' : ;
D !

rector - Government Relations , !
R — .

CLEVELAND-CLIFFS ING. :
200 Public Square, Sulte 3300, Cleveland, OH 44114 L .
P 218.894,.6700 F 216.694.5385 clevelandeliffs.com ' ;

~ From: '"DPOC Publc: " g
Tor bath, udwis

Sublact: [EXT] U8, Secretary of Commuorce Wibur Ross o Inftfato Section 232 Invaatigation [nlo Imporis of Laminalions and Wound Goras for Incorporaflan
Into Transformars, Etacldeal Transformers, and Translormear Ragulalors o .

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE :
Manday, May 4, 2020 . , ;
News Madla Contaett - . ‘
Offlee of Public Affalrs, 202-182.488)

1.3, Secretary of Commarce Wilbur Ross to initiate Sectlon 232 l:westlgaiton Into Imports of Lartinations and Wotind Cores for Ingarporation Into Transformers, Elactrical
Transformers, and Transfonmer Ragutators

AE_0021

21-8221_0363




WASHINGTON - U.5, Secratary of Commerca Wilbur Ross ahnounced he will Inltiate an Invastigation Into whether taminatlens for stacked cores for incorporation Into
trensformers, stacked and wound coras for incorporation Into transformers, electrical transfarmers, and transfarmer regulators are being Imported Inta the Unlted States In
such guantitles or under such clrcumstances as to thraaten to fm pair the natlonat securlty. The dacision to launch an Invastigation under Section 232 of tha Trade Expansion Act
of 1962, as amendad, foflows Inquiries and requests from mubllple mambers of Cengrass as wall as Industry stakeholdars, As racuired by faw, Secretary Ross will send a letter to
Secretury of Defense Mark Esper Informing him of the Investigation, Secratary Ross will also notify ether relevant executive branch officlals,

"The Departinant of Commerce will ednduct a thoreugh, falr, and transparent review to deternine the effects on the nationaf securlty from Imporis of laminations for stacked
coras for incorporatlon Into transformers, stacked and wound coras for Incorparatlon Into transformers, electrical transformars, and transformar ragulators,” sald Secratary
Rass. .

Transformers ara part of tha U.S, anergy lrifrastructure, Laminatlons and cores made of graln-ortented alactrical stac) are critical transformer compenents. Eleetrical steal Is
necassary for power dlstribution transformars for all types of energy — Including solar, nuclear, wind, coal, and natural gas ~across the country, An assured domestic supply of
these praducts enables the Unlted States to respond to farge power disruptions affacting clvilan pepulations, critlcal Infrastructure, and U 5. defense Industrial production
capabliittas,

The Investigation, to be conducted by tha Department's 8ureau of Industry and Security, wiil provide thia opportunity for public comment, A notica will be published shortly in
tha Federal Raglstor, .

it

STAY CONNECTED: . . : SUBSCRIBER SERVICES:

Preferences Help
Unsubscribe  Contact s

This electronic message and any attachments included with this message are for the exclusive use of the individual or
entity to which it is Intended to be addressed. This message may contaln Information that Is privileged or confidential
and thereby exempt and protected from unauthorized disclosure under applicable law. If the reader of this message is

. Not the Intended reclpient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the Intended re¢tplent, be
aware that any disclosure, disseminatlon, distributlon or copying of thls communlcation, or the use of its contents, s not
authorized and is strictly prohiblted, if you have received this communicatien and are not the intended recipient, please
notify the sender Immediately and permanently delete the orlginal message from your e-mail system.

AE_0022
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Prater, Loyl

From Beth,Ludwi

Sent; _ Wednesday, May 6, 2020 2:59 PM
To : . Prater, Lori; Strota, Matthew
Subject; Call Tomorrow AM?

Hi Lorl and Matt, -

Would you two have a faw minutes to talk to Patrick and me about a few next steps on the 232 front? We are generally -
opan all tomorrow maorning so name a thne that would worl wall for Yo, ,

Thanksll

Beth

Beth DeBrosse Ludwig

AK Btas] Corporation

Caorporate Manager, Government & Public Relations
8227 Centre Pointe Dr,
West Chestar, OH 45069
Both, Ludwi

Phone:

Cell
Conficdentlality Notice :

This message Is Intended exclusively for the Individual or entity to which It Is addrassed and may contain privileged,
proprietary, or otherwise private Information. _

If you are not the named addressee, you are not authetlzed to read, print, retain, copy or disseminate this message or
any part of it, If you have received this message In error, please notify the sender Immedlately by e-mall and delete afl
copies of the message. '

L0088

21-9221_ 0358



Prater, Lgri

From; Beth.Ludwig
Sant; : Tuesday, September 15, 2020 5:25 PM
To: Sam_Mulopulos

Zimpher, Nate; Prater, L.oti; Engeulst, Laura;
Strola, Matthew R

Ce! o patrickbloor NN

Subject; - Thursday Call

Hi All, : ’

Patrick and | wanted to see If we could get a call scheduled for sometime Thursday, perhaps Thursday mormning, for a
status update/next steps conversation? Would 10AM happen to work Thursday for everyone? If het, please share some
fime frames that work. Matt and L.aura, we welcome your participation and Ideas but also understand if you need to divide
and conquer and let Nate and Leorl do the call. ,

Thanks! - E o

Bast,

teth

AKSiéeB

A CLEVELAND-CLIPRS COMPANY

Beth DeBrosse Ludwlig

Corporate Manager, Government and Public Relations
e

P
Bath.Ludwig

AK STEEL GORPORATION :
9227 Centre Pointa Drive, West Chesler, OH 45069

p 613.425.5000 aksteel,com
Confldentlality Natice '

This message Is intended exclusively for the Individual or entity to which It Is addressed and may cantaln privileged,
preprietary, orotherwlse private Infermation, .

i yau are not the named addressee, you are not authorized to read, pring, retain, copy or disseminate this message or
any part of it. If you have received this message In error, please notiy the sender Immedlately by e-mail and delete al|
coples of the message, ' .

LP_0126
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Prater Lol

From: _ Prater, Lort

Sent: Thursday, October 1, 2020 12:55 PM
To: , Bloom, Patrick M; Zimpher, Nate

Ce: Ludwlg, Beth

Subject: RE: Update ~ Electrical Stesl

Sounds good.,

From: Bloow, Patrick M <

Sent: Thursday, October 1, 2020 12:50 PM _

To: Prater, Lor! <SSR, 7o her, Nate <[
Ce: Ludwig, Beth <G -

Subject: RE: Update - Electrical Steel

From: Prater, Lori < , 3

Sent: Thursday, October 1, 2020 12:47 PV

To: Bloom, Patrick M < >; Zimphar, Nate < >
Cet Ludwilg, Beth < >

Subjact: [EXTERNAL) RE: Update - Electrical Steel

Sure thing. Let me know what worls with you ali and Nate,

Fronm Bloom, Patrlck M < >

Sant: Thursday, October 1, 2020 12:43 PM ' _

Tot Prater, Lo#l < > Zimpher, Nate < : >
Cer Ludwig, Beth < o :

Subject: Update - Electrical Steel
Good afternoon, Lorl and Nate.

Lourenco Goncalves spoke to Ambassador Lighthizer fate yesterday afternoon, We'd like to provide you with an
important update on the status of the pending Seétion 232 investigation covering faminations, cores and transformers,

Please let us know If you'd have a few minutes to connect yet today.

In addition, plesase see the attached emall/letter sent by Lourenco to Secretary Ross last evening,

1

LP_0047
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Thanks,
Patrick

: o T, I P I e P
[P — - { b E H l{'m; lf%‘:m '{}: ‘~:.
e ol B L | S pfy

GLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC.

This electronic message and any attachments included with this message are for the exclusive use of the individual or
entity-to which It is Intended to be addressed. This message may contaln Informatlon that Is privileged or confidential
and thereby exempt and protected from unauthorized disclosure under applicable law. if the reader of this message is
not the Intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the Intended recipient, be
aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication, or the use of its contents, Is not
authorized and is strictly prohibitad. If you have received this communication and are not the intended reclplent, please
notify the sender immediately and permanently delete the original message from your e-mail system.

LP_0048
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Prator, Lor

AL O o Y PO TR P WYY TR T YNNI
From; Beth.Ludwig
Sent: Monday, Qctober 12, 2020 4:49 PM
Tot , Prater, Lori
Subject: . GOES Product Exclusions Follow-Up
Attachments: secretaryRoss,9,30.2020,pdf

Lotl, : :

Just wantad to be sure you had this letter that outlines all our polnts on the concerns with the GOES product exclusions
that were granted by DOC, By our estimation, in the U.8. market, thera Is demand for only 1,400 net tons of GOES with
widths over 920 mm, a far cry from the 41,446 net tons they just granted.

Thahnks. ‘

Bot

A OLEVELAND-CLIEFS SOMPANY

Beth DoBrosse Ludwig

Corporate Manager, Govarniment and Public Relations
pH m r
Beth,Ludwig

AK STEEL CORPORATION : _

8227 Centre Polnte Drive, West Chester, OH 45069

P §13.426.6000

Confldentiality Notlce : . :

This message Is Intended exclusively for the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain privileged,
proprietary, or otherwise private Information,

if you are not the named addressee, you are net authorized to read, print, retaln, copy or disseminate this message or
any part of It. If you have recelved this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by e-mall and defete all
coples of the message. :

_ LP_0068
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Prater, Lori

From;
Sent;

Fo:

Ce: )
Subject;

Eisenberger, Andrew

Woednesday, Qctober 28, 2020 1045 PM
Beth.Ludwl

Prater, Lorl; Bloom, Patrlck M

Re: [EXT] Re: [EXTERNAL] Follow-up

I'm frae to talk at 9,

Andrew Elsenberger
Communications Director
Rep. Mike Kelly | PA~L6

On Oct 28, 2020, at 10:44 PV, "Beth, Ludwiz| || Gz R -

Sounds good. We can do 9AM If that works for you both? if not, just et us know what time would work
for you and we will do our best to accommodate, :

Thanks|

Beth

On: 28 October 2020 22:42, "Prater, Lor!” <} NG ' :

Thanks. Il talk to Andrew In the morhing to see what works since he's up In Butler with
Mike through the election, :

Sent from my iPhone

> On Qct 28, 2020, at 10:35 PM, Bloom, Patrick M wrote:

=

> Thanks, Lort, We'll have something to you and Andrew first thing tomorrow, It may be
good if all of us could connect briefly by phone as well to discuss some of the

“sequencing conslderations related to the Sec, 232 and Mexican arrangement.

>
> Best,

> Patrick
.

>
> _ _

>> Onh Oct 28, 2020, at 9:42 PM, Prater, Lorl wrote:
p

_»>Talked to Mike tonight and Andrew our comms Director. He's talking to the WH

comms people tomorrow and would fike to work the Mexlco agreement into to
President’s spaech, Can you provide him with an oveivlew of the detalls we discussed by
tomorrow morning so he can push It with them?
o> , :
' 1
LR, 0130

21-9221_0360
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Eisenberger, Andrew
_

From: _ Daniel Mocre

Sent: Wednesday, September 2, 2020 17:44 AM
To: . Eisenberger, Andrew

Subject: ‘ Fwd: Background material

Here's the longer timeline of Mike's involvement on behalf of the Butler Works.

---------- Forwarded message «--------
From: Prater, Lori

Date: Wed, Aug 19, 2020 at 2:33 PM
Subject: RE: Background material

To: Daniel Moore NN

Sure thing! Just a few more pieces to the 232 puzzle.

From: Daniel Moore

Sent: Wednesday, August 19, 2020 2:08 PM
To: Prater, Lori

Subject: Re: Background material

Incredibly helpful, thanks so much!

On Wed, Aug 19, 2020 at 1:40 PM Prater, Lori_ wrote:

Efforts to address the circumvention of the Section 232 tariff on electrical steel through downstream
Pproducts (as of 12/18/19) '

Timeline of Notable Actions
March 29, 2017 — Roger Newport testified at the Congressional Steel Caucus

i May 24, 2017 — Roger Newport testified before the Department of Commerce on the Section 232 investigation

July 2017 — Reps. Tiberi and Kelly raise at House Ways and Means Committee hearing with DOC Secretary
Ross .

August 15, 2017 — Senator Casey tour of Butler Works

August 22, 2017 — Butler Eagle Gazette Op Ed

. September 28, 2017 — Meeting with DOC with downstream customers

February 16, 2018 — DOC Section 232 report on steel released publicly
February 22, 2018 — Letters from Roger to Ross and President Trump

i March 8, 2018 — Section 232 tariffs announced

. March 8, 2018 — Casey, Portman, Brown Letter

" March 21,2018 — Roger Newport testificd at the Congressional Stee] Caucus

1
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April 4, 2018 — Rep. Kelly tours Butler Works _

April 12, 2018 — Roger Newport testified at the House Ways and Means Committee Hearing on the Effects of
Tariff Increases onthe U.S. Economy and Jobs

April 17, 2018 — AKS-customer group letter to Ross asking for inclusion of downstream products

May 18, 2018 — Executive Summary and formal request for Transformer Supply Chain 232 by AKS and
customer group ' '
May 5, 2018 — Roger and Renee raise with POTUS at Cleveland event

Summer/Fall 2018 - Meetings/Calls with Hill, DOC/USTR including Roger call with Ross

October 12, 2018 — Meeting with Ambassador Mazhoney

October 3, 2019 — Meeting with Ambassador Gerrish

October 31, 2019 — Casey, Portman, Brown letter to USTR.

November 20, 2019 — Balderson, Kelly letter to USTR

November 21, 2019 — Meeting with DOC Assistant Secretary Nazak Nikakhtar

December 5-6, 2019 — Issue raised at the North American Steel Trade Committes meetings in Ottawa

Daniel Moore

Washihgton D.C. bureau chief

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette.com)

motite: ISR

danielmoorejournalist.com

Daniel Moore

Washington D.C. bureau chief

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette.com)
Mohile:
dmoor

danielmoorejournalist.com

21-9221_0363
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Eisenberger, Andrew

From: Daniel Moore

Sent: Wednesday, September 2, 2020 11:45 AM
To: . _ Eisenberger, Andrew

Subject: Fwd: Timeline

And here's the one that references a verbal commitment a day before the stock purchase.

Lori gave this to me as background, and | believe she said it originated from CIeveIand-Ciiffs, but I have not confirmed
that.

---------- Forwarded message -—---—-—-
From: Prater, Lori
Date: Wed, Aug 19, 2020 at 1:43 PM
Subject: Timeline

To: Dariel Moore IR

Timeline - 4 months.

Verbal commitment on or around April 28 - Four months from this date would be August 28.

There was a flurry of activity on several different days in May regarding the initiation of the investigation (see
below). Generally speaking, four months from the announcement of the investigation would be early September -
somefime between Sept. 4-11.

DOC Press Release saying DOC is self-initiating the investigation on May 4
The FRN cites the initiation of the investigation date as May 11
The FRN was issued on May 19

Daniel Maore

Washington D.C. bureau chief ,
Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette.com)
Mobile:
dmoor

danielmoorejournalist.com

21-9221_0385
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Wl S ¢ 100% ek

New iMessage Cance| -

To: Matt Stroia 1 /2

Thu, Supn 3, 2:20 PM

Ok.
Tiw, Sep 3, 1532 Iy

_I read Mike the emall on the way home fhis evening
from Danel, | don't think we get into the spacifics
in another response, | say we keep our statement
asitis. Me agreed. .

Yeah, that was on background but can you still use
it? Also, we didn't get anything in writing untif like
the 30th that | received | believe,

We need to re-look at staff other than you doing
hackground then? What Do you think?

Why wolld we have a problem feliing Da
info under normal clrcumstanges?. -~

21.9221_0367



ali LTE & 100% @)

New iMessage Cancel

To: Matt Stroia 2/2

You're right. | know, we did all the right things 'as a
staff. We are trying to get out front for credit.

21-9221_0368
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Eisenberger, Andrew

_
From: Daniel Moore NN

Sent: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 1:07 PM
To: ' Fisenberger, Andrew
Subject: Re: Meeting/phone call?

Sure, I'll give you a ring then.

On Tue, Sep 1, 2020 at 12:56 PM Eisenberger, Andrew— wrote:

Yeah how about 3pm?

Andrew Eisenberger
Communications Director
Rep. Mike Kelly | PA-16
202-225-5406

On Sep 1, 2020, at 10:12 AM, Daniel Moore | -

Sure, no problem. Let's do a phone call. Would you be free sometime today? Thanks!

'On Tue, Sep 1, 2020 at 8:45 AM Eisenberger, Andrew_ wrote:

Hey man!

Let’s go ahead and do a phone call I'm pretty busy this week, unless you want to wait until next week
to get together? ‘

Andrew Eisenberger
Communications Director
Rep. Mike Kelly | PA-16
202-225-5406

On Aug 31, 2020, at 2:54 PM, Daniel Moore | ot

Hey Andrew, 'd like to run something by you when you get a minute. Is everyone in
your office still remote these days? if you wanted to meet somewhere inside or
outside, that would be great. Always looking to stretch my legs (and return to some
sense of normalcy.) | can always do a phone cali if you're away.or wrapped up with
something. Just let me know.

All the best,

Daniel Moore

Washington D.C. bureau chief

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette.com)
1

21-9221_0370



Mobile:
dmoor

danielmooerejournalist.com

Daniel Moore

Washington D.C. bureau chief

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette.com)
Maobile:
dmoor

~ danielmoorejournalist.com

Daniel Moore _
Washington D.C. bureau chief
Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.bost-gazette.com)

danielmoorejournalist.com

21-9221_0371
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Eisenberger, Andrew

From:

Sent;

- To:

Subject;
Attachments:

Andrew Eisenberger
Communications Director
Rep. Mike Kelly | PA-16
202-225-5406

Begin forwarded message:

From: Daniel Moore

Date: September 1, 2020 at 3:36:05 PM EDT
To: "Eisenberger, Andrew"

Eisenberger, Andrew

Tuesday, September 1, 2020 3:41 PM

Stroia, Matthew 7

Fwd: Cleveland-Cliffs stock purchase
ClevelandCliffsStockPurchase.pdf: ATTO0001.htm

Subject: Cleveland-Cliffs stock purchase

Hey Andrew, thanks for the call. Attached you'll find the document filed with the House clerk showing a
stock purchase on April 29 of $15,001 - $50,000 in Cleveland-Cliffs. Let me know what you think when
you get a minute. Happy to chat further.

Allthe best,

Daniel Moore

-Washington D.C. bureau chief

danielmoorejournalist.com

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette (www.post-gazette.com)

21-8221_0373
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Els_enberger, Andrew

From: * Danicl Moore -